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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
SIGNATURES
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf
by the undersigned, hereunto duly authorized.

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
Date: May 16, 2013

By:/s/ Bruce Ramsden
Bruce Ramsden
Chief Financial Officer
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2012, 2011 AND 2010
The following management’s discussion and analysis (“MD&A”) of the operating results and financial position of Mountain Province
Diamonds Inc. (the “Company” or “Mountain Province” or “MPV”) is prepared as at March 28, 2013, and should be read in conjunction
with the audited consolidated financial statements and the notes thereto as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 and for the years ended
December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010.
The Company’s audited consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
All amounts are expressed in Canadian dollars unless otherwise stated.
For additional information, reference is made to the Company’s press releases and Annual Information Form on Form 20-F filed on
SEDAR at www.sedar.com, on EDGAR at http://sec.gov/edgar.shtml, and on the Company’s website at www.mountainprovince.com.
Technical information included in this MD&A regarding the Company’s mineral projects has been reviewed by Carl Verley, a Director
of the Company and a Qualified Person as defined by National Instrument 43-101 - Standards of Disclosure for Mineral Properties
(“NI 43-101”).
OVERALL PERFORMANCE
Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. is a Canadian resource company in the process of permitting and developing a diamond deposit
(the “Gahcho Kué Project” or the “Project”) located in the Northwest Territories of Canada. The Company’s primary asset is its 49%
interest in the Gahcho Kué Project.
On July 3, 2009, the Company entered into an amended and restated joint venture agreement with De Beers Canada Inc. (“De Beers
Canada”) (jointly, the “Participants”) under which:
The Participants’ continuing interests in the Gahcho Kué Project will be Mountain Province 49% and De Beers Canada 51%,
(a)
except for normal dilution provisions which are applicable to both Participants;
Each Participant will market their own proportionate share of diamond production in accordance with their participating
(b)
interest;
(c) Each Participant will contribute their proportionate share to the future project development costs;
Material strategic and operating decisions will be made by consensus of the Participants as long as each Participant has a
(d)
participating interest of 40% or more;
The Participants have agreed that the sunk historic costs to the period ending on December 31, 2008 will be reduced and
(e)
limited to $120 million;
The Company will repay De Beers Canada $59 million (representing 49% of an agreed sum of $120 million) plus accrued
(f)
interest in settlement of the Company’s share of the agreed historic sunk costs on the following schedule:
1
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·
·
·
·
·
·

$200,000 on execution of the 2009 Agreement (the Company’s contribution to the 2009 Joint Venture expenses to
date of execution of the 2009 Agreement – paid and expensed);
Up to $5.1 million in respect of De Beers Canada’s share of the costs of the feasibility study (paid - $4,417,421 to
December 31, 2012, included in “Mineral Properties”; no further payments are expected);
$10 million upon the completion of a feasibility study with at least a 15% IRR and approval of the necessary
development work for a mine (as defined in the 2009 Agreement) (paid March 15, 2011);
$10 million following the issuance of the construction and operating permits;
$10 million following the commencement of commercial production; and
The balance of approximately $24.4 million plus accumulated interest within 18 months following commencement of
commercial production.

Since these payments are contingent on certain events occurring, and/or work being completed, they will be recorded as the
payments become due or are made. As these contingent payments are made, they are being capitalized to Mineral Properties as
“acquired exploration and evaluation”.
Mountain Province has agreed that the Company’s marketing rights under the 2009 Agreement may be diluted if the Company
defaults on the repayments described above, if and when such payments become due.
The 2009 Agreement’s provision for consensus decision-making for material strategic and operating decisions provides the Company
with joint control for the Gahcho Kué Project with De Beers Canada, and the Company accounts for the Project as a joint venture.
The underlying value and recoverability of the amounts shown for the Company’s investment in the Gahcho Kué joint venture
is dependent upon the ability of the Gahcho Kué Project to complete the successful design, permitting, funding, construction of
the Gahcho Kué Project and future profitable production. Failure to achieve the above will require the Company to write-off costs
capitalized to date.
GAHCHO KUE PROJECT
The Gahcho Kué Project is located in the Northwest Territories, about 300 kilometres northeast of Yellowknife. The Project covers
approximately 10,353 acres, and encompasses four mining leases (numbers 4341, 4199, 4200, and 4201) held in trust by the
Operator, De Beers Canada. The Project hosts four primary kimberlite bodies – Hearne, Tuzo, Tesla, and 5034. The four main
kimberlite bodies are within two kilometres of each other.
Independent Feasibility Study
On October 21, 2010, in a press release titled “Mountain Province Diamonds Announces Positive Gahcho Kué Independent
Feasibility Study”, Mountain Province announced the results of the independent feasibility study on the Gahcho Kué diamond project
dated October 15, 2010. JDS Energy and Mining Inc. led and prepared the feasibility study, which was presented to the Gahcho Kué
Joint Venture. The Company filed a detailed summary of the Feasibility Study, dated December 1, 2010, as the NI 43-101 Technical
Report on SEDAR on December 3, 2010.
The following are the financial and project highlights from the Feasibility Study:
Project IRR* including sunk costs
20.7%**
·
Project IRR excluding sunk costs
33.9%
·
Initial project capital
$549.5M
·
Working capital
$49.4M
·
Sustaining capital including mine closure
$36.1M
·
Operating costs
$48.68 per tonne
·
2
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Project mine life
11 years
·
Average annual production
3 million tonnes
·
Total diamond production
49 million carats
·
Average annual diamond production
4.45 million carats
·
Revenue
US$102.48 per carat***
·
*Internal Rate of Return (“IRR”)
**After taxes/royalties and unleveraged
***The base case model uses an average realized diamond price of US$102.48 per carat derived from the mean average
between the modeled values of De Beers and WWW International Diamond Consultants (based on their respective April 2010
price books) inclusive of a real 1% escalation over LOM less an assumed 4% marketing fee.
The feasibility study delivers an economically viable, technically credible and environmentally sound development plan for the Gahcho
Kué project. Also, the IRR exceeds the minimum 15% required under the Joint Venture agreement to support a decision to develop.
On June 14, 2011, the Joint Venture partners announced that they had approved the Gahcho Kué feasibility study with agreed
revisions and clarifications; approved the execution of the necessary development work for the Gahcho Kué Project; and mandated
the Gahcho Kué Project Operator, De Beers Canada, to prepare a plan and budget for the development of the Gahcho Kué mine.
The plan and budget, once approved by the Joint Venture partners, will serve as the basis for a final investment decision, which is
expected to be made once the partners have clarity on the progress of the environmental review currently underway.
Gahcho Kué Mineral Reserve Report
On October 21, 2010, Mountain Province announced a Mineral Reserve estimate for the Gahcho Kué Project. The Mineral Reserve
is the Indicated Resource contained in the proposed open pit mine that can be mined and processed profitably and is scheduled for
treatment in the feasibility study life of mine plan. The Gahcho Kué Mineral Reserve estimate is summarized in Table 2 below.
Table 2
Gahcho Kué Mineral Reserve Estimate
Pipe

Classification

Tonnes(Mt)

Probable
Probable
Probable
Probable

13.2
5.4
12.6
31.3

5034
Hearne
Tuzo
Total
* Fully diluted mining grade

Grade
(carats per tonne)
1.77
2.10
1.13
1.57*

Carats(Mct)
23.3
11.5
14.2
49.0

Independent Diamond Valuation
In March 2012, Mountain Province retained WWW International Diamond Consultants Ltd. (“WWW”) to provide an updated valuation
of the diamonds recovered from the Gahcho Kué Project. The valuation took place at the London offices of the Diamond Trading
Company. All diamond values presented below are based on the WWW Price Book as at March 7, 2012.
Table 3 below reflects the actual price per carat for the parcel of 8,317.29 carats of diamonds recovered from the Gahcho Kué Project.
3
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Pipe
5034

Zone
Centre/East Lobe
West Lobe

Hearne
Tuzo
Total
Note: Total Dollars are the result of rounding.

Table 3
Actual Price US$/carat
Total Carats
1,957.54
1,132.14
2,905.76
2,321.85
8,317.29

$/Carat
211
109
96
316
$186

Total Dollars
413,885
123,216
277,652
734,111
$1,548,864

In their report to Mountain Province, WWW stated: "The most valuable stone is in the Tuzo sample. This 25.13 carat stone is the
largest stone in all of the bulk samples. The stone is an octahedron of H/I colour which WWW valued at $20,000 per carat giving a
total value of $502,600”.
WWW added: “The stone with the highest value per carat sample is a 9.90 carat stone in the 5034 C/E sample. This is a makeable
stone of high colour (D/E) which WWW valued at $24,000 per carat giving a total value of $237,600”.
Besides the high-value 25.13 and 9.9 carat diamonds referred to above, several other large high-value diamonds of gem quality have
been recovered from Gahcho Kué, including 7.0 carat, 6.6 carat and 5.9 carat diamonds from the 5034 kimberlite and 8.7 carat, 6.4
carat and 4.9 carat diamonds from the Hearne kimberlite. The presence of coarser diamonds is an important driver of overall diamond
value at Gahcho Kué.
The results of the 2012 independent diamond valuation indicated that there was almost no change (+0.9%) from the previous
valuation conducted in April 2011. However, De Beers Canada has reported that between January 1 and December 31, 2012, average
global rough diamond prices decreased by 12 percent as a consequence of macroeconomic uncertainty.
Table 4 below presents models of the March 2012 average price per carat (US$/carat) for each kimberlite. The modeled price per
carat is determined using statistical methods to estimate the average value of diamonds that will be recovered from potential future
production from Gahcho Kué.

Pipe
High Model
5034 Centre
167
5034 West
169
5034 North/East
195
Hearne
138
Tuzo
136
Average
$160
Note: 1 mm nominal square mesh
Diamond values are in US Dollars

Table 4
Base Model
134
131
145
109
104
$122

Low Model
117
118
124
100
99
$110

For mine feasibility studies, WWW recommends using the base case models for defining the resources and reserves. The “high” and
“low” models are included for sensitivity analysis.
The WWW averaged modeled price per carat for the Gahcho Kué kimberlites is US$122, which represents a 41 percent increase
over the WWW April 2010 average modeled price. The WWW models use size distribution models (carats per size class) developed
by De Beers Canada.
4
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The 2010 independent definitive feasibility study, under which the revenue assumption was based on the mean average of the April
2010 WWW and De Beers Canada modeled diamond prices, reported a 33.9 percent IRR excluding sunk costs. Further, sensitivity
analysis shows that a 10 percent increase in modeled diamond prices results in an approximate 3 percent increase in the project IRR.
Permitting
In November 2005, De Beers Canada, as Operator of the Gahcho Kué Project, applied to the Mackenzie Valley Land and Water
Board for a Land Use Permit and Water License to undertake the development of the Gahcho Kué diamond mine. On December
22, 2005, Environment Canada referred the applications to the Mackenzie Valley Environmental Impact Review Board (“MVEIRB”),
which commenced an Environmental Assessment. In June 2006, the MVEIRB ordered that an Environment Impact Review (“EIR”) of
the applications should be conducted.
The EIR is designed to identify all of the key environmental and social issues that will be impacted by the construction and operation
of the Gahcho Kué diamond mine and to facilitate participation by key stakeholders in addressing these issues.
The Environmental Impact Statement (“EIS”) for the Gahcho Kué Project was submitted to the Gahcho Kué Environmental Impact
Review Panel (the “Panel” or “Gahcho Kué Panel”) of the MVEIRB in December 2010. The EIS details the construction and operation
of the proposed mine to ensure it is sustainable and was assembled to meet the rigorous Terms of Reference established by the
Panel for the Gahcho Kué Project.
On January 8, 2013, the Company announced that the MVEIRB closed the public record for the Gahcho Kué EIR on January 3, 2013.
The MVEIRB is expected to complete their report by July 2013.
On March 12, 2013, the Company announced that the Gahcho Kué Project awaits the report and recommendation from the Gahcho
Kué Panel of MVEIRB, and that on its completion, the report of the Gahcho Kué Panel will be submitted to the Minister of Aboriginal
Affairs and Northern Development who has the authority to approve the development of the first diamond mine at Gahcho Kué. While
both the Panel report and the Ministerial approval are awaited, the Mackenzie Valley Land and Water Board has opened the public
registry to facilitate expeditious processing of the Gahcho Kué permits. The project development schedule remains subject to final
regulatory approval.
Tuzo Deep Project
On October 7, 2011, the Company announced that the first of two drill rigs had commenced drilling the Tuzo kimberlite at the Gahcho
Kué Project as part of the Tuzo Deep Project. A second drill rig arrived in late October, 2011. The news release indicated that the
drilling program is intended to test the depth extension between 350 and 750 metres, and that the program would include five holes
drilled from two land-based platforms to the north and south of the massive Tuzo kimberlite.
5
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The Tuzo Deep drill program aimed to define a resource between 350 and 750 metres and was completed in April 2012. On April 12,
2012, the Company announced the results of the drill program as in Table 5 below:
Table 5
Inclination
Kimberlite intercepts (meters)
End of
Azimuth
Drill hole
at collar
hole
(degrees)
From
To
Intercept
(degrees)
(meters)
MPV350
-60
391.00
603.00
212.00
708.00
11-324C
MPV340
-65
436.20
573.58
137.38
660.00
11-325C
MPV165
-65
460.60
528.00
*
528.00
11-326C
MPV173
-57
463.00
675.48
212.48
718.00
12-327C
MPV059
-55
603.58
819.20
215.62
842.00
12-328C
MPV274
-60
412.20
624.87
212.67
669.00
12-329C
* Hole MPV-11-326C was abandoned at 528m due to lost rods at bottom of hole.
Hole MPV-12-327C is a continuation of MPV-11-326C starting at 400m at a wedge.
The program consisted of five holes totalling 3,725 meters. One hole, MPV-11-326C was abandoned at 528m due to lost drill rods,
however was continued in MPV-11-327C, which started at 400m at a wedge. All five holes successfully confirmed the substantial
presence of kimberlite beyond the current Resource depth.
The shape of the Tuzo kimberlite is unusual as it widens to depth, from 125 meters diameter near surface to 225 meters diameter at
a depth of 300 meters. In addition, the diamond grade increases to depth. The average grade from surface to a depth of 300 meters
is 1.21 carats per tonne, while the average grade from a depth of 300 meters to 350 meters increases to 1.75 carats per tonne.
On November 8, 2012, the Company announced the microdiamond recovery results from the Tuzo Deep drill program completed in
April 2012.
Recovery of microdiamonds from the kimberlite intersects was undertaken by caustic fusion methods performed at the Geoanalystical
Laboratories Diamond Services of the Saskatchewan Research Council (“SRC”), which is accredited to the ISO/IEC 17025 standard
by the Standards Council of Canada as a testing laboratory for diamond analysis using caustic fusion. The microdiamonds recovered
by the SRC were then forwarded to the De Beers Kimberley Microdiamond Laboratory (“KMDL”) for re-weighing of minus 0.3mm
diamonds.
The combined SRC and KMDL caustic fusion diamond results for samples taken from Tuzo Deep are summarized below in Table 6.
Table 6
Numbers of Diamonds According to Sieve Size Fraction (mm)
Total
Weight +0.075 - +0.106 - +0.150 - +0.212 - +0.300 - +0.425 - +0.600 - +0.850 - +1.180 - +1.700 - +2.360 Total
(Kg) 0.106
0.150
0.212
0.300
0.425
0.600
0.850
1.180
1.700
2.360
3.350
Diamonds
657.13 1,199
999
547
446
281
156
87
42
16
2
1
3,776
Total carat weight of sample: 2.3330075
Total macro carats +0.5mm: 1.989658
Total macro carats +0.850mm: 1.485248
6
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On March 12, 2013, the Company announced that the Tuzo Deep geological report was completed in January, 2013, and the Tuzo
Deep grade report was completed in mid-February, 2013. These reports are prepared by De Beers in its capacity as the Operator of
the Gahcho Kué project to establish the geological continuity of the Tuzo kimberlite from the Probable Reserve portion (from surface
to 300 meters) to a depth of 564 meters, and also to provide a tonnage and grade estimate for Tuzo Deep.
The reports provide evidence that the kimberlite units present below 300 meters are the same as those present in the Probably
Reserve portion and also that similar grades were estimated at depth.
The De Beers Canada technical report does not classify the Tuzo Deep potential resource in accordance with the Canadian Institute
of Mining, Metallurgy and Petroleum (CIM) guidelines. Mountain Province is therefore retaining an independent qualified person
to complete a quality assurance and quality control review of the De Beers Canada geological and technical reports with a view
to presenting to shareholders an updated independent National Instrument 43-101 resource estimate for the Tuzo kimberlite. It is
expected that this report will be issued during Q2 2013.
Gahcho Kué Capital Program
On May 28, 2012, the Company announced that the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture partners had approved the initial capital to advance
the Gahcho Kué diamond mine in preparation for development.
The C$31.3M budget (C$21.3M for 2012 and C$10M for Q1, 2013) will focus on advancing:
1.
Preparation work for the construction and operating permit applications;
2.
Front-end engineering and design (FEED);
3.
Preparations and procurement for the 2013 winter road;
4.
Detailed engineering;
5.
Purchase of critical long-lead equipment; and
6.
Feasibility study update.
On August 7, 2012, the Company indicated financing arrangements of the Company’s 49 percent share of the Gahcho Kué capital
budget, estimated at approximately C$300M, are progressing, with multiple options for project financing, off-take financing, and a
variety of other instruments being considered.
Other Developments at Gahcho Kué
On March 12, 2013, the Company also announced the following developments for the Gahcho Kué Project:
2013 winter ice road
The 2013 winter ice road reached the Gahcho Kué Project site at Kennady Lake on March 2, 2013, with the first loads arriving
on March 4, 2013. Over two subsequent weeks, approximately 110 truckloads of materials, equipment and fuel are expected to be
delivered to Gahcho Kué. The final deliveries are expected before the end of March 2013.
Geophysics
A geophysics team was mobilized to Gahcho Kué in January 2013 and completed a ground gravity survey over 15 high-priority drill
targets. There were 3,230 stations surveyed on 13 grids over the 15 targets. The results from the survey will support final exploration
drill-hole placement.
7
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Geotechnical drilling
Geotechnical drilling related to planned surface infrastructure at Gahcho Kué commenced in February, 2013 and is expected to be
completed before the end of April. A total of 33 sonic holes and 31 core holes will be drilled.
Exploration drilling
Core drilling of the first phase 15 priority geophysical targets is expected to commence before the end of March. A second core drill
rig is being mobilized to site and the first phase drilling is expected to be completed by the end of April. Based on the success of the
first phase drill program, up to a further 14 priority geophysical targets may be drill tested.
Other Exploration
Completion of Plan of Arrangement with Kennady Diamonds Inc.
In January 2012, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had approved a proposal to spin-out the Company’s 100%controlled Kennady North Project into a newly incorporated company, Kennady Diamonds Inc. (“Kennady Diamonds”) through a plan
of arrangement and subject to regulatory, court and shareholder approvals.
On March 12, 2012, Kennady Diamonds and Mountain Province entered into an arrangement agreement (the “Arrangement”)
pursuant to which Mountain Province would transfer its interest in the Kennady North Project, including permits, mining claims, rights
and title, in the Northwest Territories in Canada, and $3,000,000 of cash, to Kennady Diamonds in exchange for one common share
of Kennady Diamonds for every five common shares of Mountain Province outstanding. The Arrangement called for the share capital
of Mountain Province to be reorganized into a new class of shares which would be distributed, with the Kennady Diamonds’ common
shares, to the existing Mountain Province common shareholders.
The Arrangement was approved by the Board of Directors of Mountain Province and was subject to approval by two-thirds of the
votes cast by holders of Mountain Province common shares, at a special meeting of Mountain Province shareholders held on April
25, 2012. The Mountain Province shareholders voted 99.57% in favour of the Arrangement. As well, on April 30, 2012, Mountain
Province received final court approval for the Arrangement. Regulatory approval was obtained by the Toronto Stock Exchange and
the TSX Venture Exchange.
The various transactions under the Arrangement were completed on July 6, 2012, the effective date of the Arrangement. The
Company transferred the Kennady North Project and working capital of $3 million to Kennady Diamonds in exchange for 16,143,111
shares of Kennady Diamonds which in turn were distributed to the Mountain Province shareholders on the basis of one Kennady
Diamonds’ share for every five shares of Mountain Province held by the shareholders.
The Company recorded the fair value of the transaction as a dividend-in-kind. The fair value was calculated by applying the simple
average of the closing share price for Kennady Diamonds on the TSX Venture Exchange for the first five days of its trading to the
number of shares outstanding. The fair value in excess of the book value of the transferred assets was recorded as a gain on asset
transfer of Kennady North in the Company’s Statement of Comprehensive Loss for the year ended December 31, 2012.
8
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Other Matters
Management and Board Appointments
On January 29, 2013, it was announced that Bruce Ramsden had been hired starting February 1, 2013 as the Company’s Vice
President Finance and CFO-designate (effective May 1, 2013), with experience in the Canadian resource sector and particularly, with
arranging debt finance facilities, important to the continued success of the development of the Gahcho Kué Project.
As well, on March 13, 2013, the Company announced that Bruce Dresner, with a distinguished career as an investment professional
and experience on a number of boards of directors and advisory boards, has joined the Company’s Board of Directors.
2012 Rights Offering
On October 10, 2012, the Company announced that it had filed a rights offering circular with the Toronto Stock Exchange (the “TSX”)
and the securities regulators of each of the provinces of Canada (with the exception of Quebec) in respect of a rights offerings to raise
gross proceeds of approximately $47.1 million (the “Offering”) to be used to fund the Company’s 49% share of the initial capital costs
for the Gahcho Kué Project and for general corporate purposes. This amount is sufficient to cover the Company’s share of the initial
capital costs through to the completion of permitting of the Gahcho Kué Project expected in 2013 (see also discussion under Liquidity
and Capital Resources).
Under the Offering, each registered holder of common shares of the Company as of a record date (the “Record Date”) received one
right (a “Right”) for each share held. Six (6) Rights plus the sum of $3.50 (the “Subscription Price”) was required to subscribe for
one share (“Share”). The Rights expired on November 28, 2012 (the “Expiry Date”), after which unexercised Rights were void and
without value. The Rights were listed on the TSX. Shareholders who fully exercised their Rights could have subscribed pro-rata for
any additional Shares not otherwise subscribed for before the expiry date (the “Additional Subscription Privilege”).
The Offering was subject to regulatory approvals, including that of the TSX. The TSX conditionally approved the listing and posting
for trading of the Rights and the common shares of the Company underlying the Rights, subject to satisfaction of certain listing
requirements. The Offering was made in all provinces of Canada (except in Quebec), and in such other jurisdictions where the
Company was eligible to make such an offering. The Company also filed a registration statement on Form F-7 covering the Offering
with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission. On October 18, 2012, the Company announced that it had received acceptance
from the securities regulatory authorities in each of the provinces of Canada, excluding Quebec, for its Offering. The Record Date
was established as close of business on October 30, 2012.
The Company entered into a stand-by agreement with Bottin (International) Investments Ltd. (controlled by Dermot Desmond)
(“Bottin”) under which Bottin had undertaken to fully subscribe for those Rights Shares not otherwise subscribed for on the Expiry
Date.
On November 30, 2012, the Company announced the completion of its Offering. A total of 54,869,243 rights were exercised for
9,144,870 common shares with additional 1,705,199 common shares subscribed for under the Additional Subscription Privilege. A
total of 10,850,069 common shares were subscribed for, which represented an 80.65% take-up under the rights offering.
The balance of the rights shares were taken up by Bottin under the stand-by agreement.
9
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RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The financial results for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010 are reported under IFRS as issued by the IASB, as well
as for the quarterly interim periods.
Selected Annual Information
December 31, 2012
Other income
Operating expenses
Other expenses
Net loss for the period
Basic and diluted loss per share
Cash flow used in operations
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period
Total assets
Long-term liabilities
Dividends declared

December 31, 2011

$ 10,869,407
(14,179,216)
(27,801)
(3,337,610)
(0.04)
(13,786,541)
274,696
95,590,052
6,284,770
Nil

$ 792,835
(12,268,455)
(63,315)
(11,538,935)
(0.15)
(13,672,048)
21,546
65,839,943
6,178,004
Nil

December 31, 2010
$ 122,590
(9,764,476)
(4,892,841)
(14,534,727)
(0.21)
(8,291,339)
23,778,053
70,156,296
5,704,096
Nil

Year ended December 31, 2012 compared to December 31, 2011
The Company’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2012 was $3,337,610 or $0.04 per share, compared to $11,538,935 or
$0.15 per share for the year ended December 31, 2011. Before the dividend-in-kind recorded as a result of the asset transfer to
Kennady Diamonds Inc., the loss for December 31, 2012 was $14,059,255, or $0.17 per share.
Operating expenses were $14,179,216 for the year ended December 31, 2012, and $12,268,455 for the year ended December 31,
2011. Consulting fees, including stock-based compensation of $463,500 for options granted in the first quarter of 2012 ($487,085
granted in the first quarter of 2011), as well as other consulting, were down from approximately $1,631,200 for the year ended
December 31, 2011 to approximately $1,435,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012 due to somewhat reduced consulting activity.
Exploration and evaluation expenses are up from approximately $9,032,600 for the year ended December 31, 2011 to approximately
$10,651,600 for the year ended December 31, 2012 as a result of increased exploration and evaluation expenditures for Gahcho
Kué (with a related increase in the Gahcho Kué management fee) and for the Kennady North Project prior to transfer of the Kennady
North Project to Kennady Diamonds in early July 2012. Professional fees are up from approximately $361,000 for the year ended
December 31, 2011, to approximately $664,900 for the year ended December 31, 2012 primarily attributable to increased legal and
audit fees associated with the Company’s spin-out of the Kennady North Project. Promotion and investor relations costs are up from
approximately $110,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011 to approximately $246,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012
and are attributed to increased costs associated with the spin-out. Office and administration is down for the year ended December
31, 2012 from the same period in 2011 because of foreign exchange losses realized in 2011. Increases in other expense categories
such as travel, transfer agent and regulatory fees, and salary and benefits reflect increased activities for the Company.
Interest income was approximately $147,800 for the year ended December 31, 2012 compared to approximately $303,400 for the
year ended December 31, 2011 as a result of reduced balances for investment from the financings done in 2010. Cash and short-term
investment balances increased late in 2012 with the proceeds from the Company’s Rights Offering which closed November 28, 2012.
Included in other income for December 31, 2012 is the Company’s gain on the asset transfer to Kennady Diamonds of $10,721,645
as a result of the spin-out as previously mentioned.
10

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

Year ended December 31, 2011 compared to December 31, 2010
The Company’s net loss for the year ended December 31, 2011 was $11,538,935 or $0.15 per share, compared to $14,534,727 or
$0.21 per share for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Consulting fees for the year ended December 31, 2011 at $1,631,188 (December 31, 2010 - $721,987) includes a value for stock
based compensation of $487,085 in 2011 (December 31, 2010 - $nil). As well, it includes consulting costs for a variety of corporate
projects such as the Company’s conversion to IFRS.
In the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company’s share of expenses relating to the Gahcho Kué Project included in exploration
and evaluation expenses totalled $8,225,873 (December 31, 2010 – $7,826,126). Also included in exploration and evaluation
expenses is $806,712 incurred by the Company for its Kennady North Project (December 31, 2010 - $47,993) which consists of the
costs for the airborne gravity survey conducted in October 2011 over the Kennady North Project as well as consulting costs relating
to Kennady North.
The increase in the Gahcho Kué Project management fee from $162,613 for the year ended December 31, 2010 to $236,464 reflects
increased activity at the Gahcho Kué Project done by the Operator.
Increases in other expense categories such as travel, transfer agent and regulatory fees, salary and benefits, promotion and investor
relations, and professional fees reflect increased activities for the Company.
The interest income for the year ended December 31, 2011 at $303,354 reflects increased cash and short term investments over the
year compared to the year ended December 31, 2010 (December 31, 2010 - $122,590) after financings done in 2010.
Office and administration for the year ended December 31, 2011 of $458,467 (December 31, 2010 - $200,274) includes foreign
exchange loss of approximately $250,000.
Other expenses in the year ended December 31, 2010 included a loss on revaluation of warrants exerciseable in a foreign currency
in the amount of $4,767,578. In the year ended December 31, 2011, there was a gain on revaluation of warrants exerciseable in a
foreign currency in the amount of $489,481.
11
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Summary of Quarterly Results
December 31, 2012 Fiscal Year

Unaudited
Interest income
Expenses
Gain on asset transfer to Kennady
Diamonds Inc.
Net (loss) income for period
Net (loss) income per share (basic
and diluted)
Cash flow (used in) / provided by
operations
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period
Total Assets
Dividends

Fourth Quarter
December 31,
2012
$
44,313
(3,127,198)

Third Quarter
September 30,
2012
$
8,047
(2,521,631)

Second Quarter
June 30,
2012
$
43,994
(4,078,554)

First Quarter
March 31,
2012
$
51,408
(4,451,833)

-

10,721,645

-

-

(3,089,892)

8,201,130

(4,041,492)

(4,407,356)

(0.04)

0.10

(0.05)

(0.05)

(2,762,916)

(6,409,485)

(4,619,243)

5,103

47,693,693

5,595,571

2,119,667

497,925

95,590,052
Nil

53,038,743
Nil

62,543,069
Nil

66,840,529
Nil

Second Quarter
June 30,
2011
$
76,091
(2,446,824)

First Quarter
March 31,
2011
100,558

December 31, 2011 Fiscal Year
Fourth Quarter
December 31,
2011
$
59,239

Third Quarter
September 30,
2011
$
67,466

Expenses

(5,390,942)

(2,248,809)

Net loss for period
Net loss per share (basic and
diluted)
Cash flow (used in) / provided by
operations
Cash and cash equivalents, end of
period
Total Assets
Dividends

(5,347,662)

(2,197,302)

(2,386,518)

(1,607,453)

(0.07)

(0.03)

(0.03)

(0.02)

(3,997,123)

(2,353,183)

6,285,978

(13,607,720)

21,546

504,895

720,171

1,805,403

65,839,943
Nil

69,937,125
Nil

71,935,129
Nil

70,130,142
Nil

Unaudited
Interest income

$

(2,181,880)

The expenses fluctuate from quarter to quarter based on activity in the Company including exploration and evaluation activity
particularly, as well as consulting, project, and marketing activities.
Three Months Ended December 31, 2012 compared to December 31, 2011
The Company’s net loss during the three months ended December 31, 2012 was $3,089,892, or $0.04 per share, compared with a
net loss of $5,347,662, or $0.07 per share, for the three months ended December 31, 2011.
Expenses were $3,127,198 for the three months ended December 31, 2012 compared to $5,390,942 for the comparative three
months ended December 31, 2011. The decrease is primarily attributable to decreased costs of approximately $2,000,000 for the
Gahcho Kué Project in the three months ended December 31, 2012 compared to the same period of the prior year. Other expense
categories such as consulting fees, office and administration, professional fees, promotion and investor relations, transfer agent
and regulatory fees, and travel totaled approximately $510,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2012, compared to
approximately $814,000 for the three months ended December 31, 2011. Interest income of approximately $7,000 for the three
months ended December 31, 2012 is down compared to the comparative period for the prior year of approximately $16,000 because
of decreased investments as a result of operation funding.
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Gahcho Kué Project
The 2009 Agreement’s provision for consensus decision-making for material strategic and operating decisions provides the Company
with joint control for the Gahcho Kué Project with De Beers Canada, and the Company accounts for the Project as a joint venture.
Accordingly, the Company determined its proportionate share (49%) of the assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses of the Project,
and recorded them in the consolidated financial statements from July 4, 2009.
Summarized below is certain summarized financial information relating to the Company’s proportional interest (49%) in the Gahcho
Kué Joint Venture as at December 31, 2012 and 2011:
Year ended
December 31,
2012
Results of Operations
Revenue
Expenses
Proportionate share of net loss

Year ended
December 31,
2011

$

Cash Flows
Operating activities
Financing activities
Investing activities
Proportionate share of change in cash and cash equivalents

Year ended
December 31,
2010

- $
(10,681,306)
$ (10,681,306) $

- $
(8,540,441)
(8,540,441) $

(8,122,822)
(8,122,822)

$

(9,869,353) $
9,994,998
(91,035)

(7,889,959) $
7,905,220
(15,261)

(6,975,189)
6,982,662
(7,473)

$

34,610

$

As at
December 31, 2012
Financial Position
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Proportionate share of net liabilities

$

$

-

$

-

As at
December 31, 2011

1,516,313 $
6,113,370
(1,633,055)
(6,284,770)
(288,142) $

113,533
5,958,567
(1,756,902)
(6,178,004)
(1,862,806)

Included in Exploration and evaluation expenses on the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the year ended
December 31, 2012 is approximately $1,258,500 of payroll related expenses (December 31, 2011 – approximately $696,500;
December 31, 2010 – approximately $302,100).
The Company’s proportional interest (49%) of commitments made by the operator of the Gahcho Kué Project is $5,160,820. Of this,
approximately $4,147,000 relates to commitments associated with equipment for the Gahcho Kué Project for 2013.
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LIQUIDITY AND CAPITAL RESOURCES
Since inception, the Company’s capital resources have been limited. The Company has had to rely upon the sale of equity securities
to fund property acquisitions, exploration, capital investments and administrative expenses, among other things.
The Company reported working capital of $46,653,539 at December 31, 2012 ($15,064,475 as at December 31, 2011), including cash
and cash equivalents and short-term investments of $47,693,693 ($17,840,729 at December 31, 2011). The short-term investments
reflected in the December 31, 2012 and 2011 figures were guaranteed investment certificates held with a major Canadian financial
institution with no counter party credit risk associated with the bank.
The Company had no long-term debt at December 31, 2012 or at December 31, 2011. The Company’s required contributions payable
to De Beers Canada, described in Note 7 to the Company’s audited consolidated financial statements for December 31, 2012, are
contingent on certain events occurring such as receipt of permits, and production. (See “Overall Performance” section above).
As at December 31, 2012, the Company has not achieved profitable operations and continues to be dependent upon its ability to
obtain external financing to meet the Company’s liabilities as they become payable. The Company’s ability to continue operations
beyond the next twelve months is dependent on the successful permitting, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing
to fund its operations, the successful construction of the Gahcho Kué Project, and the future production or proceeds from developed
properties.
The Company’s primary mineral asset is in the exploration and evaluation stage and, as a result, the Company has no source of
revenues. In the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company incurred losses, had negative cash flows from
operating activities, and will be required to obtain additional sources of financing to complete its business plans going into the
future. Although the Company had working capital of $46,653,539 at December 31, 2012, including $47,693,693 of cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments, the Company has insufficient capital to finance its operations and the Company’s costs of
the Gahcho Kué Project over the next 12 months. The Company is currently investigating various sources of additional funding to
increase the cash balances required for ongoing operations over the foreseeable future. These additional sources include, but are not
limited to, share offerings, private placements, credit and debt facilities, as well as the exercise of outstanding options. However, there
is no certainty that the Company will be able to obtain financing from any of those sources. These conditions indicate the existence
of a material uncertainty that results in substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
The Company’s consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going
concern, and do not reflect adjustments to assets and liabilities that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not
appropriate. These adjustments could be material.
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ARRANGEMENTS
The Company has no off-balance sheet arrangements (see “Commitments”).
14
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates. These
consolidated financial statements include estimates, which, by their nature, are uncertain and may require accounting adjustments
based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and
future economic conditions, and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
i)
Significant Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies
The areas which require management to make significant judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies in
determining carrying values include, but are not limited to:
a)
Mineral reserves
The information relating to the geological data on the size, depth and shape of the ore body requires complex geological
judgments to interpret the data. Changes in the proven mineral reserves or measured and indicated and inferred mineral
estimates may impact the carrying value of the properties.
b)
Impairment analysis – mineral properties
The Company reviews its Mineral Properties for impairment based on results to date and when events and changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. IFRS 6 - Exploration for and evaluation
of mineral resources and IAS 36 – Impairment of assets requires the Company to make certain judgments in respect of
such events and changes in circumstances, and in assessing their impact on the valuations of the affected assets. The
Company’s assessment is that as at December 31, 2012, there are no indicators of impairment in the carrying value of its
mineral properties.
ii)

Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The areas which require management to make significant estimates and assumptions in determining carrying values include,
but are not limited to:
a)
Mineral reserves and resources
Mineral reserve and resource estimates include numerous uncertainties and depend heavily on geological interpretations
and statistical inferences drawn from drilling and other data, and require estimates of future price for the commodity and
future cost of operations. The mineral reserve and resources are subject to uncertainty and actual results may vary from
these estimates. Results from drilling, testing and production, as well as material changes in commodity prices and operating
costs subsequent to the date of the estimate, may justify revision of such estimates. Changes in the proven and probable
mineral reserves or measured and indicated and inferred mineral resources estimates may impact the carrying value of the
properties.
b)
Impairment analysis - mineral properties
The Company reviews its mineral properties for impairment based on results to date and when events and changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. If indicators of impairment are identified,
management will perform an impairment test in accordance with IAS 36 – Impairment of assets (“IAS 36”). IAS 36 requires
the Company to make certain judgments, assumptions, and estimates in determining the estimate of the net recoverable
amount. Impairments are recognized when the carrying values exceed management’s estimate of the net recoverable
amounts associated with the affected assets. The values shown on the consolidated balance sheet for Mineral Properties
represent the Company’s assumption that the amounts are recoverable. As a result of the numerous variables associated
with the Company’s judgments and assumptions, the precision and accuracy of estimates of recoverable amount is subject
to significant uncertainties, and may change significantly as additional information becomes known.
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c)
Provision for decommissioning and restoration
The decommissioning and restoration liability and the accretion recorded are based on estimates of future cash flows,
discount rates, and assumptions regarding timing. The estimates are subject to change and the actual costs for the
decommissioning and restoration liability may change significantly.
d)
Stock options
The stock option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected life and volatility.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
e)
Deferred taxes
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and tax bases
of assets and liabilities and on unused losses carried forward, and are measured using the substantively enacted tax rates
that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse or losses are expected to be utilized. Deferred
tax assets are recorded to recognize tax benefits only to the extent that, based on available evidence, including forecasts, it
is probable that they will be realized.
STANDARDS, AMENDMENTS AND INTERPRETATIONS TO EXISTING STANDARDS THAT ARE NOT YET EFFECTIVE AND
HAVE NOT BEEN ADOPTED EARLY BY THE COMPANY
At the date of authorization of the Company’s consolidated audited financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and
interpretations to existing standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Company.
The Company anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Company’s accounting policy for the first
period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that
are expected to be relevant to the Company’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not
discussed below.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The IASB aims to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in its entirety. IFRS 9 uses a single approach
to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach
in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Two measurement categories continue to exist to account for financial liability in IFRS 9
– fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and amortized cost. Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL, and all
other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost unless the fair value option is applied. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2015. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements.
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IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 10 requires an entity to consolidate an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee, Under existing IFRS, consolidation is required
when an entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. IFRS
10 replaces SIC-12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities and parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.
IFRS 10 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 10 on
its consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 11 requires a venture to classify its interest in a joint arrangement as a joint venture or joint operation. Joint ventures will be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting whereas for a joint operation, the venturer will recognize its share of each of
the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint operation. Under existing IFRS, entities have the choice to proportionately
consolidate or equity account for interest in joint ventures. IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC-13 Jointly
Controlled Entities – Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013. The Company has determined that its interest in its joint arrangement, the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, is a joint operation,
and therefore the adoption of this standard will not have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements as the Company
will continue to proportionately consolidate its interest in the Gahcho Kué Project
IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities was issued by the IASB in May 2011. The new standard includes disclosure
requirements about subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, as well as unconsolidated structured entities and replaces existing
disclosure requirements. IFRS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with early adoption permitted.
The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 12 on its consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 is a comprehensive standard for fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across all IFRS statements.
The new standard clarifies that fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants, at the measurement date. It also establishes disclosures about fair value measurement.
Under existing IFRS, guidance on measuring and disclosing fair value is dispersed among the specific standards requiring fair value
measurements and in many cases does not reflect a clear measurement basis or consistent disclosures. IFRS 13 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 13 on its consolidated financial
statements.
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
On October 20, 2011, the IASB issued a new interpretation, IFRIC 20, to address accounting issues regarding waste removal
costs incurred in surface mining activities during the production phase of a mine, referred to as production stripping costs. The
new interpretation addresses the classification and measurement of production stripping costs as either inventory or as a tangible
or intangible non-current ‘stripping activity asset’. The standard also provides guidance for the depreciation or amortization and
impairment of such assets. IFRIC 20 is effective for reporting years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, although earlier application
is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRIC 20 on its consolidated financial statements.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Company’s related parties include the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, Bottin, key management and their close family members, and
the Company’s directors. Kennady Diamonds Inc. (“Kennady Diamonds”) is also a related party since the Company and Kennady
Diamonds have common members of key management.
None of the transactions with related parties incorporate special terms and conditions, and no guarantees were given or received.
Related party transactions are recorded at their exchange amount, being the amount agreed to by the parties. Outstanding balances
are settled in cash.
The Company had the following transactions and balances with its related parties including key management personnel and the
Company’s directors, Bottin, the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, and Kennady Diamonds. The transactions with key management
personnel are in the nature of remuneration. The transactions with the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture relate to the funding of the
Company’s interest in the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture for the current year’s expenditures and capital additions. The transactions with
Kennady Diamonds are for a monthly management fee charged by the Company and reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of
Kennady Diamonds.

The total of the transactions:
Bottin - Stand-by Fee under Stand-by Agreement (Note 9(ii))
Kennady Diamonds
Gahcho Kue Joint Venture expenditures
Remuneration
The amount of outstanding balances:
Payable to the Gahcho Kue Joint Venture
Payable to key management personnel

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

December 31,
2010

706,261
120,940
10,729,343
1,477,715

1,450,068

716,978

685,290
30,180

313,000

186,619

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 were as follows:
December 31,
2012
$ 1,014,215
463,500
$ 1,477,715

Salary, bonus and other short-term employee benefits
Share-based payments

December 31,
2011
$
962,983
487,085
$ 1,450,068

December 31,
2010
$
716,978
$
716,978

In accordance with IAS 24 Related Parties, key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly, including any directors (executive and nonexecutive) of the Company.
Contractual Obligations
The Company has consulting agreements with the President and CEO, Patrick Evans, and the Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Secretary, Jennifer Dawson, for their services in these capacities. Effective February 1, 2013, the Company also has a consulting
agreement with the Vice President Finance and CFO-designate, Bruce Ramsden, for his services in this capacity.
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COMMITMENTS
The total future minimum lease payments for office space by the Company under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Future minimum lease payments

2013

2014

2015

2016

$ 142,256

$ 142,256

$ 142,256

$ 142,256

$

2017

Total

11,855

$ 580,879

(See also discussion of Gahcho Kué Project for commitments relating to the Gahcho Kué Project)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Company’s financial instruments are described in Note 5 to the Company’s accompanying audited consolidated financial
statements.
OTHER MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS REQUIREMENTS
RISKS
Mountain Province’s business of exploring, permitting and developing mineral resources involves a variety of operational, financial
and regulatory risks that are typical in the mining industry. The Company attempts to mitigate these risks and minimize their effect on
its financial performance, but there is no guarantee that the Company will be profitable in the future, and investing in the Company’s
common shares should be considered speculative.
Mountain Province’s business of exploring, permitting and developing mineral properties is subject to a variety of risks and
uncertainties, including, without limitation:
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§
§

risks and uncertainties relating to the interpretation of drill results, the geology, grade and continuity of mineral deposits;
results of initial feasibility, pre-feasibility and feasibility studies, and the possibility that future exploration, development or mining
results will not be consistent with the Company's expectations;
mining exploration risks, including risks related to accidents, equipment breakdowns or other unanticipated difficulties with or
interruptions in production;
the potential for delays in exploration activities or the completion of feasibility studies;
risks related to the inherent uncertainty of exploration and cost estimates and the potential for unexpected costs and expenses;
risks related to foreign exchange fluctuations and prices of diamonds;
risks related to commodity price fluctuations;
the uncertainty of profitability based upon the Company's history of losses;
risks related to failure of the Company and/or its joint venture partner to obtain adequate financing on a timely basis and on
acceptable terms, particularly given recent volatility in the global financial markets;
development and production risks including and particularly risks for weather conducive to the building and use of the Tibbitt to
Contwoyto Winter Road;
risks related to environmental regulation, permitting and liability;
political and regulatory risks associated with mining and exploration;
geological and technical conditions at the Company’s Gahcho Kué Project being adequate to permit development;
the ability to develop and operate the Company’s Gahcho Kué Project on an economic basis and in accordance with applicable
timelines;
aboriginal rights and title;
failure of plant, equipment, processes and transportation services to operate as anticipated;
possible variations in ore grade or recovery rates, permitting timelines, capital expenditures, reclamation activities, land titles,
and social and political developments, and other risks of the mining industry; and
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§

other risks and uncertainties related to the Company's prospects, properties and business strategy.

As well, there can be no assurance that any further funding required by the Company will become available to it, and if so, that it will
be offered on reasonable terms, or that the Company will be able to secure such funding. Furthermore, there is no assurance that the
Company will be able to secure new mineral properties or projects, or that they can be secured on competitive terms.
DISCLOSURE OF OUTSTANDING SHARE DATA
The Company’s common shares are traded on the Toronto Stock Exchange (TSX) under the symbol MPV and on the New York Stock
Exchange MKT under the symbol MDM.
At March 28, 2013, there were 94,168,151 shares issued and 1,044,000 stock options outstanding. There were no warrants
outstanding.
There are an unlimited number of common shares without par value authorized to be issued by the Company.
CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Disclosure Controls and Procedures
Disclosure controls and procedures are designed to provide reasonable assurance that all relevant information is gathered and
reported to senior management, including the Company’s Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, on a timely basis so
that appropriate decisions can be made regarding public disclosure. Management of the Company has evaluated the effectiveness of
the Company’s disclosure controls and procedures as at December 31, 2012 as required by Canadian securities laws. Based on that
evaluation, the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Financial Officer have concluded that, as of December 31, 2012, the disclosure
controls and procedures were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information required to be disclosed in the Company’s
annual filings and interim filings (as such terms are defined under National Instrument 52-109) and other reports filed or submitted
under Canadian securities laws is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within the time periods specified by those laws
and that material information is accumulated and communicated to management of the Company as appropriate to allow for accurate
disclosure to be made on a timely basis.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting (“ICFR”)
The Company’s management, under the supervision of the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, are responsible
for establishing and maintaining the Company’s ICFR. Management has conducted an evaluation of internal control over financial
reporting based on the framework established in “Internal Control – Integrated Framework” issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission as at December 31, 2012. There have not been any changes in the Company’s ICFR
or in other factors during 2012 or that have been identified in connection with the evaluation that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2012, that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, the Company’s ICFR.
Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting
Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for the Company.
Management has designed such internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with IFRS as issued by the
International Accounting Standards Board.
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Because of its inherent limitations, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all possible
misstatements or frauds. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
To evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, Management has used the Internal Control –
Integrated Framework, which is a suitable, recognized control framework established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting and concluded that such internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2012.
OUTLOOK
The Company is continuing the permitting and development of the Gahcho Kué Project. As well, the Company is engaging with De
Beers Canada with respect to a follow-up program to achieve the original objective of the Tuzo Deep Drill Program of defining a
kimberlite resource to 750 meters, and working with the Operator to finalize the mineral resource estimate from the Tuzo Deep Drilling
Program for release in Q2 2013.
The Company closed its Rights Offering financing (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources”) on November 28, 2012. Additionally, the
Company is investigating multiple financing proposals including project financing, off-take financing and a variety of other financing
instruments. These are being considered together with alternatives available to finance the ongoing operations of the Company.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional disclosures relating to the Company is available on the Internet at the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com, and on the
Company’s website at www.mountainprovince.com.
Cautionary Statement on Forward-Looking Statements
This MD&A contains “forward-looking statements” concerning the Company’s anticipated results and developments in the Company’s
operations in future periods, planned exploration and development of its properties, plans related to its business and other matters
that may occur in the future, made as of the date of this MD&A.
Forward-looking statements may include, but are not limited to, statements with respect to future remediation and reclamation
activities, future mineral exploration, the estimation of mineral reserves and mineral resources, the realization of mineral reserve and
mineral resource estimates, the timing of activities and the amount of estimated revenues and expenses, the success of exploration
activities, permitting time lines, requirements for additional capital, and sources and uses of funds.
Forward-looking statements are subject to a variety of known and unknown risks, uncertainties and other factors which could cause
actual events or results to differ from those expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Such factors include, among
others, risks related to actual results of exploration activities; actual results of remediation and reclamation activities; conclusions of
economic evaluations; changes in project parameters as plans continue to be refined; future prices of diamonds; possible variations
in ore reserves, grade or recovery rates; failure of plant, equipment or processes to operate as anticipated; accidents, labour
disputes and other risks of the mining industry; and delays in obtaining governmental approvals or financing or in the completion of
development activities.
The Company undertakes no obligation to publicly update or review the forward-looking statements whether as a result of new
information, future events or otherwise, other than as required under applicable securities laws.
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Historical results of operations and trends that may be inferred from the following discussions and analysis may not necessarily
indicate future results from operations.
Cautionary Note to U.S. Investors – Information Concerning Preparation of Resource Estimates
This MD&A has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the securities laws in effect in Canada, which differ from the
requirements of United States securities laws. Unless otherwise indicated, all resource and reserve estimates included in this MD&A
have been prepared in accordance with NI 43-101 and the Canadian Institute of Mining and Metallurgy Classification System. NI
43-101 is a rule developed by the Canadian Securities Administrators which establishes standards for all public disclosure an issuer
makes of scientific and technical information concerning mineral projects.
Canadian standards, including NI 43-101, differ significantly from the requirements of Industry Guide 7 promulgated by the United
States Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) under the United States Securities Act of 1933, as amended, and resource and
reserve information contained herein may not be comparable to similar information disclosed by U.S. companies. In particular, and
without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the term “resource” does not equate to the term “reserves”. Under U.S. standards,
mineralization may not be classified as a “reserve” unless the determination has been made that the mineralization could be
economically and legally produced or extracted at the time the reserve determination is made. The SEC's disclosure standards
under Industry Guide 7 do not define the terms and normally do not permit the inclusion of information concerning “measured mineral
resources”, “indicated mineral resources” or “inferred mineral resources” or other descriptions of the amount of mineralization in
mineral deposits that do not constitute “reserves” by U.S. standards in documents filed with the SEC. U.S. Investors should also
understand that “inferred mineral resources” have a great amount of uncertainty as to their existence and great uncertainty as to their
economic and legal feasibility. It cannot be assumed that all or any part of an “inferred mineral resource” will ever be upgraded to a
higher category. Under Canadian rules, estimated “inferred mineral resources” may not form the basis of feasibility or pre-feasibility
studies except in rare cases. Investors are cautioned not to assume that all or any part of an “inferred mineral resource” exists or is
economically or legally mineable.
Disclosure of “contained ounces” (or “contained carats”) in a resource is permitted disclosure under Canadian regulations; however,
the SEC normally only permits issuers to report mineralization that does not constitute “reserves” by SEC standards as in place
tonnage and grade without reference to unit measures. The requirements of NI 43-101 for identification of “reserves” are also not the
same as those of the SEC’s Industry Guide 7, and reserves reported by the Company in compliance with NI 43-101 may not qualify
as “reserves” under Industry Guide 7 standards. Accordingly, information concerning mineral deposits set forth herein may not be
comparable with information made public by companies that report in accordance with U. S. standards.
On behalf of the Board of Directors,
“Patrick Evans”
Patrick Evans
President & CEO
March 28, 2013
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
RESPONSIBILITY FOR
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. (the "Company") are the responsibility of
the Board of Directors.
The consolidated financial statements have been prepared by management, on behalf of the Board of Directors, in accordance
with the accounting policies disclosed in the notes to the consolidated financial statements. Where necessary, management has
made informed judgments and estimates in accounting for transactions which were not complete at the balance sheet date. The
consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board appropriate in the circumstances.
Management has established processes, which are in place to provide sufficient knowledge to support management representations
that management has exercised reasonable diligence that the consolidated financial statements fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition, results of operations and cash flows of the Company, as of the date of and for the periods presented by the
consolidated financial statements.
The Board of Directors is responsible for reviewing and approving the consolidated financial statements together with other financial
information of the Company and for ensuring that management fulfills its financial reporting responsibilities. An Audit Committee
assists the Board of Directors in fulfilling this responsibility.
The Audit Committee meets with management to review the financial reporting process and the consolidated financial statements
together with other financial information of the Company. The Audit Committee reports its findings to the Board of Directors for its
consideration in approving the consolidated financial statements together with other financial information of the Company for issuance
to the shareholders.
Management recognizes its responsibility for conducting the Company’s affairs in compliance with International Financial Reporting
Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board, and applicable laws and regulations, and for maintaining
proper standards of conduct for its activities.
“Patrick C. Evans”
Patrick C. Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer

“Jennifer Dawson”
Jennifer Dawson
Chief Financial Officer

Toronto, Canada
March 28, 2013
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
MANAGEMENT’S ANNUAL REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting for
the Company. Management has designed such internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
Because of its inherent limitations, the Company’s internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect all possible
misstatements or frauds. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate.
To evaluate the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting, Management has used the Internal Control –
Integrated Framework, which is a suitable, recognized control framework established by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”). Management has assessed the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting and concluded that such internal control over financial reporting is effective as of December 31, 2012. The Company's
independent auditors, KPMG LLP, have issued an unqualified opinion on the effectiveness of the Company's internal control over
financial reporting.
March 28, 2013
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KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Bay Adelaide Centre
333 Bay Street, Suite 4600
Toronto, ON M5H 2S5

Telephone (416) 777-8500
Telefax (416) 777-8818
www.kpmg.ca

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT OF REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Shareholders of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc., which comprise the
consolidated balance sheets as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the consolidated statements of comprehensive loss,
equity and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, and notes, comprising a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards, as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board and for such internal control
as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our audits
in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.
An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider internal control
relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated
financial statements.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained in our audits is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated financial position of
Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. as at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012 in accordance with International
Financial Reporting Standards as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board.
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KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Bay Adelaide Centre
333 Bay Street, Suite 4600
Toronto, ON M5H 2S5

Telephone (416) 777-8500
Telefax (416) 777-8818
www.kpmg.ca

Emphasis of Matter
Without modifying our opinion, we draw attention to Note 1 in the consolidated financial statements which describes that the Company
expects to require additional capital resources to meet planned expenditures in 2013. These conditions, along with other matters as
set forth in Note 1, indicate the existence of a material uncertainty that casts substantial doubt about the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern.
Other Matter
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States),
Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria
established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO), and our report dated March 28, 2013 expressed an unmodified (unqualified) opinion on the effectiveness of
Mountain Province Diamond Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting.

Chartered Accountants, Licensed Public Accountants
Toronto, Canada
March 28, 2013
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KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Bay Adelaide Centre
333 Bay Street, Suite 4600
Toronto, ON M5H 2S5

Telephone (416) 777-8500
Telefax (416) 777-8818
www.kpmg.ca

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING
To the Shareholders of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.
We have audited Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2012, based on the
criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission (COSO). Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.’s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, in the accompanying
“Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting”. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the
Company’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.
We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States).
Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control
over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control
over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating
effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. Our audit also included performing such other procedures as we
considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to
the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the
company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only
in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements.
Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections
of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes
in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
In our opinion, Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting
as of December 31, 2012, based on the criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSO).
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KPMG LLP
Chartered Accountants
Bay Adelaide Centre
333 Bay Street, Suite 4600
Toronto, ON M5H 2S5

Telephone (416) 777-8500
Telefax (416) 777-8818
www.kpmg.ca

We also have audited, in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards and the standards of the Public
Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated balance sheets of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. as
of December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and the related consolidated statements of comprehensive loss, equity and cash
flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended December 31, 2012, and our report dated March 28, 2013 expressed an
unmodified (unqualified) opinion on those consolidated financial statements.

Toronto, Canada
March 28, 2013
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.

Consolidated Balance Sheets
In Canadian dollars
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011
2012
ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents (Note 5)
Short-term investments (Note 5)
Marketable securities (Note 5)
Amounts receivable (Note 5)
Advances and prepaid expenses

$

274,696
47,418,997
9,521
337,907
722,402

2011

$

21,546
17,819,183
17,678
1,286,174
101,641

48,763,523

19,246,222

146,010
46,680,519

43,225
46,550,496

Total assets

$ 95,590,052

$ 65,839,943

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5)

$

$

Property and equipment (Note 6)
Mineral properties (Note 7)

Decommissioning and restoration liability (Note 8)

6,284,770

Shareholders' equity:
Share capital (Note 9)
Share-based payments reserve (Note 9)
Deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive income
Total shareholders' equity
Total liabilities and shareholders' equity
The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
Going concern (Note 1)
Contingencies and commitments (Notes 7 and 11)
Subsequent events (Note 9 (iii))
On behalf of the Board:
“Patrick Evans”
Director

2,109,984

“Jonathan Comerford”
Director
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2,529,561
6,178,004

180,170,247
1,233,857
(94,213,695)
4,889

146,911,995
1,083,422
(90,876,085)
13,046

87,195,298

57,132,378

$ 95,590,052

$ 65,839,943

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss
In Canadian dollars
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Expenses:
Consulting fees
Depreciation
Exploration and evaluation expenses (Note 7)
Gahcho Kué Project management fee
Office and administration
Professional fees
Promotion and investor relations
Salary and benefits
Transfer agent and regulatory fees
Travel
Net loss for the period from operations

$

(1,434,917) $
(21,246)
(10,651,622)
(311,076)
(285,698)
(664,878)
(245,936)
(166,668)
(200,461)
(196,714)

(1,631,188) $
(14,789)
(9,032,585)
(236,464)
(458,467)
(361,148)
(109,854)
(97,812)
(169,489)
(156,659)

(721,987)
(8,820)
(7,965,708)
(162,613)
(200,274)
(340,051)
(78,499)
(45,162)
(124,255)
(117,107)

$

(14,179,216) $

(12,268,455) $

(9,764,476)

Other expenses:
Accretion expense on decommissioning and restoration liability
Other income:
Interest income
Gain (loss) on revaluation of warrants exerciseable in a foreign
currency
Gain on asset transfer to Kennady Diamonds Inc. (Note 15)

(27,801)

(63,315)

(125,263)

147,762

303,354

122,590

-

489,481

10,721,645

-

(4,767,578)
-

Net loss for the period

$

(3,337,610) $

(11,538,935) $

(14,534,727)

Other Comprehensive (Loss) Income
Change in fair value of available-for-sale marketable securities
Comprehensive loss for the period

$

(8,157)
(3,345,767) $

(5,384)
(11,544,319) $

9,631
(14,525,096)

Basic and diluted loss per share (Note 9)

$

(0.04) $

(0.15) $

(0.21)

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

82,191,626

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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79,553,515

70,833,448

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Equity
In Canadian dollars

Accumulated
other
Number of

Share-based

comprehensive

Share Capital

Warrants

$ 97,312,714

$ 1,051,564

1,238,302

$ (64,802,423)

-

-

-

(14,534,727)

10,076,177

33,048,756

-

-

Issuance of common shares – exercise of options

150,000

326,000

-

Issuance of common shares – exercise of warrants

558,134

1,251,928

-

-

212,000

-

-

1,111,846

-

-

81,622

shares
Balance, January 1, 2010

66,631,746

Net loss for the year
Issuance of common shares – private placement

Fair value of options exercised from Share-based Payments
Reserve
Fair value of warrants exercised (exercisable in a foreign
currency)
Fair value of warrants exercised transferred from Warrants

Payments Reserve
$

Deficit

income (loss)
$

8,799

gains
Balance, December 31, 2010
Net loss for the period
Issuance of common shares – exercise of options
Issuance of common shares – exercise of warrants
Fair value of options exercised from Share-based Payments
Reserve

$ 34,808,956

-

(14,534,727)

-

-

33,048,756

-

-

-

326,000

-

-

-

1,251,928

-

-

-

(212,000)

1,111,846

(81,622)

-

-

-

Other Comprehensive Income (loss):
Available-for-sale financial assets - current year unrealized

Total

-

-

-

-

77,416,057

$ 133,344,866

1,026,302

$ (79,337,150)

-

-

-

-

(11,538,935)

270,635

665,000

-

-

-

-

665,000

2,658,866

7,242,471

-

-

-

-

7,242,471

-

429,965

-

-

-

-

$

969,942

$

(429,965)

(969,942)

$

9,631

9,631

18,430

$ 56,022,390

-

(11,538,935)

Fair value of warrants exercised transferred from Warrants

-

969,942

-

-

-

-

Fair value of warrants (exercised in a foreign currency)

-

4,259,751

-

-

-

-

4,259,751

Fair value of options grant in period

-

-

-

487,085

-

-

487,085

-

-

-

-

-

80,345,558

$ 146,911,995

-

-

13,452,593

46,062,632

370,000

604,200

-

-

313,065

-

-

Other Comprehensive Loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets - current period unrealized
losses
Balance, December 31, 2011
Net loss for the year
Issuance of common shares – Rights Offering, net of costs
(Note 9(ii))
Issuance of common shares – exercise of options
Fair value of options exercised from Share-based Payments
Reserve
Fair value of options granted in period

-

Dividend-in-kind (Note 15)

-

$

-

$

1,083,422

$ (90,876,085)

-

(3,337,610)

-

(5,384)
$

13,046
-

(5,384)
$ 57,132,378
(3,337,610)
46,062,632

(13,721,645)

-

-

-

604,200

(313,065)

-

-

-

-

463,500

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

463,500
(13,721,645)

Other Comprehensive Loss:
Available-for-sale financial assets - current period unrealized
losses
Balance, December 31, 2012

-

-

94,168,151

$ 180,170,247

$

-

$

1,233,857

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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$ (94,213,695)

(8,157)
$

4,889

(8,157)
$ 87,195,298

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows
In Canadian dollars
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities:
Net loss for the period

$

Adjustments:
Gain on asset transfer to Kennady Diamonds Inc. (Note 15)
(Gain) loss on revaluation of warrants exerciseable in a foreign
currency (Note 9 (ii))
Interest expense on decommissioning and restoration liability
Depreciation
Stock-based compensation (Note 9)
Interest income
Changes in non-cash operating working capital:
Amounts receivable
Advances and prepaid expenses
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

(10,721,645)

Investing activities:
Mineral properties
Interest income
Purchase of property and equipment
Investment in short-term investments
Financing activities:
Transfer to Kennady Diamonds Inc. (Note 15)
Share issuance, net of costs (Note 9(ii))
Proceeds from option exercises
Proceeds from Rights Offering (Note 9(ii))
Proceeds from warrant exercises (Note 9(ii))

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period
Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

(3,337,610) $

$

(11,538,935) $
-

(14,534,727)
-

27,801
21,246
463,500
(147,762)

(489,481)
63,315
14,789
487,085
(303,354)

4,767,578
125,263
8,820
(122,590)

948,267
(620,761)
(419,577)
(13,786,541)

(786,983)
32,533
(1,151,017)
(13,672,048)

(229,212)
(95,001)
1,788,530
(8,291,339)

(51,058)
147,762
(124,031)
(29,599,814)
(29,627,141)

(10,237,929)
303,354
(15,261)
(8,042,094)
(17,991,930)

(2,837,596)
122,590
(7,473)
(43,371)
(2,765,850)

(3,000,000)
604,200
46,062,632
43,666,832

665,000
7,242,471
7,907,471

33,048,756
326,000
1,251,928
34,626,684

253,150
21,546
274,696 $

The notes to the consolidated financial statements are an integral part of these statements.
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(23,756,507)
23,778,053
21,546 $

23,569,495
208,559
23,778,054

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
In Canadian Dollars
1.
NATURE OF OPERATIONS AND GOING CONCERN
Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. (“Mountain Province” or the “Company”) was incorporated on December 2, 1986 under the British
Columbia Company Act. The Company amended its articles and continued incorporation under the Ontario Business Corporation
Act effective May 8, 2006. The Company is involved in the discovery and development of diamond properties in Canada’s Northwest
Territories.
The address of the Company’s registered office and its principal place of business is 161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, PO Box 216,
Toronto, ON, Canada, M5J 2S1. The Company’s shares are listed on the Toronto Stock Exchange under the symbol ‘MPV’ and on
the New York Stock Exchange – MKT under the symbol ‘MDM’.
The Company is in the process of developing and permitting its mineral properties primarily in conjunction with De Beers Canada Inc.
(“De Beers Canada”) (Note 7). The underlying value and recoverability of the amounts shown as “Mineral Properties” is dependent
upon the ability of the Company and/or its mineral property partner to develop economically recoverable reserves, to have successful
permitting and development, and upon future profitable production or proceeds from disposition of the Company’s mineral properties.
Failure to develop economically recoverable reserves will require the Company to write off costs capitalized to date.
As at December 31, 2012, the Company has not achieved profitable operations and continues to be dependent upon its ability to
obtain external financing to meet the Company’s liabilities as they become payable. The Company’s ability to continue operations
beyond the next twelve months is dependent on the successful permitting, the ability of the Company to obtain necessary financing
to fund its operations, the successful construction of the Gahcho Kué Project, and the future production or proceeds from developed
properties.
The Company’s primary mineral asset is in the exploration and evaluation stage and, as a result, the Company has no source of
revenues. In each of the years December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010, the Company incurred losses, and had negative cash flows
from operating activities, and will be required to obtain additional sources of financing to complete its business plans going into the
future. Although the Company had working capital of $46,653,539 at December 31, 2012, including $47,693,693 of cash and cash
equivalents and short-term investments, the Company has insufficient capital to finance its operations and the Company’s costs of
the Gahcho Kué Project (Note 7) over the next 12 months. The Company is currently investigating various sources of additional
funding to increase the cash balances required for ongoing operations over the foreseeable future. These additional sources include,
but are not limited to, share offerings, private placements, credit and debt facilities, as well as the exercise of outstanding options.
However, there is no certainty that the Company will be able to obtain financing from any of those sources. These conditions indicate
the existence of a material uncertainty that results in substantial doubt as to the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.
These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis that the Company will continue as a going concern, and do
not reflect adjustments to assets and liabilities that would be necessary if the going concern assumption were not appropriate. These
adjustments could be material.
Authorization of Financial Statements
The consolidated financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2012 (including comparatives) were approved by the Board
of Directors on March 28, 2013.
2.
BASIS OF PRESENTATION
These consolidated financial statements of the Company, including its subsidiaries and joint venture, were prepared in accordance
with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”). The
policies set out below were consistently applied to all the periods presented.
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For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
In Canadian Dollars
These financial statements were prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of cash and cash
equivalents, short-term investments and available-for-sale financial assets at fair value.
3.
SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(i)
Basis of Preparation
The consolidated financial statements are presented in accordance with IAS 1, Presentation of Financial Statements.
The Company has elected to present the ‘Statements of Comprehensive Loss’ as a single financial statement with its statements of
loss, titled ‘Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss’.
The significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements are set out below.
(ii)
Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Company’s
interest in the Gahcho Kué Project has been proportionally consolidated (see Note 7).
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company. Control is defined as the power to govern the financial and operating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. Subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the
date control is obtained until the date control ceases. All intercompany balances, transactions, income, expenses, profits and losses,
including unrealized gains and losses have been eliminated on consolidation.
The Company’s interest in the Gahcho Kué Project is bound by a contractual arrangement establishing joint control over the joint
venture through required unanimous consent of each of the joint venturers for strategic, financial and operating policies of the Gahcho
Kué Joint Venture. The Company’s interest in the Gahcho Kué Project is managed through a jointly controlled unincorporated entity,
known as the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, in which each of the Company (including its wholly-owned subsidiary, Camphor Ventures
Inc.), and its joint venture partner, De Beers Canada, have an interest. The Gahcho Kué Joint Venture management committee has
two representatives of each of Mountain Province and De Beers Canada. The joint venture partners have appointed De Beers Canada
as the operator of the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture.
(iii)
Foreign Currency
The Company’s presentation currency is the Canadian Dollar (“CAD”). The functional currency of the Company, its subsidiaries, and
the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture is the Canadian Dollar.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, transactions in currencies other than the Company’s functional currency, known
as foreign currencies, are recognized at the rates of exchange prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting
period, monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary items
carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are re-translated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value
was determined.
Exchange differences are recognized in profit or loss in the period in which they arise and presented in consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Loss within Office and administration.
During the year ended December 31, 2012, $6,792 of foreign exchange loss was recognized in Office and administrative costs, in the
Company’s consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss (December 31, 2011 - $241,564; December 31, 2010 - $41,130).
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In Canadian Dollars
(iv)
Interest income
Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Company and the
amount of income can be measured reliably. Interest income is accrued on the basis of time that has passed, by reference to the
principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate applicable.
(v)
Share-based payments
Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services are measured at the fair value of the equity
instruments at the grant date. Details regarding the determination of the fair value of equity-settled share-based payment transactions
are set out in Note 9.
The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is expensed to the consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Loss over the vesting period, if any, which is the period during which the employee becomes unconditionally entitled
to equity instruments. At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest, if any.
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees, if any, are measured at the fair value of the
goods or services received, except where that fair value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments granted, measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the counterparty renders the service.
(vi)
Income Taxes and Deferred Taxes
The income tax expense or benefit for the period consists of two components: current and deferred. Income tax expense or benefit is
recognized in the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss except to the extent it relates to a business combination or items
recognized directly in equity.
Current tax is the expected tax payable or receivable on the taxable profit or loss for the year. Current tax is calculated using tax
rates and laws that were enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in each of the jurisdictions and includes any
adjustments for taxes payable or recovery in respect of prior periods.
Taxable profit or loss differs from profit or loss as reported in the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss because of items
of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years, and items that are never taxable or deductible.
Deferred tax is recognized on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial statements
and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for
all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences, loss
carryforwards and tax credit carryforwards to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which they
can be utilized. To the extent that the Company does not consider it to be probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, loss carryforwards, and tax credit carryforwards can be utilized, a deferred tax asset is not
recognized.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a
business combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting profit.
Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and associates,
and interests in joint ventures, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognized to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilize the benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability is settled
or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting
period. The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Company expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against current tax
liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax
assets and liabilities on a net basis.
Current and deferred taxes are recognized in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly into equity, in which case, the current and deferred taxes are also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
(vii)
Mineral properties and exploration and evaluation costs
Exploration and evaluation (“E&E”) costs are those costs required to find a mineral property and determine commercial viability. E&E
costs include costs to establish an initial mineral resource and determine whether inferred mineral resources can be upgraded to
measured and indicated mineral resources and whether measured and indicated mineral resources can be converted to proven and
probable reserves.
Exploration and evaluation costs consist of:
·
·
·
·
·

gathering exploration data through topographical and geological studies;
exploratory drilling, trenching and sampling;
determining the volume and grade of the resource;
test work on geology, metallurgy, mining, geotechnical and environmental; and
conducting and refining engineering, marketing and financial studies.

Costs in relation to these activities are expensed as incurred until such time as the Company makes a formal decision to develop
a mine to extract the mineral reserves. Once the decision to develop the mine is made, and subject to an impairment analysis,
capitalized acquisition costs included in the Mineral Properties are transferred to capitalized costs within property and equipment,
or intangible assets, as appropriate. The decision to develop a mine may be impacted by management’s assessment of legal,
environmental, social and governmental factors.
The Company also recognizes exploration and evaluation costs as assets when acquired as part of a business combination, or asset
purchase, or as a result of rights acquired relating to a mineral property. These assets are recognized at fair value, or relative fair
value if applicable. Acquired capitalized exploration and evaluation consists of:
·
·
·

interest in exploration properties,
amounts paid for acquired rights associated with exploration properties, and
amounts paid in connection with sunk cost repayments (Note 7).

(viii)
Property and equipment
Property and equipment are recorded and measured at initial recognition at cost. Amortization is provided on items of property and
equipment so as to write off their carrying value over their expected useful economic lives. Amortization is calculated once the asset
is in use, and at the following rates:
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Office furniture
Vehicles
Production equipment
General infrastructure
Assets under construction

five years, straight line
five years, straight line
five years, straight line
10 years, straight line
not depreciated until production

An item of property and equipment and any significant part initially recognized is derecognized upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in the consolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Loss when the asset is derecognized. The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of amortization are
reviewed at each reporting period, and adjusted prospectively if appropriate.
(ix)
Impairment of non-financial assets
The carrying value of the Company’s capitalized Mineral Properties and property and equipment is assessed for impairment when
indicators of such impairment exist. If any indication of impairment exists, an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount is calculated
to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. The recoverable amount is determined as the higher of the fair value less costs
to sell for the asset and the asset’s value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific
to the asset for which the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
Impairment is determined on an asset by asset basis, whenever possible. If it is not possible to determine impairment on an individual
asset basis, then impairment is considered on the basis of a cash generating unit (“CGU”). CGUs represent the lowest level for which
there are separately identifiable cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash flows from other assets or Company’s other
group of assets. The Company has determined that it operates one CGU.
If the carrying amount of the asset exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is impaired and an impairment loss is charged
immediately to the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss so as to reduce the carrying amount to its recoverable amount.
An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously recognized impairment losses
may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company makes an estimate of the recoverable amount.
A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the
asset’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognized. If this is the case, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. The increased amount cannot exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined
had no impairment loss been recognized for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognized in the consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Loss.
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(x)
Financial instruments
Financial instruments are classified into one of the following four categories: loans and receivables; fair value through profit or
loss; held-to-maturity; and available-for-sale. Financial assets are initially measured at fair value. Subsequent measurement and
recognition of the changes in fair value of financial instruments depends upon their initial classifications, as follows:

·

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include financial assets and financial liabilities
that are held for trading or designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit and loss. These financial
instruments are measured at fair value with changes in fair values recognized in the consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Loss.

·

Financial assets classified as available-for-sale are measured at fair value, with changes in fair values recognized as Other
Comprehensive Income (“OCI”) in the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss, except when there is objective
evidence that the asset is impaired, at which point the cumulative loss that had been previously recognized in OCI is
recognized within the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss.

·

Financial assets classified as held-to-maturity and loans and receivables are measured subsequent to initial recognition at
amortized cost using the effective interest method.

·

Financial liabilities, other than financial liabilities classified as fair value through profit and loss, are measured in subsequent
periods at amortized cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortized cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all
fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or where appropriate, a short period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
The Company has classified its financial instruments as follows:
Asset/Liability
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments
Amounts receivable
Marketable securities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Classification
Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Loans and Receivables
Available-for-Sale
Other liabilities

Measurement
Fair Value
Fair Value
Amortized Cost
Fair Value
Amortized Cost

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents consists of balances with banks and highly liquid short-term investments that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash with original maturities of three months or less when acquired. Short-term investments are
investments with original maturities of greater than three months when acquired (see Note 5).
The Company had no held-to-maturity financial assets at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011.
The market values of marketable securities are determined based on the closing prices reported on recognized securities exchanges
and over-the-counter markets. Such individual market values do not necessarily represent the realizable value of the total holding of
any security, which may be more or less than that indicated by market quotations.
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The fair values of the Company's amounts receivable, advances and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their
carrying values because of the immediate or short-term to maturity of these financial instruments.
Derivative financial liabilities
Derivative instruments, including embedded derivatives, are recorded at their fair value on the date the derivative contract is entered
into. They are subsequently remeasured at their fair value at each consolidated Balance Sheet date, and the changes in the fair value
are recognized in the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss. Fair values for derivative instruments are determined using
valuation techniques, including assumptions based on market conditions existing at the date of the consolidated Balance Sheets.
Warrants denominated or exerciseable in a foreign currency different from the functional currency of the Company meet the definition
of a derivative financial liability and are fair valued at each consolidated Balance Sheet date using the Black-Scholes option pricing
model, with changes in the fair value recognized in the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss. There are no derivative
financial liabilities as at December 31, 2012 or 2011.
(xi)
Provisions
Provisions represent liabilities to the Company for which the amount or timing is uncertain. Provisions are recognized when the
Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognized for future operating losses.
Provisions are measured at the present value of the expected expenditures to settle the obligation, applying an inflation-adjusted
discount rate. The increase in the provision due to passage of time is recognized as accretion expense. The Company does not have
any provisions as of December 31, 2012 other than the provision for decommissioning and restoration associated with the Mineral
Properties.
The Company records as decommissioning and restoration liability the present value of estimated costs of legal and constructive
obligations required to restore locations in the period in which the obligation is incurred. The nature of these decommissioning and
restoration activities includes dismantling and removing structures, rehabilitating mines and tailings dams, dismantling operating
facilities, closure of plant and waste sites, and restoration, reclamation and re-vegetation of affected areas.
The obligation generally arises when the asset is installed or the ground and/or environment is disturbed at the production location.
When the liability is initially recognized, the present value of the estimated cost is capitalized if the Company has a related asset
on its balance sheet, or expensed as part of exploration and evaluation expenditures if no asset exists. Over time, the discounted
liability is increased for the change in present value based on the discount rates that reflect current market assessments and the
risks specific to the liability. The periodic unwinding of the discount is recognized in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive
Loss as a finance cost called “accretion expense on decommissioning and restoration liability”. Additional disturbances or changes in
rehabilitation costs will be recognized as additional capitalized costs (or exploration and evaluation expense depending on whether
there was a related asset when the liability was initially recognized) and additional decommissioning and restoration liability when they
occur. If it is determined that the expected costs for decommissioning and restoration are reduced, the change in the present value
of the reduction is recorded as a reduction in the capitalized costs (or a charge against exploration and evaluation expense), and a
reduction of the decommissioning and restoration liability. For closed sites, changes to estimated costs are recognized immediately
in the consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss.
(xii)
Loss per share
Basic loss or earnings per share is calculated by dividing loss or earnings attributable to common shares divided by the weighted
average number of shares outstanding during the period.
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Diluted loss or earnings per share is calculated using the denominator of the basic calculation described above adjusted to include the
potentially dilutive effect of outstanding stock options and warrants. The denominator is increased by the total number of additional
common shares that would have been issued by the Company assuming exercise of all stock options and warrants with exercise
prices below the average market price for the year.
(xiii)

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been adopted early
by the Company

At the date of authorization of these financial statements, certain new standards, amendments and interpretations to existing
standards have been published but are not yet effective, and have not been adopted early by the Company.
The Company anticipates that all of the relevant pronouncements will be adopted in the Company’s accounting policy for the first
period beginning after the effective date of the pronouncement. Information on new standards, amendments and interpretations that
are expected to be relevant to the Company’s financial statements is provided below. Certain other new standards and interpretations
have been issued but are not expected to have a material impact on the Company’s financial statements and are therefore not
discussed below.
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
The IASB aims to replace IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement in its entirety. IFRS 9 uses a single approach
to determine whether a financial asset is measured at amortized cost or fair value, replacing the multiple rules in IAS 39. The approach
in IFRS 9 is based on how an entity manages its financial instruments in the context of its business model and the contractual cash
flow characteristics of the financial assets. Two measurement categories continue to exist to account for financial liability in IFRS 9
– fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”) and amortized cost. Financial liabilities held for trading are measured at FVTPL, and all
other financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost unless the fair value option is applied. IFRS 9 is effective for annual periods
beginning on or after January 1, 2015. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 9 on its consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements
IFRS 10 requires an entity to consolidate an investee when it is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee, Under existing IFRS, consolidation is required
when an entity has the power to govern the financial and operating policies of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. IFRS
10 replaces SIC-12 Consolidation – Special Purpose Entities and parts of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements.
IFRS 10 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 10 on
its consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements
IFRS 11 requires a venture to classify its interest in a joint arrangement as a joint venture or joint operation. Joint ventures will be
accounted for using the equity method of accounting whereas for a joint operation, the venturer will recognize its share of each of
the assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses of the joint operation. Under existing IFRS, entities have the choice to proportionately
consolidate or equity account for interest in joint ventures. IFRS 11 supersedes IAS 31, Interests in Joint Ventures, and SIC-13 Jointly
Controlled Entities – Non-monetary Contributions by Venturers. IFRS 11 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January
1, 2013. The Company has determined that its interest in its joint arrangement, the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, is a joint operation,
and therefore the adoption of this standard will not have any material impact on its consolidated financial statements as the Company
will continue to proportionately consolidate its interest in the Gahcho Kué Project
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IFRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities
IFRS 12, Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities was issued by the IASB in May 2011. The new standard includes disclosure
requirements about subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, as well as unconsolidated structured entities and replaces existing
disclosure requirements. IFRS 12 is effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013, with early adoption permitted.
The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 12 on its consolidated financial statements.
IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement
IFRS 13 is a comprehensive standard for fair value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across all IFRS statements.
The new standard clarifies that fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset, or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants, at the measurement date. It also establishes disclosures about fair value measurement.
Under existing IFRS, guidance on measuring and disclosing fair value is dispersed among the specific standards requiring fair value
measurements and in many cases does not reflect a clear measurement basis or consistent disclosures. IFRS 13 is effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2013. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRS 13 on its consolidated financial
statements.
IFRIC 20 Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine
On October 20, 2011, the IASB issued a new interpretation, IFRIC 20, to address accounting issues regarding waste removal
costs incurred in surface mining activities during the production phase of a mine, referred to as production stripping costs. The
new interpretation addresses the classification and measurement of production stripping costs as either inventory or as a tangible
or intangible non-current ‘stripping activity asset’. The standard also provides guidance for the depreciation or amortization and
impairment of such assets. IFRIC 20 is effective for reporting years beginning on or after January 1, 2013, although earlier application
is permitted. The Company is evaluating the impact of IFRIC 20 on its consolidated financial statements.
4.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS, ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and reported amounts of expenses during the reporting period. Actual outcomes could differ from these estimates. These
consolidated financial statements include estimates, which, by their nature, are uncertain and may require accounting adjustments
based on future occurrences. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised and
future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. These estimates are based on historical experience, current and
future economic conditions, and other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.
iii)

Significant Judgments in Applying Accounting Policies
The areas which require management to make significant judgments in applying the Company’s accounting policies in
determining carrying values include, but are not limited to:
c)

Mineral reserves
The information relating to the geological data on the size, depth and shape of the ore body requires complex
geological judgments to interpret the data. Changes in the proven mineral reserves or measured and indicated and
inferred mineral estimates may impact the carrying value of the properties.
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d)

iv)

Impairment analysis – mineral properties
The Company reviews its Mineral Properties for impairment based on results to date and when events and changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. IFRS 6 - Exploration for
and evaluation of mineral resources and IAS 36 – Impairment of assets requires the Company to make certain
judgments in respect of such events and changes in circumstances, and in assessing their impact on the valuations
of the affected assets. The Company’s assessment is that as at December 31, 2012, there are no indicators of
impairment in the carrying value of its mineral properties.

Significant Accounting Estimates and Assumptions
The areas which require management to make significant estimates and assumptions in determining carrying values
include, but are not limited to:
f) Mineral reserves and resources
Mineral reserve and resource estimates include numerous uncertainties and depend heavily on geological
interpretations and statistical inferences drawn from drilling and other data, and require estimates of future price for
the commodity and future cost of operations. The mineral reserve and resources are subject to uncertainty and actual
results may vary from these estimates. Results from drilling, testing and production, as well as material changes in
commodity prices and operating costs subsequent to the date of the estimate, may justify revision of such estimates.
Changes in the proven and probable mineral reserves or measured and indicated and inferred mineral resources
estimates may impact the carrying value of the properties.
g) Impairment analysis - mineral properties
The Company reviews its mineral properties for impairment based on results to date and when events and changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of the assets may not be recoverable. If indicators of impairment are
identified, management will perform an impairment test in accordance with IAS 36 – Impairment of assets (“IAS 36”).
IAS 36 requires the Company to make certain judgments, assumptions, and estimates in determining the estimate of
the net recoverable amount. Impairments are recognized when the carrying values exceed management’s estimate
of the net recoverable amounts associated with the affected assets. The values shown on the consolidated balance
sheet for Mineral Properties” represent the Company’s assumption that the amounts are recoverable. As a result of
the numerous variables associated with the Company’s judgments and assumptions, the precision and accuracy of
estimates of recoverable amount is subject to significant uncertainties, and may change significantly as additional
information becomes known.
h) Provision for decommissioning and restoration
The decommissioning and restoration liability and the accretion recorded are based on estimates of future cash flows,
discount rates, and assumptions regarding timing. The estimates are subject to change and the actual costs for the
decommissioning and restoration liability may change significantly.
i) Stock options
The stock option pricing model requires the input of highly subjective assumptions including the expected life and
volatility. Changes in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair value estimate.
j) Deferred taxes
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are determined based on differences between the financial reporting and
tax bases of assets and liabilities and on unused losses carried forward, and are measured using the substantively
enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when the differences are expected to reverse or losses are
expected to be utilized. Deferred tax assets are recorded to recognize tax benefits only to the extent that, based on
available evidence, including forecasts, it is probable that they will be realized.
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5.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For financial instruments recorded at fair value, the Company categorizes each of its fair value measurements in accordance with a
fair value hierarchy. The fair value hierarchy establishes three levels to classify the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure
fair value. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. Level 2 inputs are quoted
prices in markets that are not active, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets, inputs other than quoted prices
that are observable for the asset or liability (for example, interest rate and yield curves observable at commonly quoted intervals,
forward pricing curves used to value currency and commodity contracts and volatility measurements used to value option contracts),
or inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data or other means. Level 3 inputs are unobservable
(supported by little or no market activity).
The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1 inputs and the lowest priority to Level 3 inputs.
The Company’s financial assets as at December 31, 2012 and 2011 measured at fair value are cash, short-term investments, and
marketable securities. The cash and marketable securities are classified as Level 1, and the short-term investments are classified as
Level 2.
The quoted market value of marketable securities at December 31, 2012 and 2011 was $9,521 and $17,678 respectively. The original
cost of these marketable securities at December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011 was $4,632 for both periods.
The short-term investments at December 31, 2012 and 2011 are cashable guaranteed investment certificates (“GICs”) held with a
major Canadian financial institution. The short-term investments at December 31, 2012 were purchased with original maturities in
December, 2013. There is no restriction on the use of the short-term investments.
The fair values of the amounts receivable, and accounts payable and accrued liabilities approximate their carrying values due to the
relatively short-term maturity of these financial instruments.
Balance as at
December 31, December 31,
2012
2011
Financial assets
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term investments

$

Loans and Receivables
Amounts receivable
Available-for-Sale
Marketable securities
Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities measured at amortized cost
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

274,696 $
21,546
47,418,997
17,819,183
337,907

1,286,174

9,521

17,678

(2,109,984)

(2,529,561)
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The Company’s interest income on short-term investment carried at fair value is presented on the consolidated Statements of
Comprehensive Loss in the interest income line.
The Company had no transactions with marketable securities classified as available-for-sale during the years ended December 31,
2012 and December 31, 2011.
Financial Instruments Risks
The Company thoroughly examines the various financial instrument risks to which it is exposed and assesses the impact and
likelihood of those risks. These risks may include credit risk, liquidity risk, market risk, foreign currency risk and interest rate risk.
Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if a customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its obligations.
The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for its amounts receivable is summarized as follows:

0-30 days
30 to 90 days
More than 90 days
Total

$

$

2012
2011
279,107 $ 1,069,436
39,200
49,766
19,600
166,972
337,907 $ 1,286,174

On December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, the Company does not have any allowance for doubtful accounts, and does not
consider that any such allowance is necessary.
All of the Company’s cash and cash equivalents and short-term investments are held with a major Canadian financial institution and
thus the exposure to credit risk is considered insignificant. The short-term investments are in the form of guaranteed investment
certificates (“GICs”) and are cashable in whole or in part, with interest, at any time to maturity. Management actively monitors
the Company’s exposure to credit risk under its financial instruments, including with respect to amounts receivable. The Company
considers the risk of loss for its amounts receivable to be remote and significantly mitigated due to the financial strength of the parties
from whom most of the amounts receivable are due - the Canadian government for harmonized sales tax (“HST”) refunds receivable
in the amount of approximately $153,500 (December 31, 2011 – approximately $350,500) and the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture for the
remaining amounts.
The Company’s current policy is to invest excess cash in GICs. It periodically monitors the investments it makes and is satisfied with
the credit ratings of its bank.
Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its obligations associated with financial liabilities. The Company
has a planning and budgeting process in place by which it anticipates and determines the funds required to support its operating
requirements. The Company coordinates this planning and budgeting process with its financing activities through its capital
management process (see Note 1). The Company’s financial liabilities comprise its accounts payable and accrued liabilities, all of
which are due within the next 12 month period. Other than minimal office space rental commitments, there are no other operating
lease commitments.
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Market risk
The Company’s marketable securities are classified as available-for-sale, and are subject to changes in the market prices. They are
recorded at fair value in the Company’s financial statements, based on the closing market value at the end of the period for each
security included. The original cost of the marketable securities is $4,632. The Company’s exposure to market risk is not considered
to be material.
Foreign currency sensitivity
The Company is exposed to foreign currency risk at the balance sheet date through its U.S. denominated accounts payable and cash.
A 10% depreciation or appreciation of the U.S. dollar against the Canadian dollar would result in an approximate $8,000 decrease
or increase, respectively, in both net and comprehensive loss. The Company currently has only limited exposure to fluctuations in
exchange rates between the Canadian and U.S. dollar. Accordingly, the Company has not employed any currency hedging programs
during the current period.
Interest rate sensitivity
The Company has no significant exposure at December 31, 2012, 2011 or 2010 to interest rate risk through its financial instruments.
The short-term investments are at fixed rates of interest that do not fluctuate during the remaining term. The Company has no interestbearing debt.
6.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT

The Company’s property and equipment for the year ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are as follows:
Accumulated
Amortization

Net Book Value

32,996
59,992
5,635
7,822
7,326
77,094
190,865

$

6,049
34,494
1,972
2,218
122
44,855

$

59,992
5,635
1,207
66,834

$

22,496
845
268
23,609

$

Cost
December 31, 2012
Office furniture
Vehicles
Production equipment
Computer equipment
General infrastructure
Assets under construction

$

$

$

$

26,947
25,498
3,663
5,604
7,204
77,094
146,010

December 31, 2011
Vehicle
Production equipment
Computer equipment

$

$

$

The continuity of the property and equipment is:

Opening balance, beginning of period
Additions in the period
Depreciation in the period
Net book value, end of period

December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012
2011
2010
$
43,225 $
42,753 $
44,100
124,031
15,261
7,473
(21,246)
(14,789)
(8,820)
$
146,010 $
43,225 $
42,753
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7.

MINERAL PROPERTIES

The Company holds a 49% interest in the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture (the “Gahcho Kué Project”, the “Project”) located in the
Northwest Territories, Canada, and De Beers Canada holds the remaining 51% interest. The joint venture between the Company and
De Beers Canada is governed by an agreement entered into on July 3, 2009 (the “2009 Agreement”). The Company considers that
the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture is a related party under IAS 24 – Related Parties.
The 2009 Agreement’s provision for consensus decision-making for material strategic and operating decisions provides the Company
with joint control for the Gahcho Kué Project with De Beers Canada, and the Company accounts for the Project as a joint venture
in accordance with IAS 31 – Interests in Joint Ventures. The Company has determined its proportionate share (49%) of the assets,
liabilities, revenues and expenses of the joint venture, and recorded them in its consolidated financial statements.
Under a previous agreement (the “2002 Agreement”) in effect until July 3, 2009, De Beers Canada carried all costs incurred by the
Project, and De Beers Canada had no recourse to the Company for repayment of funds until, and unless, the Project was built, in
production, and generating net cash flows.
On July 3, 2009, the Company entered the 2009 Agreement with De Beers Canada (jointly, the “Participants”) under which:
The Participants’ continuing interests in the Gahcho Kué Project will be Mountain Province 49% and De Beers Canada
(g)
51%, with the Company’s interest no longer subject to the dilution provisions in the 2002 Agreement except for normal
dilution provisions which are applicable to both Participants;
Each Participant will market their own proportionate share of diamond production in accordance with their participating
(h)
interest;
(i)
Each Participant will contribute their proportionate share to the future project development costs;
Material strategic and operating decisions will be made by consensus of the Participants as long as each Participant has
(j)
a participating interest of 40% or more;
The Participants have agreed that the sunk historic costs to the period ending on December 31, 2008 will be reduced and
(k)
limited to $120,000,000;
The Company will repay De Beers Canada $59 million (representing 49% of an agreed sum of $120,000,000) plus
(l)
interest compounded on the outstanding amounts in settlement of the Company’s share of the agreed historic sunk costs
on the following schedule:
$200,000 on execution of the 2009 Agreement (the Company’s contribution to the 2009 Joint Venture expenses to
·
date of execution of the 2009 Agreement – paid and expensed);
Up to $5.1 million in respect of De Beers Canada’s share of the costs of the feasibility study; (paid - $4,417,421 to
·
December 31, 2012, included in “Mineral Properties”; no further payments are expected);
$10 million upon the completion of a feasibility study with at least a 15% IRR and approval of the necessary
· development work for a mine (as defined in the 2009 Agreement) (paid March 15, 2011, included in “Mineral
Properties”);
· $10 million following the issuance of the construction and operating permits;
· $10 million following the commencement of commercial production; and
The balance of approximately $24.4 million plus accumulated interest within 18 months following commencement of
·
commercial production.
Mountain Province has agreed that the marketing rights provided to the Company in the 2009 Agreement will be diluted if the
Company defaults on certain of the repayments described above.
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Since these payments are contingent on certain events occurring, and/or work being completed, they will be recorded as the
payments become due or are made. As these contingent payments are made, they are being capitalized to Mineral Properties as
“acquired exploration and evaluation”.
The continuity of the Mineral Properties is as follows:
Balance, January 1, 2010
Change in expected decommissioning and restoration liability
Amounts capitalized for sunk cost repayments in the year
Balance, December 31, 2010
Change in expected decommissioning and restoration liability
Amounts capitalized for sunk cost repayments in the year
Balance, December 31, 2011
Change in expected decommissioning and restoration liability
Amounts capitalized for sunk cost repayments in the year
Balance, December 31, 2012

$ 35,672,632
(2,608,255)
2,837,596
$ 35,901,973
410,593
10,237,929
$ 46,550,495
78,965
51,058
$ 46,680,518

The Company has reclassified immaterial changes in working capital previously presented within Mineral Properties to accounts
payable and accrued liabilities or amounts receivable as appropriate for each of the years presented.
Summarized below is certain summarized financial information relating to the Company’s proportional interest (49%) in the accounts
of the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010:
Year ended
December 31,
2012
Results of Operations
Revenue
Expenses
Proportionate share of net loss

Year ended
December 31,
2011

$

Cash Flows
Operating activities
Financing activities
Investing activities
Proportionate share of change in cash and cash equivalents

Year ended
December 31,
2010

- $
(10,681,306)
$ (10,681,306) $

- $
(8,540,441)
(8,540,441) $

(8,122,822)
(8,122,822)

$

(9,869,353) $
9,994,998
(91,035)

(7,889,959) $
7,905,220
(15,261)

(6,975,189)
6,982,662
(7,473)

$

34,610

$

-

$

As at
As at
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011
Financial Position
Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Proportionate share of net liabilities

$

$

1,516,313 $
6,113,370
(1,633,055)
(6,284,770)
(288,142) $
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Included in Exploration and evaluation expenses on the consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Loss for the year ended
December 31, 2012 is approximately $1,258,500 of payroll related expenses (December 31, 2011 – approximately $696,500;
December 31, 2010 – approximately $302,100).
The Company’s proportional interest (49%) of commitments made by the operator of the Gahcho Kué Project is $5,160,820. Of this,
approximately $4,147,000 relates to commitments associated with equipment for the Gahcho Kué Project for 2013.
8.

DECOMMISSIONING AND RESTORATION LIABILITY

The Gahcho Kué Joint Venture decommissioning and restoration liability was calculated using the following assumptions as at
December 31, 2012:

Expected undiscounted cash flows
Inflation-adjusted discount rate ("real" rate of interest)
Periods
With probabilities between

December 31,
December 31,
2012
2011
$
13,484,544 $
13,438,206
0.38%
0.45%
between 2014 and 2028
between 2014 and 2028
10% and 70%
10% and 70%

The decommissioning and restoration liability has been calculated using expected cash flows that are current dollars, without inflation.
The continuity of the decommissioning and restoration liability at December 31, 2012 is follows:
Year ended
December 31,
2012
$ 6,178,004
78,965
27,801
$ 6,284,770

Balance, beginning of year
Change in estimate of discounted cash flows for the year
Accretion recorded during the year
Balance, end of the year

Year ended
December 31,
2011
$ 5,704,096
410,593
63,315
$ 6,178,004
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9.

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

i.
Authorized share capital
Unlimited common shares, without par value. Each common share entitles the holder to one shareholder vote.
There is no other class of shares in the Company.
ii.
Share capital
The number of common shares issued and fully paid as at December 31, 2012 is 94,168,151. There are no shares issued but not
fully paid.
On November 28, 2012, the Company closed a previously-announced Rights Offering for gross proceeds of approximately $47.1
million. Under the Rights Offering, each registered holder of common shares of the Company as of the record date established
as October 30, 2012, received one right (a “Right”) for each share held. Six (6) Rights plus the sum of $3.50 (the “Subscription
Price”) were required to subscribe for one share (“Rights Share”). The Rights expired on November 28, 2012 (the “Expiry Date”) with
unexercised Rights becoming void and without value. The Rights were listed on the TSX until their expiry.
The Company entered into a stand-by agreement with Bottin (International) Investments Ltd. (“Bottin”) under which Bottin undertook
to fully subscribe for those Rights Shares not otherwise subscribed for on the Expiry Date.
A total of 65,100,414 Rights were exercised by shareholders for 10,850,069 shares, and Bottin subscribed to an additional 2,602,524
Rights Shares for the Rights not otherwise subscribed for on the Expiry Date, under the stand-by agreement. Fees charged by Bottin
in connection with the stand-by agreement have been recorded as share issuance costs (Note 12).
The proceeds are being used to fund the Company’s 49% share of the initial capital costs for the Gahcho Kué Project and for general
corporate purposes.
During 2011, the remaining 2,658,866 warrants outstanding were exercised before expiry for gross proceeds of $7,242,471 (2010 –
558,124 warrants for gross proceeds of $1,251,928). The warrants issued August 4, 2009 were exercisable for either $2.00 Canadian
or $1.73 US. As they could be exercised in a foreign currency different than the functional currency of the Company, they met the
definition of a financial liability. They were revalued at fair value at each period using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The
reevaluation of these warrants generated an accounting gain of $489,481 in the year ended December 31, 2011 (December 31, 2010
– a loss of $4,767,578).
On May 17, 2010, the Company completed a non-brokered private placement of 5,476,177 common shares at a price of $2.10 per
common share, to raise gross proceeds of $11,499,972, and on November 18, 2010, the Company completed a private placement
financing of 4,600,000 common shares at $5.00 per share for gross proceeds of $23,000,000. Net proceeds totaled $33,048,756.
iii.
Stock Options and Share-based Payments Reserve
The Company, through its Board of Directors and shareholders, adopted a stock option plan (the “Plan”) which, among other things,
allows for the maximum number of shares that may be reserved for issuance under the Plan to be 10% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding shares at the time of the grant. The Board of Directors has the authority and discretion to grant stock option awards within
the limits identified in the Plan, which includes provisions limiting the issuance of options to insiders and significant shareholders to
maximums identified in the Plan. The aggregate maximum number of shares pursuant to options granted under the Plan will not
exceed 6,309,774 shares, and as at December 31, 2012, there were 5,515,774 shares available to be issued under the Plan. All
stock options are settled by issuance of common shares.
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The following table summarizes information about the stock options outstanding and exercisable:
December 31, 2012

Balance at beginning of year
Granted during the year
Exercised during the year

December 31, 2011

December 31, 2010

Number of

Weighted average

Number of

Weighted average

Number of

options

exercise price

options

exercise price

options

2.16
4.84

1,084,635
150,000

1.69
6.13

1,234,635
-

964,000
200,000

$

(370,000)

Balance at end of the year

794,000

Options exercisable at the
end of the year

794,000

$

1.63

(270,635)

2.12

964,000

$

2.46
$

964,000

2.16

Weighted average
exercise price
$

(150,000)
1,084,635

1.75
2.17

$

1.69

1,084,635

The fair value of the 200,000 stock options granted in the year ended December 31, 2012 has been estimated on the date of the grant
using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. These options vested immediately. The assumptions are presented below. Expected
volatility is calculated by reference to the weekly closing share price for a period that reflects the expected life of the options (three
and a half years). 150,000 stock options were granted in the year ended December 31, 2011 and valued using the assumptions
below. No options were granted in 2010.
Year ended
Year ended
December 31, December 31,
2012
2011
$
4.84 $
6.13
66.29%
60.22%
3.5 years
5 years
none
none
none
none
0%
0%
1.50%
2.46%

Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected option life
Expected forfeiture
Expected option cancellation
Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate

During the year ended December 31, 2012, 370,000 stock options were exercised for gross proceeds of $604,200 (December 31,
2011 – 270,635 stock options were exercised for gross proceeds of $665,000; December 31, 2010 – 150,000 stock options were
exercised for gross proceeds of $326,000). The market price of stock options exercised during the year ended December 31, 2012
was $1,826,200 (December 31, 2011 - $1,543,610; December 31, 2010 - $625,500).
The following tables reflect the Black-Scholes values (share-based payments reserve amounts), the number of stock options
outstanding, the weighted average of options outstanding, and the exercise price of stock options outstanding at December 31, 2012
and December 31, 2011.
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At December 31, 2012
Expiry Date
November 23, 2013
January 9, 2016
March 8, 2017

Black-Scholes Number of Weighted Average Exercise
Value
Options
(Years)
Price
$
283,272
444,000
0.50 years
1.26
487,085
150,000
0.57 years
6.13
463,500
200,000
1.05 years
4.84
$
1,233,857
794,000
2.12 years

At December 31, 2011
Expiry Date
November 23, 2013
August 25, 2014
January 9, 2016

Black-Scholes
Value
$
327,932
268,405
487,085
$
1,083,422

Number of
Options
514,000
300,000
150,000
964,000

Weighted Average Exercise
(Years)
Price
1.01 years $
1.26
0.83 years
1.72
0.63 years
6.13
2.47 years

The share-based payments recognized as an expense for each year are:
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
December 31, December 31, December 31,
2012
2011
2010
Expense recognized in the year for share-based
payments

$

463,500 $

487,085 $

-

The share-based payments expense for the years ended December 31, 2012 and 2011 are recorded in Consulting fees.
Subsequent to the year-end, as detailed in the table below, stock options were granted by the Board of Directors. The fair values of
the stock options has been estimated on the date of the grant using the Black-Scholes option pricing model, using the assumptions
below, and total $327,250. The expected volatility is calculated by reference to the weekly closing price for a period that reflects the
expected life of the options, recalculated for each of the grants.
Date of grant
Number of options granted
Fair Value per option
Fair Value total for grant
Term of option
Vesting
Assumptions:
Exercise price
Expected volatility
Expected option life
Expected forfeiture
Expected option cancellation
Expected dividend yield
Risk-free interest rate

February 1, 2013
100,000
$
1.337
$
133,700
5 years
see below *
$

March 11, 2013
100,000
$
1.293
$
129,300
5 years
immediate

4.08 $
43.96%
3.36 years
none
none
0%
1.28%

March 18, 2013
50,000
$
1.285
$
64,250
5 years
see below *

4.06 $
43.7%
3.23 years
none
none
0%
1.15%

4.11
43.96%
3.08 years
none
none
0%
1.14%

* these options vest 1/3 immediately, and 1/3 on the first and 1/3 on the second anniversary of the grant
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iv. Loss Per Share
The following table sets forth the computation of basic and diluted loss per share:
Year ended
Year ended
Year ended
December 31, 2012 December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Numerator
Net loss for the period

$

Denominator
For basic - weighted average number of shares outstanding
Effect of dilutive securities
For diluted - adjusted weighted average number of shares
outstanding
Loss Per Share
Basic
Diluted

$
$

(3,337,610) $

(11,538,935) $

82,191,626
-

79,553,515
-

70,833,448
-

82,191,626

79,553,515

70,833,448

(0.04) $
(0.04) $

(0.15) $
(0.15) $

(14,534,727)

(0.21)
(0.21)

For the year ended December 31, 2012, stock options totaling 794,000 (December 31, 2011 – 964,000 stock options; 2010 3,741,501 stock options and warrants) are not included in the calculation of diluted loss per share since to include them would be
anti-dilutive.
v. Shareholder Rights Plan
On September 7, 2010, the Board of Directors of the Company approved an amended Shareholder Rights Plan (the “Rights Plan”),
which was ratified by the shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on November 18, 2010. The Rights Plan is intended to provide
all shareholders of the Company with adequate time to consider value enhancing alternatives to a take-over bid and to provide
adequate time to properly assess a take-over bid without undue pressure. The Rights Plan is also intended to ensure that the
shareholders of the Company are provided equal treatment under a takeover bid.
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10.

INCOME TAXES

Rate Reconciliation
The provision for income tax differs from the amount that would have resulted by applying the combined Canadian statutory income
tax rates of approximately 26.5% (2011 and 2010 – 26.5%):
December 31, 2012
Loss before income taxes

$

3,337,610 $
26.5%

Tax recovery calculated using statutory rates
Non-taxable portion of gain on Kennady North Project asset
transfer
(Expenses not deductible)/ Earnings not taxable
Other
Change in tax benefits not recognized
Income tax recovery (expenses)

December 31, 2011

11,538,935 $
26.5%

14,534,727
26.5%

884,467

3,057,818

3,851,703

1,420,618

-

-

(123,904)

69,491

67,660

(33,226)

(2,248,841)
-

$

December 31, 2010

$

(3,094,083)
-

(1,272,930)
(39,080)

$

(2,539,693)
-

Unrecognized deferred tax assets
Deferred income tax assets have not been recognized in respect of the following items:
December 31, 2012
$
14,556,178
$
1,665,464
$
2,288,519
$
443,119

Mineral properties
Decommissioning and restoration liability
Loss carryforwards
Share issuance cost

December 31, 2011
$
11,071,723
$
1,637,171
$
3,363,180
$
303,230

As at December 31, 2012, the Company had the following non-capital losses available for carryforward and deductible difference as
follows:
Amounts
$ 8,635,900
$ 55,597,300
$ 29,151,900

Non-capital losses
Tax basis of mineral properties
Tax basis of mineral properties, successored
*Deductibility is restricted to income from specific mineral properties
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Expiry Date
2026-2032
Indefinite
* see below

MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
In Canadian Dollars
11.

OTHER COMMITMENTS

The total future minimum lease payments for office space by the Company under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:
2013
Future minimum lease payments

12.

$

142,256

2014
$

142,256

2015
$

142,256

2016
$

142,256

2017
$

11,855

Total
$

580,879

RELATED PARTIES

The Company’s related parties include the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, Bottin, key management and their close family members, and
the Company’s directors. Kennady Diamonds Inc. (“Kennady Diamonds”) is also a related party since the Company and Kennady
Diamonds have common members of key management.
None of the transactions with related parties incorporate special terms and conditions, and no guarantees were given or received.
Related party transactions are recorded at their exchange amount, being the amount agreed to by the parties. Outstanding balances
are settled in cash.
The Company had the following transactions and balances with its related parties including key management personnel and the
Company’s directors, Bottin, the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture, and Kennady Diamonds. The transactions with key management
personnel are in the nature of remuneration. The transactions with the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture relate to the funding of the
Company’s interest in the Gahcho Kué Joint Venture for the current year’s expenditures and capital additions. The transactions with
Kennady Diamonds are for a monthly management fee charged by the Company and reimbursement of expenses paid on behalf of
Kennady Diamonds.

The total of the transactions:
Bottin - Stand-by Fee under Stand-by Agreement (Note 9(ii))
Kennady Diamonds
Gahcho Kue Joint Venture expenditures
Remuneration
The amount of outstanding balances:
Payable to the Gahcho Kue Joint Venture
Payable to key management personnel

December 31,
2012

December 31,
2011

December 31,
2010

706,261
120,940
10,729,343
1,477,715

1,450,068

716,978

685,290
30,180

313,000

186,619

The remuneration of directors and other members of key management personnel for the years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and
2010 were as follows:
December 31,
2012
$ 1,014,215
463,500
$ 1,477,715

Salary, bonus and other short-term employee benefits
Share-based payments

December 31,
2011
$
962,983
487,085
$ 1,450,068

December 31,
2010
$
716,978
$
716,978

In accordance with IAS 24 Related Parties, key management personnel are those persons having authority and responsibility for
planning, directing and controlling the activities of the Company directly or indirectly, including any directors (executive and nonexecutive) of the Company.
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
As at December 31, 2012 and 2011, and
For the Years Ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010
In Canadian Dollars
13.

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Company considers its capital structure to consist of share capital, share-based payments reserve, and options. The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in order to have the funds available to support the acquisition,
exploration and development of mineral properties. The Board of Directors does not establish quantitative return on capital criteria for
management, but rather relies on the expertise of the Company’s management to sustain future development of the business.
The Company’s main property, Gahcho Kué, is in the development and permitting stage, and as such the Company is dependent
on external equity financing to fund its activities. In order to carry out the planned management of our properties and pay for
administrative costs, the Company will spend its existing working capital and raise additional amounts as needed.
Management reviews its capital management approach on an ongoing basis and believes that this approach, given the relative size
of the Company, is reasonable.
The Company’s capital for the reporting periods is summarized as follows:

Share capital
Share-based payments reserve
Deficit

December 31, December 31,
2012
2011
$ 180,170,247 $ 146,911,995
1,233,857
1,083,422
(94,213,695) (90,876,085)
$ 87,190,409 $ 57,119,332

There were no changes in the Company’s approach to capital management during the year ended December 31, 2012. Neither the
Company nor its subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital requirements.
14.

SEGMENTED REPORTING

The Company has determined that it has only one operating segment.
15. COMPLETION OF PLAN OF ARRANGEMENT WITH KENNADY DIAMONDS INC.
In January 2012, the Company announced that the Board of Directors had approved a proposal to spin-out the Company’s 100%controlled Kennady North project into a newly incorporated company, Kennady Diamonds, through a plan of arrangement and subject
to regulatory, court and shareholder approvals.
On March 12, 2012, Kennady Diamonds and Mountain Province entered into an arrangement agreement (the “Arrangement”)
pursuant to which Mountain Province would transfer its interest in the Kennady North Project, including permits, mining claims, rights
and title, in the Northwest Territories in Canada, and $3 million of cash, to Kennady Diamonds in exchange for one common share
of Kennady Diamonds for every five common shares of Mountain Province outstanding. The Arrangement called for the share capital
of Mountain Province to be reorganized into a new class of shares which would be distributed, with the Kennady Diamonds common
shares, to the existing Mountain Province common shareholders.
The Arrangement was approved by the Board of Directors of Mountain Province and was subject to approval by two-thirds of the
votes cast by holders of Mountain Province common shares, at a special meeting of Mountain Province shareholders held on April
25, 2012. The Mountain Province shareholders voted 99.57% in favour of the Arrangement. As well, on April 30, 2012, Mountain
Province received final court approval for the Arrangement. Regulatory approval was obtained by the Toronto Stock Exchange and
the TSX Venture Exchange.
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In Canadian Dollars
The various transactions under the Arrangement were completed on July 6, 2012, the effective date of the Arrangement. The
Company transferred the Kennady North Project and cash of $3 million to Kennady Diamonds in exchange for 16,143,111 shares of
Kennady Diamonds which in turn were distributed to the Mountain Province shareholders on the basis of one Kennady Diamonds’
share for every five shares of Mountain Province held by the shareholders.
The Company recorded the fair value of the transaction as a dividend-in-kind of $13.7 million. The fair value was calculated by
applying the simple average of the closing share price for Kennady Diamonds on the TSX Venture Exchange for the first five days of
its trading to the number of shares outstanding. The fair value in excess of the book value of the transferred assets was recorded as
a gain on asset transfer to Kennady Diamonds of $10.7 million in the Company’s Statement of Comprehensive Loss.
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
NOTICE OF ANNUAL AND SPECIAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that an annual and special meeting (the “Meeting”) of the shareholders of Mountain Province Diamonds
Inc. (“Mountain Province”, the “Corporation”) will be held at Terminal City Club, 837 Hastings Street West, Vancouver, British
Columbia V6C 1B6, on Tuesday June 11, 2013 at 2:00 p.m. (Vancouver time) for the following purposes:
(a)

to receive and consider the consolidated audited financial statements of Mountain Province for the year ended
December 31, 2012, together with the report of the auditors thereon;

(b)

to fix the number of directors at seven (7);

(c)

to elect directors for the ensuing year; and

(d)

to re-appoint the auditors of Mountain Province and to authorize the directors of Mountain Province to fix the auditors’
remuneration;

(e)

to consider and, if thought advisable, to re-approve by ordinary resolution of Independent Shareholders the Mountain
Province Shareholder Rights Plan, as described in the management information circular of Mountain Province
accompanying and forming part of this notice;

(f)

to confirm an amendment to the Corporation’s by-laws to add an advance notice requirement for nominations of
directors by shareholders in certain circumstances; and

(g)

to transact such other business as may properly be brought before the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.

This notice of meeting is accompanied by a form of proxy, the management information circular, the audited consolidated financial
statements of Mountain Province for the financial year ended December 31, 2012, and a supplemental mailing list form. The directors of
Mountain Province have fixed the close of business on May 7, 2013 as the record date for the determination of the shareholders of the
Corporation entitled to receive notice of the Meeting.
Shareholders who are unable to attend the Meeting in person are requested to complete, date, sign and send the enclosed form of
proxy to Computershare Investor Services Inc. so that as large a representation as possible may be had at the meeting.
DATED as of May 7, 2013.
BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

“Patrick Evans”
Patrick Evans
President and Chief Executive Officer
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MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, P.O. Box 216
Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2S1
MANAGEMENT INFORMATION CIRCULAR
(all information as at May 7, 2013 unless otherwise noted)
SOLICITATION OF PROXIES
This management information circular (the “Information Circular”) is furnished in connection with the solicitation of proxies
being made by the management of Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. (“Corporation”) for use at an annual meeting of the
Corporation’s shareholders (the “Meeting”) to be held on Tuesday June 11, 2013 at the time and place and for the purposes set
forth in the accompanying notice of the Meeting (the “Notice of Meeting”), and at any adjournments thereof. While it is expected
that the solicitation will be made primarily by mail, proxies may be solicited personally or by telephone by directors, officers and
employees of the Corporation.
All costs of this solicitation will be borne by the Corporation.
APPOINTMENT OF PROXIES
The individuals named in the accompanying form of proxy (“Proxy”) are directors or officers of the Corporation.
A SHAREHOLDER WISHING TO APPOINT A PERSON OR CORPORATION (WHO NEED NOT BE A SHAREHOLDER)
TO ATTEND AND ACT FOR THE SHAREHOLDER AND ON THE SHAREHOLDER’S BEHALF AT THE MEETING
OTHER THAN THE PERSON OR CORPORATION DESIGNATED IN THE FORM OF PROXY HAS THE RIGHT TO
DO SO, EITHER BY INSERTING SUCH PERSON’S NAME IN THE BLANK SPACE PROVIDED IN THE PROXY AND
STRIKING OUT THE THREE PRINTED NAMES, OR BY COMPLETING ANOTHER PROXY. A Proxy will not be valid
unless it is completed, dated and signed and delivered to Computershare Investor Services Inc. (“Computershare”), Toronto Office,
Proxy Department, at 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2Y1 not less than 48 hours (excluding Saturdays,
Sundays and holidays) before the time for holding the Meeting, unless the chairman of the Meeting elects to exercise his discretion to
accept proxies received subsequently. For general inquiries, shareholders may contact Computershare as follows:
By Phone:
By Fax:
By Fax:
By Email:

1-800-564-6253
1-866-249-7775 (within North America)
(416) 263-9524 (outside North America)
service@computershare.com
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Voting by Proxyholder
The persons named in the Proxy will vote or withhold from voting the common shares represented thereby in accordance with your
instructions on any ballot that may be called for. If you specify a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon, your common shares
will be voted accordingly. The Proxy confers discretionary authority on the persons named therein with respect to:
(a) each matter or group of matters identified therein for which a choice is not specified, other than the appointment of an auditor
and the election of directors,
(b) any amendment to or variation of any matter identified therein, and
(c) any other matter that properly comes before the Meeting.
In respect of a matter for which a choice is not specified or where both choices have been specified in the Proxy, the persons
named in the Proxy will vote the common shares represented by the Proxy for the approval of such matter.
Registered Shareholders
Registered Shareholders may wish to vote by Proxy whether or not they are able to attend the Meeting in person. Registered Shareholders
electing to submit a Proxy may do so by:
(a) completing, dating and signing the enclosed form of Proxy and returning it to the Corporation’s transfer agent, Computershare
Investor Services Inc. (“Computershare”), by mail or by hand to the 9th Floor, 100 University Avenue, Toronto, Ontario, M5J
2Y1;
(b) using a touch-tone phone to transmit voting choices to the following toll-free number 1-866-732-8683. Registered Shareholders
must follow the instructions of the voice response system and refer to the enclosed Proxy form for the holder’s account number
and the Proxy control number; or
(c) using the Internet through the website of the Corporation’s transfer agent at www.investorvote.com. Registered Shareholders
must follow the instructions that appear on the screen and refer to the enclosed Proxy form for the holder’s account number and
the Proxy control number.
In all cases ensuring that the Proxy is received at least 48 hours (excluding Saturdays, Sundays and holidays) before the meeting or the
adjournment thereof at which the proxy is to be used.
Beneficial Shareholders
The following information is of significant importance to shareholders who do not hold common shares in their own name. Beneficial
Shareholders should note that the only proxies that can be recognized and acted upon at the Meeting are those deposited by Registered
Shareholders (those whose names appear on the records of the Corporation as the registered holders of common shares).
2
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If common shares are listed in an account statement provided to a shareholder by a broker, then in almost all cases those common shares
will not be registered in the shareholder’s name on the records of the Corporation. Such common shares will more likely be registered
under the names of the shareholder’s broker or an agent of that broker. In the United States, the vast majority of such common shares
are registered under the name of Cede & Co. as nominee for The Depository Trust Company (which acts as depositary for many U.S.
brokerage firms and custodian banks), and in Canada, under the name of CDS & Co. (the registration name for The Canadian Depository
for Securities Limited, which acts as nominee for many Canadian brokerage firms).
Intermediaries are required to seek voting instructions from beneficial shareholders in advance of shareholders’ meetings. Every
intermediary has its own mailing procedures and provides its own return instructions to clients. There are two kinds of beneficial owners those who object to their name being made known to the issuers of securities which they own (called “OBOs” for “Objecting Beneficial
Owners”) and those who do not object to the issuers of the securities they own knowing who they are (called “NOBOs” for “NonObjecting Beneficial Owners”).
The Corporation is taking advantage of the provisions of National Instrument 54-101 of the Canadian Securities Administrators, which
permit it to directly deliver Proxy-related materials to its NOBOs. As a result NOBOs can expect to receive a scannable Voting Instruction
Form (a “VIF”) from Computershare. These VIFs are to be completed and returned to Computershare in the envelope provided or by
facsimile. In addition, Computershare provides both telephone voting and Internet voting as described on the VIF itself which contain
complete instructions. Computershare will tabulate the results of the VIFs received from NOBOs and will provide appropriate instructions
with respect to the shares represented by the VIFs they receive.
These securityholder materials are being sent to both registered and non-registered owners of the securities of the Corporation. If
you are a non-registered owner, and the Corporation or its agent has sent these materials directly to you, your name and address and
information about your holdings of securities, have been obtained in accordance with applicable securities regulatory requirements from
the intermediary holding on your behalf.
By choosing to send these materials to you directly, the Corporation (and not the intermediary holding on your behalf) has assumed
responsibility for (i) delivering these materials to you, and (ii) executing your proper voting instructions. Please return your voting
instructions as specified in your request for voting instructions.
Beneficial Shareholders who are OBOs will not receive the materials unless their intermediary assumes the costs of delivery.
3
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The form of Proxy supplied to you by your broker will be similar to the Proxy provided to Registered Shareholders by the Corporation.
However, its purpose is limited to instructing the intermediary on how to vote on your behalf. Most brokers now delegate responsibility
for obtaining instructions from clients to Broadridge Financial Solutions, Inc. (“Broadridge”) in the United States and in Canada.
Broadridge mails a similar voting information form (the “Broadridge VIF”) in lieu of a Proxy provided by the Corporation. The
Broadridge VIF will appoint the same persons as the Corporation’s Proxy to represent you at the Meeting. You have the right to appoint
a person (who need not be a Beneficial Shareholder of the Corporation), other than the persons designated in the Broadridge VIF, to
represent you at the Meeting. To exercise this right, you should insert the name of the desired representative in the blank space provided
in the Broadridge VIF. The completed Broadridge VIF must then be returned to Broadridge by mail or facsimile or given to Broadridge
by phone or over the internet, in accordance with Broadridge’s instructions. Broadridge then tabulates the results of all instructions
received and provides appropriate instructions respecting the voting of common shares to be represented at the Meeting. If you receive
a Broadridge VIF, you cannot use it to vote common shares directly at the Meeting – the Broadridge VIF must be completed and
returned to Broadridge, in accordance with its instructions, well in advance of the Meeting in order to have the common shares
voted.
Although as a Beneficial Shareholder you may not be recognized directly at the Meeting for the purposes of voting common shares
registered in the name of your broker, you, or a person designated by you, may attend at the Meeting as proxyholder for your broker
and vote your common shares in that capacity. If you wish to attend at the Meeting and indirectly vote your common shares as
proxyholder for your broker, or have a person designated by you do so, you should enter your own name, or the name of the
person you wish to designate, in the blank space on the voting instruction form provided to you and return the same to your
broker in accordance with the instructions provided by such broker, well in advance of the Meeting.
REVOCATION OF PROXIES
A shareholder who has given a Proxy may revoke it by an instrument in writing executed by the shareholder or by the shareholder’s
attorney authorized in writing or, if the shareholder is a corporation, by a duly authorized officer or attorney of the corporation, and
delivered either to Computershare Investor Services Inc., Proxy Department, 100 University Avenue, 9th Floor, Toronto, Ontario, Canada
M5J 2Y1, or to the Corporation, at 161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, P.O. Box 216, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2S1 at any time up to and
including the last business day preceding the day of the Meeting or any adjournment of it, or to the chair of the Meeting on the day of the
Meeting or any adjournment of it. Only registered shareholders have the right to revoke a Proxy. Non-Registered Holders who wish
to change their vote must, at least seven days before the Meeting, arrange for their respective Intermediaries to revoke the Proxy
on their behalf.
A revocation of a Proxy does not affect any matter on which a vote has been taken prior to the revocation.
RECORD DATE
The board of directors of the Corporation (the “Board”) has fixed May 7, 2013 as the record date (the “Record Date”) for the purpose
of determining shareholders entitled to receive the Notice of Meeting. Only shareholders of record as at the close of business on the
Record Date are entitled to receive the Notice of Meeting and to vote the common shares held by them, either in person or by proxy, at
the Meeting or any adjournment thereof.
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EXERCISE OF DISCRETION
If the instructions in a Proxy are certain, the shares represented thereby will be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the
specifications so made on any poll by the persons named in the Proxy, and, where a choice with respect to any matter to be acted upon
has been specified in the Proxy, the shares represented thereby will, on a poll, be voted or withheld from voting in accordance with the
specifications so made.
Where no choice has been specified by the shareholder, such shares will, on a poll, be voted in accordance with the notes to Proxy.
The enclosed Proxy, when properly completed and delivered and not revoked, confers discretionary authority upon the person(s)
appointed proxy holders thereunder to vote with respect to any amendments or variations of matters identified in the Notice of Meeting
and with respect to other matters which may properly come before the Meeting. At the time of the printing of this Information Circular,
management of the Corporation knows of no such amendment, variation or other matter which may be presented to the Meeting.
APPROVAL OF MATTERS
Unless otherwise noted, approval of matters to be placed before the Meeting is by an “ordinary resolution” which is a resolution passed
by a simple majority (50%+1) of the votes cast by shareholders of the Corporation present and entitled to vote in person or by proxy.
INTEREST OF CERTAIN PERSONS IN MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Except as disclosed in this Information Circular, no person who has been a director or executive officer of the Corporation at any time
since the beginning of the Corporation’s last financial year, no proposed nominee of the Corporation for election as a director of the
Corporation, and no associate or affiliate of the foregoing persons, has any material interest, direct or indirect, by way of beneficial
ownership or otherwise, in matters to be acted upon at the Meeting other than the election of directors or the appointment of auditors.
INTEREST OF INFORMED PERSONS IN MATERIAL TRANSACTIONS
Except as disclosed in this Information Circular, since the commencement of the Corporation’s most recently completed financial year,
no informed person of the Corporation, proposed nominee for director or any associate or affiliate of an informed person or proposed
nominee, had any material interest, direct or indirect, in any transaction or any proposed transaction which has materially affected or
would materially affect the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries. An “informed person” means: (a) a director of executive officer of
the Corporation; (b) a director or executive officer of a person or Corporation that is itself an informed person or subsidiary of the
Corporation; (c) any person or Corporation who beneficially owns, directly or indirectly, voting securities of the Corporation or who
exercises control or direction over voting securities of the Corporation or a combination of both carrying more than 10% of the voting
rights other than voting securities held by the person or Corporation as underwriter in the course of a distribution; and (d) the Corporation
itself, if and for so long as it has purchased, redeemed or otherwise acquired any of its shares.
5

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

VOTING SECURITIES AND PRINCIPAL HOLDERS OF VOTING SECURITIES
Currently, the Corporation has issued and outstanding 94,168,151 fully paid and non-assessable common shares without par value, each
share carrying the right to one (1) vote. The common shares of the Corporation (the “Common Shares”) are listed on the Toronto
Stock Exchange (the “TSX”) under the symbol ‘MPV’ and on the NYSE MKT (the “NYSE MKT”) under the symbol ‘MDM’. The
Corporation has no other classes of voting securities and does not have any classes of restricted securities.
Any shareholder of record at the close of business on May 7, 2013 who either personally attends the Meeting or who has completed and
delivered a Proxy in the manner specified, subject to the provisions described above, shall be entitled to vote or to have such shareholder’s
shares voted at the Meeting.
To the best of the knowledge of the directors and executive officers of the Corporation, the only person who, or corporation which,
beneficially owns, or controls or directs, directly or indirectly, shares carrying more than 10% of the voting rights attached to all
outstanding shares of the Corporation, is:
Percentage of issued and
Number of MPV Common
outstanding share capital of
Name of Shareholder(1)
Shares
94,168,151 shares
Held
(as at May 7, 2013)
Bottin (International) Investments Ltd.
22,281,490
23.66%
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS
Management is seeking shareholder approval of an ordinary resolution to set the number of directors of the Corporation at seven (7) for
the ensuing year. The term of office of each of the present directors expires at the Meeting. The persons named below will be presented
for election at the Meeting as management’s nominees. Management does not contemplate that any of these nominees will be unable
to serve as a director. Each director elected will hold office until the next annual meeting of the Corporation or until his or her successor is
elected or appointed, unless his or her office is earlier vacated in accordance with the Articles of the Corporation or the provisions of the
Business Corporations Act (Ontario) (“Business Corporations Act”). In the absence of instructions to the contrary, the enclosed Proxy
will be voted for the nominees listed herein.
On April 15, 2013 the Board approved an amendment to the Corporation’s By-Law No. 1 to add an advance notice requirement for
nominations of directors by shareholders in certain circumstances. The Corporation did not receive notice of any director nominations
in connection with this year’s Meeting within the time periods prescribed by the By-Law No. 1 taking into consideration the proposed
amendment. Accordingly, at the Meeting, the only persons eligible to be nominated for election to the Board are the below nominees.
The following table sets out the names of the nominees for election as directors, the province or state and country in which each is
ordinarily resident, the period or periods during which each has served as a director, the first and last positions held in the Corporation,
their present principal occupations and the number of common shares of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries beneficially owned or
controlled or directed by each, directly or indirectly, as at the date hereof.
6
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No. of Shares of the
Corporation Beneficially
Owned, or Controlled or
Directed, Directly or
Indirectly (3)

Name, Present Position(s) with the
Corporation (1) and Place of
Residence (3)

Principal Occupation At Present And
During Last Five Years If Different From
Office Held (2) (3)

Date(s) Served
as a Director
Since

Jonathan Comerford (4) (5)
Chairman of the Board and a director of the
Corporation
County Dublin, Ireland

Investment Manager at International Investment and
Underwriting since August 1995.

September 21, 2001

70,000(7)

Patrick Evans
President, Chief Executive Officer and a director
of the Corporation
Arizona, United States of America

President and CEO of the Corporation since November
2005. CEO and director of Norsemont Mining Inc. (2007
to 2011). President and CEO of Weda Bay Minerals Inc.
(2005 to 2006). President and CEO of Southern Platinum
Corp. (2004 to 2005); President and CEO of SouthernEra
Resources Ltd. (2001 to 2004) and Vice President of
Placer Dome Inc. (1998 to 2011).

November 16, 2005

1,317,555(8)

Elizabeth J. Kirkwood (6)
Director of the Corporation
Ontario, Canada

Independent Business Executive, formerly Chairman, CFO
and Corporate Secretary of the Corporation (2003 to
September 21, 2001
2006); President and CEO of First Nickel Inc. (2003 to
2006).

Carl Verley (5) (6)
Director of the Corporation
British Columbia, Canada

Self-employed Geological Consultant since 1982;
President of Amerlin Exploration Services Ltd. (private
company) since 1983

December 2, 1986

David Whittle (4) (5)
Director of the Corporation
British Columbia, Canada

CFO of Alexco Resource Corp. since October 2007

November 1, 1997

Bruce Dresner (6)
Director of the Corporation
Connecticut, United States of America

Retired Investment Professional

March 11, 2013

324,148(10)

Peeyush Varshney (4)
Director of the Corporation
British Columbia, Canada

Principal of Varshney Capital Corp.; CEO and Director of
Canada Zinc Metals Corp.; Director and/or officer of
several public companies listed on the TSX or TSX
Venture.

April 13, 2007

43,417(11)

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)
(8)

70,660

283,640

76,600(9)

For the purposes of disclosing positions held in the Corporation, “Corporation” includes the Corporation and any parent or
subsidiary thereof.
Unless otherwise stated above, any nominees named above not elected at the last annual general meeting have held the principal
occupation or employment indicated for at least five years.
The information as to province/state, country of residence, principal occupation and number of shares beneficially owned or
controlled or directed by the nominees (directly or indirectly) is not within the knowledge of the management of the Corporation
and has been furnished by the respective nominees.
Member of the Corporation’s Audit Committee.
Member of the Corporation’s Compensation Committee.
Member of the Corporation’s Corporate Governance Committee.
In addition to the shareholdings above, Mr. Comerford holds options to purchase up to a total of 130,000 Common Shares at
an exercise price of $1.26 per share, expiring on November 23, 2013. The options were granted to Mr. Comerford under the
Corporation’s Stock Option Plan.
In addition to the shareholdings above, Mr. Evans holds options to purchase up to a total of 200,000 Common Shares, 100,000
options at an exercise price of $6.13 per share, expiring on January 9, 2016, and 100,000 options at an exercise price of $4.84
per share, expiring on March 7, 2017. These options were granted to Mr. Evans under the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan.
7
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(9)
(10)
(11)

In addition to the shareholdings above, Mr. Whittle holds options to purchase up to a total of 60,000 Common Shares at an
exercise price of $1.26 per share, expiring on November 23, 2013. These options were granted under the Corporation’s Stock
Option Plan
In addition to the shareholdings above, Mr. Dresner holds options to purchase up to a total of 100,000 Common Shares at an
exercise price of $4.06 per share, expiring on March 10, 2017. The options were granted under the Corporation’s Stock Option
Plan.
In addition to the shareholdings above, Mr. Varshney holds options to purchase up to a total of 90,000 Common Shares at an
exercise price of $1.26 and expiring on November 23, 2013. The options were granted under the Corporation’s Stock Option
Plan.

In April 2013, the Board adopted a majority voting policy. Under this policy, if a nominee for director receives a greater number of votes
“withheld” from his or her election than votes “for” his or her election (a “Majority Withhold Vote”), such director shall promptly tender
to the Board an offer to resign as a Corporation director following certification of the shareholder vote by the scrutineer at the Meeting (the
“Scrutineer”) for such uncontested election. The Corporate Governance Committee of the Board will duly consider and recommend to
the Board whether to accept or reject the resignation offer received from each director who received a Majority Withhold Vote. Following
the recommendation of the Corporate Governance Committee, the independent members of the Board will make a determination of the
action to take with respect to the offer or resignation, not later than 90 days after written certification of the shareholder vote by the
Scrutineer.
According to the policy, the affected director cannot participate in the deliberations of the Corporate Governance Committee or the Board
as to whether to request his or her resignation. The majority voting policy applies only in circumstances involving an uncontested election
of directors, meaning an election in which the number of nominees is equal to the number of directors to be elected.
To the best of management’s knowledge, and except as set out in the proceeding paragraphs below, no proposed director is, or has been
within the last ten years before the date of this Information Circular, a director, chief executive officer or chief financial officer of any
Corporation that:
(a)

was the subject to an order that was issued while the proposed director was acting in the capacity as director, chief
executive officer or chief financial officer;

(b)

was subject to an order that was issued after the proposed director ceased to be a director, chief executive office or chief
financial officer and which resulted from an event that occurred while that person was acting in the capacity as director,
chief executive officer or chief financial officer; or

(c)

within a year of that person ceasing to act in that capacity, became bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation
relating to bankruptcy or insolvency or was subject to or instituted any proceedings, arrangement or compromise with
creditors or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold its assets.
8
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On April 3, 2007, Patrick Evans, a director of Eurasia Gold Inc. (“Eurasia”) up until March 26, 2007, along with the remaining directors,
officers and insiders of Eurasia (collectively, the “Management”) were subject to a cease trade order issued by the Ontario Securities
Commission (“OSC”), which required all trading in and all acquisitions of securities of Eurasia by Management to cease for a period of
15 days. The cease trade order was made because Eurasia failed to file its audited financial statements for the year ended December 31,
2006, management’s discussion and analysis relating to the audited annual financial statements for the year ended December 31, 2006,
and annual information form for the year ended December 31, 2006 (collectively, the “Year-End Financial Documents”). At a hearing
held before the OSC on April 16, 2007, it was further ordered that all trading in and acquisitions of securities of Eurasia by any of the
Management cease until Year-End Financial Documents were filed with the OSC. The cease trade order expired on April 25, 2007 when
the Year-End Financial Documents were filed in accordance with the Ontario securities legislation. Prior to the issuance of the cease trade
order, Patrick Evans had resigned as a director of Eurasia and he has not been involved with Eurasia in any capacity since March 26,
2007.
David Whittle was a director of Image Innovations Holdings Inc. (“Image”), a company incorporated in the United States. Image and its
subsidiaries filed voluntary petitions for relief under Chapter 11, Title 11 of the United States Code on July 6, 2006. Image’s Joint Chapter
11 Liquidating Plan was confirmed by the Bankruptcy Court on August 21, 2007, and the Final Decree closing the Chapter 11 cases was
entered August 28, 2008.
Jonathan Comerford is a director of Newfoundland and Labrador Refining Corporation (“NLRC”), incorporated under Newfoundland
law November 28, 2005. NLRC sought bankruptcy protection under the Canadian Bankruptcy and Insolvency Act on June 19, 2008, and
subsequently obtained Court approval for a proposal to creditors to sell or finance NLRC’s projects’ interests.
To the best of management’s knowledge, no proposed director has, within the ten years before the date of this Information Circular,
become bankrupt, made a proposal under any legislation relating to bankruptcy or insolvency, or become subject to or instituted any
proceedings, arrangement or compromise with creditors, or had a receiver, receiver manager or trustee appointed to hold the assets of the
proposed director.
To the best of management’s knowledge, no proposed director has been subject to:
(a)

any penalties or sanctions imposed by a court relating to securities legislation or by a securities regulatory authority or
has entered into a settlement agreement with a securities regulatory authority; or

(b)

any other penalties or sanctions imposed by a court or regulatory body that would likely be considered important to a
reasonable securityholder in deciding whether to vote for a proposed nominee director.
EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

For the purposes of this Information Circular:
(a)

“Chief Executive Officer” or “CEO” of the Corporation means the individual who served as chief executive officer of
the Corporation during the most recently completed financial year;

(b)

“Chief Financial Officer” or “CFO” of the Corporation means the individual who served as chief financial officer of
the Corporation during the most recently completed financial year;
9
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(c)

“executive officer” of the Corporation means an individual who is a Chairman or Vice-Chairman of the Board, the
President, a Vice-President in charge of a principal business unit, division or function including sales, finance or
production, an officer of the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries who performed a policy-making function in respect
of the Corporation, or any other individual who performed a policy-making function in respect of the Corporation;

(d)

“Named Executive Officers” or “NEO” means;
(i)

the CEO;

(ii)

the CFO;

(iii)

each of the Corporation’s three most highly compensated officers (including any of its subsidiaries), other than
the CEO and CFO, who were serving as executive officers at the end of the most recently completed financial
year and whose total compensation, individually, exceeded $150,000; and

(iv)

any additional individuals for whom disclosure would have been provided under (iii) except that the individual
was not serving as an officer of the Corporation or its subsidiaries, nor acting in a similar capacity, at the end
of the most recently completed financial year;

(e)

“Option-Based Award” means an award under an equity incentive plan of options, including, for greater certainty,
share options, share appreciation rights, and similar instruments that have option-like features;

(f)

“Share-Based Award” means an award under an equity incentive plan or equity-based instruments that do not have
option-like features, including, for greater certainty, Common Shares, restricted share units, deferred share units,
phantom shares, phantom share units, common share equivalent units, and stock.

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Role of the Compensation Committee
The Compensation Committee is responsible for reviewing the Corporation’s compensation arrangements with its executive officers as
determined to be needed.
When reviewing the compensation of the executive officers, as needed, the Compensation Committee considers the following objectives:
(i) recruiting and retaining the executives critical to the success of the Corporation and the enhancement of shareholder value; (ii)
providing fair and competitive compensation based upon a detailed comparison with the compensation levels paid for similar positions by
similar companies; (iii) balancing the interests of management and shareholders of the Corporation; and (iv) rewarding performance, both
on an individual basis and with respect to the business in general. The Compensation Committee has the responsibility of reviewing the
executive officers’ total compensation package in consultation with the CEO and making proposals to the Board, reviewing and advising
on stock option guidelines, including recommendations on specific option grants, and reviewing and communicating to the Board the
compensation policies and principles that will be applied to other executives and employees of the Corporation.
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Compensation Philosophy
The Corporation’s compensation philosophy provides that any and all employees, including those consulting in management roles,
receive compensation based on the market value for the type of role they perform. Compensation currently includes two elements: (a)
consulting fees (pursuant to the consulting agreements with the NEOs), and (b) long-term incentives by way of the grant of stock options
in accordance with the policies of the TSX, the NYSE MKT, and the Corporation’s stock option plan (the “Stock Option Plan”). The
Corporation does not provide sponsored or defined pension or retirement plans, nor does it provide any other benefit plans. Employees
and/or consultants to the Corporation are expected to provide for their own benefits and retirement.
Composition of the Compensation Committee
The Corporation’s Compensation Committee consists of Jonathan Comerford, Carl Verley (Chair), and David Whittle, three (3) nonmanagement directors (each of whom is also an “independent” director, as defined in the National Instrument 52-110 - Audit Committees,
United States securities laws and NYSE MKT rules). However, compensation matters may also be reviewed and approved by the Board.
Mr. Comerford, Mr. Verley and Mr. Whittle are directors and/or officers of other companies and have experience in compensation matters.
Report on Executive Compensation
The Compensation Committee has no formal compensation policy. However, executive officers are compensated in a manner consistent
with their respective contributions to the overall benefit of the Corporation.
Executive compensation is generally based on discussion by the Compensation Committee or by the Board. The Corporation entered into
consulting agreements with the CEO, Patrick Evans, in November 2005 (amended in August 2009) and with the former CFO, Jennifer
Dawson, in May 2006 (amended in December 2010). There have been no other changes to the terms of these consulting agreements
since the time that they were entered into. The Corporation entered into a consulting agreement with the current CFO, Bruce Ramsden, in
January, 2013. The compensation granted to the CEO and the CFO is primarily cash-based however, Patrick Evans was granted options
upon the execution of his consulting agreement (and the amended consulting agreement) in order to align the interests of management
and shareholders. For an overview of these consulting agreements, please refer to the discussion below under the heading “Executive
Compensation – Employment/Consulting Agreements of NEOs”.
As part of the Compensation Committee’s “Terms of Reference”, the Compensation Committee is tasked with the responsibility of
reviewing and recommending any changes to compensation for the Corporation’s senior management, or to defer such discussions to the
Board, and to make any recommendations for the granting of options. The Compensation Committee finalized its recommendations to
the Board for changes to compensation for management, including the grant of options to Mr. Evans and Ms. Dawson, and changes to
directors’ fees in early March 2012. There was a similar recommendation for changes to compensation in early January 2011.
11
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Elements of Compensation
Consulting Fees
Pursuant to the consulting agreements noted above, the CEO and CFO provide consulting services to the Corporation in connection with
their respective roles with the Corporation. There are no other NEOs with employment or other agreements with the Corporation.
The Corporation has not retained a compensation consultant or advisor to assist the Board of Compensation Committee in determining
compensation for any of the Corporation’s directors or executive officers.
Long-Term Incentives
The Corporation provides long-term incentives by granting stock options to executive officers in accordance with the policies of the TSX
and the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan. Any options granted permit executive officers to acquire Common Shares at an exercise price
equal to the closing market price of such shares at the time of grant of the option. The objective of granting options is to encourage
executive officers to acquire an ownership interest in the Corporation over a period of time, which acts as financial incentive for such
executive officers to consider the long-term interests of the Corporation and its shareholders.
When determining the number of stock options to be granted to an executive officer, the Compensation Committee takes into account
the number and terms of stock options previously granted to the executive officer, if any, and option compensation granted by similar
companies to executives with similar responsibilities.
There are no other Long-Term Incentive Plans in place.
Other Compensation
The Corporation provides no compensation to its NEOs other than the amounts under their respective consulting arrangements and LongTerm Incentives as described above. For greater certainty, the Corporation makes no commitments for Option-Based Awards or ShareBased Awards other than the stock options granted pursuant to the Corporation’s Stock Option Plan.
Compensation Risk
In the upcoming year, the Compensation Committee will undertake a review of the risks associated with the Corporation's compensation
of its NEOs, other executives (if any), and directors and, based on the review, the Board will determine whether any steps should be taken
to mitigate and/or manage any identified risks.
12
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NEOs and directors are discouraged from purchasing financial instruments designed to hedge or offset a decrease in market value of
equity securities granted as compensation or held, directly or indirectly, by the NEO or director, and to the knowledge of the Corporation,
no NEO or director has undertaken such hedging transactions. The Corporation does not, however, have a policy expressly prohibiting
such purchases.
Employment/Consulting Agreements of NEOs
The Corporation and its subsidiaries have no employment contracts with any Named Executive Officer, but have Consulting Agreements
with the CEO and CFO, the Corporation’s only Named Executive Officers.
CEO Compensation
The Corporation has a Consulting Agreement with Patrick Evans for his services as President and CEO which was effective November 1,
2005 and amended in August 2009 (the “Evans Agreement”). The amended agreement allows for the provision of future performancebased bonus payments. The monthly consulting fee under the Evans Agreement is $20,000, and in the year ended December 31, 2012,
the Corporation paid or accrued a total of $420,000 in monthly consulting fees and bonuses to Mr. Evans. Under the Evans Agreement,
Patrick Evans is entitled to receive a severance payment equal to six months of his annual compensation in the event that the Evans
Agreement is terminated, without cause by the Corporation (as defined in the Evans Agreement). In the event of termination as a result
of change in control of the Corporation (as defined in the Evans Agreement), Patrick Evans is entitled to receive, within 30 days of the
termination, a severance payment equal to 18 months of his annual compensation as well as incentive compensation described as a bonus
of C$100,000 for each C$1.00 that the share price is above C$4.00 on such change of control, prorated.
CFO Compensation
The Corporation entered into a Consulting Agreement with Jennifer Dawson for her services as Chief Financial Officer and Corporate
Secretary, effective May 11, 2006 (the “Dawson Agreement”). The Dawson Agreement renews annually effective May 1st of each year,
unless terminated by either party with at least 60 days’ notice. The Dawson Agreement is on a time-spent basis, and in the year ended
December 31, 2012, the Corporation paid or accrued a total of $303,087 pursuant to the Dawson Agreement. In December 2010, the
Dawson Agreement was amended to provide that if Jennifer Dawson is terminated due to a change in control of the Corporation (as
defined in the Dawson Agreement), Jennifer Dawson will be entitled to a lump sum payment, plus applicable taxes, equal to the previous
18 months of invoiced and billable services by her. There are no provisions in the Dawson Agreement for compensation in the event
Jennifer Dawson is terminated due to cause. The Dawson Agreement terminated effective April 30, 2013. The Corporation entered into a
consulting agreement with the current CFO, Bruce Ramsden, in January, 2013.
Performance Graph
The following chart compares the total cumulative shareholder return for $100 invested in Common Shares, beginning on March 31,
2008, with the cumulative total return of the S&P/TSX Composite Index (“S&P/TSX Index”) for the five most recently completed
financial years of the Corporation.
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Mountain Province Diamonds Inc. (“MPV”)
Cumulative Value of $100 Investment Made March 31, 2008

MPV
S & P/TSX Composite Index

Mar 2008
Mar 2009
Dec 2009
Dec 2010
Dec 2011
Dec 2012
$
5.00 $
0.85 $
2.29 $
6.50 $
3.90 $
3.89
13,350.13
8,720.39 11,746.11 13,443.22 11,955.09 12,433.50

Over this period of time, the trend in the level of compensation paid to executive officers has been broadly similar to the trend of the
Corporation's cumulative total shareholder return relative to the cumulative total return of the S&P/TSX Index, allowing for the increase
over this period of the Corporation's management responsibilities and financing requirements as its primary mining project has advanced
toward the development phase.
Share-Based and Option-based awards
The Corporation’s Stock Option Plan has been and will be used to provide share purchase options which are granted in consideration of
the level of responsibility of the executive as well as his or her impact or contribution to the longer-term operating performance of the
Corporation. In determining the number of options to be granted to the executive officers, the Board takes into account the number of
options, if any, previously granted to each executive officer, and the exercise price of any outstanding options to ensure that such grants
are in accordance with the policies of the TSX, and closely align the interests of the executive officers with the interests of shareholders.
The Compensation Committee has the primary responsibility of administering the compensation policies related to the executive
management of the Corporation, including option-based awards.
The Corporation does not have share-based awards at this time.
Summary Compensation Table
The following table (presented in accordance with National Instrument Form 51-102F6) sets forth all direct and indirect compensation
provided to the Corporation’s Named Executive Officers for the financial years ended December 31, 2012, 2011 and 2010. The Named
Executive Officers are Patrick Evans and Jennifer Dawson:
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NEO Name
and
Principal
Position
Patrick Evans(1)
(President and CEO)

Jennifer Dawson(3)
(CFO)

Non-Equity Incentive
Plan Compensation ($)
Annual
Long-term
Incentive
Incentive
Plans
Plans
($)
($)

ShareBased
Awards
($)

OptionBased
Awards
($)(2)

December 31, 2012 $ 260,000

Nil

$ 231,750

$ 180,000

Nil

Nil

December 31, 2011 $ 250,000
December 31, 2010 $ 203,750

Nil
Nil

$ 324,723
Nil

$ 180,000
$ 219,696

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

December 31, 2012 $ 303,087

Nil

$ 115,875

Nil

December 31, 2011 $ 292,537
December 31, 2010 $ 265,407

Nil
Nil

$ 162,362
Nil

Nil
Nil

Year

Salary
($)

Nil
$ 100,000
Nil

Pension
Value
($)

All Other
Compensation
($)

Total
Compensation
($)

Nil

$

671,750

45,950
Nil

$
$

800,673
423,446

Nil

Nil

$

418,962

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

$
$

554,898
265,407

$

Mr. Evans was paid $240,000 for each of the years ended December 31, 2012 and December 31, 2011, and $200,000 for the year
ended December 31, 2010 pursuant to the terms of the Evans Agreement for his services as President and CEO as well as the amounts
indicated under “Annual Incentive Plans” for the year ended December 31, 2012, December 31, 2011, and the year ended December
31, 2010, also pursuant to the Evans Agreement in August 2009. Mr. Evans is also a director of the Corporation and received a fee
of $20,000 for acting in this capacity for the year ended December 31, 2012, $10,000 for the year ended December 31, 2011, and
(1)
$3,750 for the year ended December 31, 2010. Mr. Evans’ compensation as a director is included in “Salary” above. Mr. Evans’
payment under the annual incentive plan for December 31, 2012 was earned and paid to him in the year ended December 31, 2012.
His payment under the annual incentive plan for December 31, 2011 was earned by him and accrued by the Corporation in the
year ended December 31, 2011, but paid to him in March 2012. His annual incentive plan payment of $219,696 for the year ended
December 31, 2010 was earned and paid to him in the year ended December 31, 2010.
In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2012, 100,000 stock options were granted to Mr. Evans in his capacity as President and CEO,
and 50,000 to Ms. Dawson in her capacity as CFO. These options were granted on March 8, 2012, vested immediately and expire
on March 7, 2017. They have an exercise price of $4.84 per share. They were valued using the Black-Scholes model (a common
(2) methodology) as the methodology to calculate the grant date fair value (March 8, 2012) and the Corporation relied on the following
key assumptions and estimates for the calculation of these Option-based Awards: Dividend yield – nil; Expected volatility – 66.29%;
Risk-free rate of return – 1.5%; Expected life of options – 3.5 years. The fair value at the time of grant was calculated to be $231,750
for the options granted to Mr. Evans, and $115,875 for the options granted to Ms. Dawson, for a total of $347,625.
In the fiscal year ended December 31, 2011, 100,000 stock options were granted to Mr. Evans in his capacity as President and
CEO, and 50,000 to Ms. Dawson in her capacity as CFO. These options were granted on January 10, 2011, vested immediately and
expire on January 9, 2016. They have an exercise price of $6.13 per share. They were valued using the Black-Scholes model as the
methodology to calculate the grant date fair value (January 10, 2011) and the Corporation relied on the following key assumptions
and estimates for the calculation of these Option-based Awards: Dividend yield – nil; Expected volatility – 60.22%; Risk-free rate
of return – 2.46%; Expected life of options – five years. The fair value at the time of the grant was calculated as $324,723 for the
options granted to Mr. Evans, and $162,362 for the options granted to Ms. Dawson, for a total of $487,085.
(3) Ceased to act as CFO on April 30, 2013.
Incentive Plan Awards
The Corporation does not have any incentive plans for NEOs except for Mr. Evans, pursuant to the Evans Agreement, as previously
discussed.
Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards
The following table sets forth information concerning all awards outstanding under incentive plans of the Corporation at the end of the
most recently completed financial year, including awards granted before the more recently completed financial year, to each of the Named
Executive Officers:
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Option-Based Awards

Patrick Evans

100,000
100,000

$
$

6.13
4.84

January 9, 2016
March 7, 2017

$
$

0
0

Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil

Market or
Payout
Value of
Vested
Share-Based
Awards Not
Paid Out or
Distributed
($)
Nil
Nil

Jennifer Dawson(2)

90,000
50,000
50,000

$
$
$

1.26
6.13
4.84

Nov 23, 2013
January 9, 2016
March 7, 2017

$
$
$

236,700
0
0

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Name

(1)

Share-Based Awards

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)

Option
Exercise
Price ($)

Value of
Unexercised
In-theMoney
Options(1)
($)

Option
Expiration Date

Number of
Shares or Units
of Shares That
Have Not
Vested
(#)

Market or
Payout Value of
Share-Based
Awards That
Have Not Vested
($)

This amount is calculated based on the difference between the market value of the securities underlying the options at the end of the
most recently completed financial year, which is $3.89, and the exercise or base price of the option.

(2) Ceased to act as CFO on April 30, 2013.
Incentive Plan Awards – Value Vested or Earned During The Year
The following table sets out the value of the option-based awards that vested during the financial year ended December 31, 2012 for each
Named Executive Officer. There were no share-based awards or non-equity incentive plan compensation amounts:

NEO Name
Patrick Evans
Jennifer Dawson(2)

Option-Based Awards –
Value Vested during the Year(1) ($)
Nil
Nil

The value of unexercised in-the-money options on date vested is based on the number of options that became vested on
the applicable date and is calculated based on the difference between the market value of the Common Shares on the
(1)
TSX as at the date of vesting and the exercise price of the option. Options granted during the year vested immediately
and the exercise price represented market value at the time of the grant (and vesting).
(2) Ceased to act as CFO on April 30, 2013.
Stock Option Plan
The Stock Option Plan was established on November 26, 1998 and later amended on September 27, 2002 and September 10, 2009. The
Stock Option Plan allows the Board, from time to time and in its sole discretion, to determine the eligibility of those directors, employees
and other persons who provide ongoing services to the Corporation, who are eligible to participate under the Stock Option Plan. The
Board believes that stock options provide an effective tool for the Corporation to enable it to attract and retain key personnel in the face
of competition from larger companies.
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The Stock Option Plan provides that the maximum number of shares that may be reserved for issuance will be 10% of the Corporation’s
issued and outstanding shares at the time of the grant.
The material terms of the Stock Option Plan are as follows:
1.

In no case may the issuance of shares under the Stock Option Plan and any other share compensation arrangement of the
Corporation result in:
(a)

(b)

the number of shares reserved for issuance pursuant to options granted:
(i)

to insiders exceeding 10% of the Corporation’s issued and outstanding share capital; or

(ii)

to any one person exceeding 5% of the Corporation’s issued and outstanding share capital;

the number of shares issued within a one year period:
(i)

to insiders exceeding 10% of the Corporation’s issued and outstanding share capital; or

(ii)

to any one insider and its associates exceeding 5% of the Corporation’s issued and outstanding share capital.

2.

The exercise price of any option issued under the Stock Option Plan shall not be less than the market value of the Common
Shares as of the date of the grant. The market value of the Common Shares shall be determined in accordance with the Stock
Option Plan, but in any event shall not be less than the closing price of the Common Shares on the TSX on the business
day immediately prior to the date of the grant. If the Corporation’s Common Shares are not listed on an organized trading
facility, then the market value will be, subject to the necessary approvals of the applicable regulatory authorities, that value as is
determined by resolution of the Board.

3.

Subject to all applicable securities laws and regulations and the rules and policies of all applicable regulatory authorities, the
Board may attach terms and conditions to a grant of option under the Stock Option Plan. These terms and conditions may
include, but are not necessarily limited to, the following:
(a)

providing that an option expires on a specified date after the option holder ceases to be a director or employee of the
Corporation or ceases to provide services to the Corporation;

(b)

providing that a portion or portions of an option vest after certain periods of time or expire after certain periods of time;
and

(c)

providing that an option be exercisable immediately, in full, notwithstanding that it has vesting provisions, upon the
occurrence of certain events, such as a friendly or hostile takeover bid for the Corporation.
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4.

The expiry date of an option under the Stock Option Plan shall be the date so fixed by the Board on the date of the grant, provided
such expiry date shall be no later than the tenth anniversary of the date of the grant.

5.

Options issued under the Stock Option Plan may not be assigned or transferred.

6.

The Stock Option Plan provides for the cashless exercise of options in the event of a bona fide offer (an “Offer”) for common
shares of the Corporation made to holders of options, or to shareholders of the Corporation generally, or to a class of shareholders
which includes the option holders, which Offer, if accepted in whole or in part, would result in the offeror becoming a control
person of the Corporation, within the meaning given to “control person” in the Securities Act (Ontario), and any optionee may
surrender his or her options to the Corporation and receive a payment equal to the difference between the option price and the
offer price under the Offer.

7.

The Board may from time to time amend the Stock Option Plan and the terms and conditions of any option granted under the
Stock Option Plan and, without limitation, may make amendments for the purpose of meeting any changes in any relevant law,
rule or regulation applicable to the Stock Option Plan, or for any other purpose which may be permitted by all relevant laws,
regulations, rules and policies provided that any such amendment shall not alter the terms or conditions of any option issued
under the Stock Option Plan or impair any right of any option holder pursuant to any option awarded prior to such amendment.

Pension Plan Benefits
The Corporation does not have any form of pension plan that provides for payments or benefits to the Named Executive Officers at,
following, or in connection with retirement. The Corporation does not have any form of deferred compensation plan.
Termination and Change of Control Benefits
Except as disclosed above under the heading “Executive Compensation – Employment/Consulting Agreements of NEOs”, the
Corporation and its subsidiaries do not have any contracts, agreements, plans or arrangements that provide for payments to a Named
Executive Officer at, following, or in connection with any termination (whether voluntary, involuntary or constructive), resignation,
retirement, change in control of the Corporation, or change in a Named Executive Officer’s responsibilities.
Director Compensation
Director Compensation Table
The following table sets forth all amounts of compensation provided to the directors, who are each not also a Named Executive Officer,
for the Corporation’s most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2012:
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Director
Name(1)

Fees Earned
($)

Jonathan Comerford
D.H.W. Dobson(2)
Elizabeth Kirkwood
Peeyush Varshney
Carl Verley
David Whittle

(1)

$
$
$
$
$
$

30,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
25,000
25,000

ShareBased
Awards
($)
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

OptionBased
Awards
($)
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Non-Equity
Incentive Plan
Compensation
($)
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Pension
Value
($)

All Other
Compensation
($)

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Total
($)
$
$
$
$
$
$

30,000
20,000
20,000
20,000
25,000
25,000

This table excludes the director compensation paid to Patrick Evans, CEO, of $20,000 for the year ended December 31, 2012
for his services as a director. This amount is included and discussed under “Summary Compensation Table” above.

(2) Mr. Dobson retired from the Board of Directors in November 2012. There was no adjustment to his directors’ fees paid.
Effective January 1, 2012, compensation for the directors has been approved at the following levels: the Chairman of the Board is entitled
to receive $30,000 per annum, the Chairman of the Audit Committee is entitled to receive $25,000 per annum, the director serving as the
Corporation’s Qualified Person is entitled to receive $25,000 per annum, and all other directors are entitled to receive $20,000 per annum.
These amounts continue to be paid semi-annually in advance.
As stated previously in this Information Circular, the Corporation has a stock option plan for the granting of incentive stock options to the
officers, employees, and directors. The purpose of granting such options is to assist the Corporation in compensating, attracting, retaining
and motivating the directors of the Corporation and to closely align the personal interests of such persons to those of the shareholders.
For further details about the Stock Option Plan, please refer to the discussion above under the heading “Executive Compensation – Stock
Option Plan”.
Incentive Plan Awards – Outstanding Share-Based Awards and Option-Based Awards
The following table sets forth information concerning all awards outstanding under incentive plans of the Corporation at the end of
the most recently completed financial year, including awards granted before the most recently completed financial year, to each of the
directors who are not Named Executive Officers:
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Option-Based Awards

Name

Jonathan Comerford
Peeyush Varshney
David Whittle

(1)

Number of
Securities
Underlying
Unexercised
Options (#)

130,000
90,000
60,000

Option
Exercise
Price ($)

$
$
$

1.26
1.26
1.26

Share-Based Awards
Value of
Unexercised
In-theMoney
Options(1)
($)

Option
Expiration Date

November 23, 2013
November 23, 2013
November 23, 2013

$
$
$

341,900
236,700
157,800

Number of
Shares or Units
of Shares That
Have Not
Vested
(#)

Market or
Payout Value of
Share-Based
Awards That
Have Not Vested
($)

Nil
Nil
Nil

Nil
Nil
Nil

Market or
Payout
Value of
Vested
Share-Based
Awards Not
Paid Out or
Distributed
($)
Nil
Nil
Nil

This amount is calculated based on the difference between the market value of the securities underlying the options at the end of the
most recently completed financial year, which is $3.89, and the exercise or base price of the option.

Incentive Plan Awards – Value Vested or Earned During The Year
The following table sets out the value of the option-based awards that vested during the financial year ended December 31, 2012 for each
non-executive director. There were no share-based awards or non-equity incentive plan compensation amounts:
Option-Based Awards –
Value Vested during the Year (1) ($)
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil
Nil

Director Name
Jonathan Comerford
D.W.H. Dobson
Elizabeth Kirkwood
Peeyush Varshney
Carl Verley
David Whittle
(1)

The value of unexercised in-the-money options on the date vested is based on the number of options that became vested on the
applicable date and is calculated based on the difference between the market value of the Common Shares on the TSX as at the
date of vesting and the exercise price of the option.
INDEBTEDNESS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

As at the date of this Information Circular, no executive officer, director, employee or former executive officer, director or employee of
the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries is, or at any time since the beginning of the most recently completed financial year, has any of
them been, indebted to the Corporation, or any of its subsidiaries, nor is any of these individuals, or at any time since the beginning of the
most recently completed financial year, has any of them been, indebted to another entity which indebtedness is the subject of a guarantee,
support agreement, letter of credit or other similar arrangement or understanding provided by the Corporation or any of its subsidiaries.
APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF AUDITOR
Shareholders will be asked to approve the reappointment of KPMG LLP, Chartered Accountants (“KPMG”), as the auditor of the
Corporation to hold office until the next annual general meeting of the shareholders at remuneration to be fixed by the directors. The
auditor was first appointed on August 6, 1998.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS
No management functions of the Corporation or its subsidiaries are performed to any substantial degree by a person other than the
directors or executive officers of the Corporation or its subsidiaries.
DISCLOSURE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES
Corporate Governance relates to the activities of the Board of Directors. National Policy 58-201 – Corporate Governance Disclosure (“NI
58-201”) and the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (the “Act”), the rules adopted by the United States Securities and Exchange Commission
(the “SEC”) pursuant to the Act, and the NYSE MKT corporate governance rules (the “NYSE MKT Rules”) as they apply to foreign
private issuers, together establish corporate governance guidelines which apply to the Corporation. Corporate governance relates to
activities of the Board, the members of which are elected by and are accountable to the shareholders, and takes into account the role
of the individual members of management who are appointed by the Board and who are charged with the day to day management of
the Corporation. The Board is committed to sound corporate governance practices which are both in the interests of its shareholders
and contribute to effective and efficient decision making. NI 58-101 – Disclosure of Corporate Governance Practices requires that each
reporting company disclose its corporate governance practices on an annual basis.
The Corporation’s general approach to corporate governance is summarized below.
Board of Directors
The Board is currently composed of seven directors. All the seven proposed nominees are current directors.
Independence
Section 1.4 of National Instrument 52-110 (“NI 52-110”) sets out the standard for director independence. Under NI 52-110, a director
is independent if he has no direct or indirect material relationship with the Corporation. A material relationship is a relationship which
could, in the view of the Board, be reasonably expected to interfere with the exercise of a director’s independent judgment. NI 52-110
also sets out certain situations where a director will automatically be considered to have a material relationship with the Corporation.
Applying the definition set out in section 1.4 of NI 52-110, and applicable United States securities laws and NYSE MKT Rules, six of
the seven members of the Board are independent. The members who are independent are: Jonathan Comerford, Elizabeth J. Kirkwood,
Carl Verley, David Whittle, Bruce Dresner, and Peeyush Varshney.
Patrick Evans is not independent by virtue of the fact that he is an executive officer of the Corporation (Mr. Evans has been the President
and CEO since November 2005).
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In order to facilitate its exercise of independent judgment in carrying out the responsibilities of the Board, the Board ensures that a
majority of independent directors sit on all Board committees.
Other Directorships
In addition to their positions on the Board, the following directors also serve as directors of the following reporting issuers or reporting
issuer equivalents as of the date of this Information Circular:
Name of Director
Patrick Evans
Jonathan Comerford
Bruce Dresner
Elizabeth Kirkwood
Peeyush Varshney
Carl Verley
David Whittle

Reporting Issuer(s) or Equivalent(s)
Pan Global Resources Inc.; Kennady Diamonds Inc.; Indico Resources Ltd.
Optimal Payments Plc; Kennady Diamonds Inc.;
Sherman Fairchild Foundation (nonprofit)
Match Capital Resources Corporation
Afrasia Mineral Fields Inc.; Mexigold Corp.; Trigen Resources Inc.; Minaean International
Corp.; Open Gold Corp.; Broome Capital Inc.; Canada Zinc Metals Corp.; JDV Capital Corp.
Kennady Diamonds Inc.
Kennady Diamonds Inc.

Meetings of Directors
The Board meets as necessary in the absence of management to ensure the Board’s functional independence from management. The
Corporation recognizes the desirability of directors being able to consult outside professional advice, as appropriate, in the discharge of
their duties.
Since the beginning of the Corporation’s most recently completed financial year, the independent directors have not held a meeting at
which non-independent directors were not in attendance. The independent directors do not hold regularly scheduled meetings without
non-independent directors and the Corporate Secretary (who is also a member of senior management). Open and candid discussion among
independent directors is encouraged, and the independent directors are free to communicate with each other independent of the nonindependent director and management as they feel is appropriate, and by the means they consider appropriate.
Independence of Chair
The Corporation’s corporate governance structure recognizes the value of separating the offices of the Chair and the CEO. Patrick Evans
is the Corporation’s President and Chief Executive Officer and the Board is chaired by Jonathan Comerford, an independent director.
Attendance
The Board meets on a regularly scheduled basis and more frequently if required. During the most recently completed year ended
December 31, 2012, the Board met seven times. Patrick Evans and Carl Verley attended all seven meetings; Jonathan Comerford,
Elizabeth Kirkwood, Peeyush Varshney and David Whittle attended six of the seven meetings. Former director Harry Dobson attended
one meeting of six meetings.
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Board Mandate
The Board is required to supervise the management of the business and affairs of the Corporation and to act with a view to the best
interests of the Corporation and its shareholders. The Board actively oversees the development, adoption and implementation of the
Corporation’s strategies and plans. The Board’s responsibilities include:
(a)

representing the interests of the shareholders in all significant decisions affecting the Corporation and ensuring that
shareholders are kept informed of developments affecting the Corporation;

(b)

the Corporation’s strategic planning process,

(c)

the identification of the principal risks of the Corporation’s business and ensuring the implementation of appropriate
systems to manage risk,

(d)

reviewing significant operational and financial issues as they arise and providing direction to management of these
matters

(e)

acting diligently to ensure that the Corporation fulfils its legal and regulatory requirements

(f)

evaluating the effectiveness of senior management and establishing their compensation,

(g)

evaluating whether or not directors receive the information they require to perform their duties as directors,

(h)

the Corporation’s succession planning, including appointing, training and monitoring senior management,

(i)

the Corporation’s major business development initiatives,

(j)

the integrity of the Corporation’s internal control and management information systems,

(k)

the Corporation’s policies for communicating with shareholders and others, and

(l)

the general review of the Corporation’s results of operations.

The Board considers certain decisions to be of sufficient importance to the Corporation and as such, requires management to seek the
prior approval of the Board with respect to these decisions. Such decisions include:
(a)

approval of the annual capital budget and any material changes to the operating budget,
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(b)

approval of the Corporation’s business plan and monitoring performance,

(c)

acquisition of, or investments in, new business,

(d)

changes in the nature of the Corporation’s business,

(e)

changes in senior management, and

(f)

all matters as required under the Business Corporations Act (Ontario).

Position Descriptions
There are no written position descriptions for the Chair of the Board and the chairs of each Board committee. The roles and
responsibilities of each Board committee are included in the “Terms of Reference” for each Board committee. It is understood by the
Board committee chairs that they are responsible for the overall management, guidance, and functioning of their respective committee.
As well, there exists a Corporation Mandate for the Board, and the Chair of the Board understands that it is his role to ensure the overall
management, guidance, and functioning of the Board.
The duties and responsibilities of the President and CEO are included in the Evans Agreement including the power and authority to
manage, supervise and direct the Corporation’s business and affairs, and to undertake such other duties as may, from time to time, be
assigned to the President and CEO by the Board. Such duties and responsibilities are indicated to be subject always to the control and
direction of the Board.
Orientation and Continuing Education
Board turnover is relatively rare and, accordingly, the Corporation has not adopted a formalized process of orientation for new Board
members. Orientation of new directors is conducted on an as-needed basis.
With respect to current directors, they are kept informed as to matters impacting, or which may impact, the Corporation’s operations
through reports and presentations at Board meetings. Directors are also provided with the opportunity to meet with senior management
and other employees, advisors and directors, who can answer any questions that may arise.
Business Conduct Policy
The Corporation has adopted a Business Conduct Policy (May 2006, amended in September 2010) posted on its website and available
on SEDAR at www.sedar.com and on the SEC’s website at http://sec.gov/edgar.shtml as an exhibit to the Corporation’s annual report on
Form 20-F for the year ended March 31, 2006. The amended Business Conduct Policy was included in an exhibit to the Corporation’s
annual report on Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2010.
Shareholders may request copies of the Corporation’s Business Conduct Policy by contacting the Corporation at 161 Bay Street, Suite
2315, P.O. Box 216, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2S1, by mail, or by telephone at 416-361-3562.
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Annually, the Corporation’s officers and key consultants provide their recognition of the current policy and understanding of its
importance. The Business Conduct Policy provides guidance to the directors and officers individually, and to the Board as a whole, to
ensure the exercise of independent judgment in considering transactions and agreements where a director or officer might have a material
interest. Having an independent director, Jonathan Comerford, as the chair of the Board, also helps to ensure independent judgment and
to encourage and promote a culture of ethical business conduct.
The Board considers that the fiduciary duties placed on individual directors by the Corporation’s governing corporate legislation and the
common law and the restrictions placed by applicable corporate legislation on an individual director’s participation in decisions of the
Board in which the director has an interest are sufficient to ensure that the Board operates independently of management and in the best
interests of the Corporation.
Nomination of Directors
The Board does not have a separate nominating committee. The Corporate Governance Committee will assess the performance and
qualification of directors and assesses and recommend potential nominees to the Board, as needed.
Assessments
The Board monitors the adequacy of information given to directors, communication between the Board and management and the strategic
direction and processes of the Board and Committees.
Board Committees
Committees of the Board are an integral part of the Corporation’s governance structure. There are three standing committees: the Audit
Committee, the Compensation Committee, and the Corporate Governance Committee - established to devote the necessary expertise
and resources to particular areas, and to enhance the quality of discussion at Board meetings. The Committees facilitate effective Board
decision-making by providing recommendations to the Board on matters within their respective responsibilities. The Board believes that
the Committees assist in the effective functioning of the Board and that the composition of the Committees should ensure that the views
of unrelated and independent directors are effectively represented.
Each of these committees is comprised solely of non-management directors, each of whom is also independent. The committees, their
mandates and memberships are outlined below.
Compensation Committee
The Compensation Committee, in consultation with the President of the Corporation, reviews and recommends to the Board for approval
all matters relating to the compensation of executives of the Corporation. The Compensation Committee has no formal compensation
policy. The Compensation Committee monitors the performance of senior management generally. Executive officers are compensated in
a manner consistent with their respective contributions to the overall benefit of the Corporation.
25

Copyright © 2013 www.secdatabase.com. All Rights Reserved.
Please Consider the Environment Before Printing This Document

However, compensation matters may also be reviewed and approved by the Corporation’s entire board of directors.
Executive compensation is based on a combination of factors, including a comparative review of information provided to the
Compensation Committee by compensation consultants, recruitment agencies and auditors as well as historical precedent.
Since January 1, 2012, the beginning of the most recently completed financial year, the Compensation Committee held one meeting in
consideration of the Committee’s recommendation to the Board of compensation matters in March 2012. These compensation matters
included the annual incentive award to Mr. Evans, the granting of options to Mr. Evans and Ms. Dawson and other employees and
consultants, and the compensation for directors.
The Committee is composed of Jonathan Comerford, Carl Verley (Chair) and David Whittle, all of whom are independent directors.
Corporate Governance Committee
The Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for developing the approach of the Corporation to the matters of corporate
governance including the mandate, size and composition of the Board and its committees, and assessing the effectiveness of the Board, its
members and the committees of the Board. The Committee has proposed to the Board that nominations be formally added to its mandate,
and the Committee be reconstituted as the Corporate Governance and Nominating Committee. During the most recently completed
financial year, the Corporate Governance Committee did not meet. The Corporate Governance Committee is composed of Bruce Dresner
(effective March 2013), Elizabeth Kirkwood (Chair), and Carl Verley, all of whom are independent directors.
Audit Committee
Audit Committee Charter
The text of the Corporation’s Audit Committee Charter is attached as Schedule “A” to this Information Circular.
The Audit Committee meets with the independent auditors to review and inquire into matters affecting financial reporting matters, the
system of internal accounting and financial controls and procedures, and the audit procedures and audit plans. The Audit Committee
also recommends to the Board the auditors to be appointed. In addition, the Audit Committee reviews and recommends to the Board for
approval the annual financial statements, the annual report and certain other documents required by regulatory authorities. During the
most recently completed financial year, the Audit Committee met three times.
Composition of the Audit Committee
As of the date hereof, the Audit Committee is composed of David Whittle (Chair), Jonathan Comerford, and Peeyush Varshney, all of
whom are independent directors. All of the members of the Audit Committee are financially literate within the meaning of Section 1.6 of
NI 52-110.
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Relevant Education and Experience
David Whittle, Chair of the Audit Committee, is a Canadian-qualified Chartered Accountant in good standing with eighteen years’
experience as a director and senior executive and financial officer of various public companies listed in both Canada and the United
States. Jonathan Comerford has a Masters in Business from the Michael Smurfit Business School and a Bachelor of Economics from
University College, Dublin, and serves as Investment Manager at International Investment and Underwriting. Peeyush Varshney has a
Bachelor of Commerce and extensive executive experience with several public companies.
Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures
The Audit Committee pre-approves all audit services to be provided to the Corporation by its independent auditors. The Audit
Committee’s policy regarding the pre-approval of non-audit services to be provided to the Corporation by its independent auditors is that
all such services shall be pre-approved by the Audit Committee. Non-audit services that are prohibited to be provided to the Corporation
by its independent auditors may not be pre-approved. In addition, prior to the granting of any pre-approval, the Audit Committee must
be satisfied that the performance of the services in question will not compromise the independence of the independent auditors. Since the
enactment of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, all non-audit services, performed by the Corporation’s auditor, for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2012, have been pre-approved by the Audit Committee of the Corporation. No non-audit services were approved pursuant
to the de minimis exemption to the pre-approval requirement.
Audit Fees
“Audit Fees” are the aggregate fees billed by KPMG LLP (“KPMG”) for the audit of the Corporation’s consolidated annual financial
statements, assistance with interim financial statements, attestation services provided in connection with statutory and regulatory filings
or engagements, services associated with registration statements, prospectuses, periodic reports and other documents filed with securities
regulatory bodies and stock exchanges and other documents issued in connection with securities offerings and admissions to trading, and
assistance in responding to comment letters from securities regulatory bodies, and consultations with the Corporation’s management as to
accounting or disclosure treatment of transactions or events and/or the actual or potential impact of final or proposed rules, standards or
interpretations by the securities regulatory authorities, accounting standard setting bodies, or other regulatory or standard setting bodies.
Aggregate audit fees billed in fiscal December 31, 2012 by KPMG were $257,619 including fees for audits of the 2012 consolidated
financial statements, interim reviews of March 31, 2012, June 30, 2012 and September 30, 2013 periods, additional audit fees relating
to the Corporation’s compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”), the audit of Kennady Diamonds’ carve-out
financial statements relating to the transfer as well as services in connection with the information circular prepared by the Corporation
for the Kennady Diamonds transfer. The Corporation was billed $208,500 in the fiscal year ending December 31, 2011.
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Audit-Related Fees
“Audit-Related Fees” are fees that are or would be charged by KPMG for presentations or training on accounting or regulatory
pronouncements including IFRS, due diligence services related to accounting and tax matters in connection with potential acquisitions/
dispositions, advice and documentation assistance with respect to internal controls over financial reporting and disclosure controls and
procedures of the Corporation, and if applicable, audits of financial statements of a company's employee benefit plan.
"Audit Related Fees" charged by KPMG during the fiscal period ended December 31, 2012 were $nil and $nil for the fiscal year ending
December 31, 2011. All such services were approved by the Audit Committee.
Tax Fees
“Tax Fees” are fees for professional services rendered by KPMG for tax compliance, and tax advice on actual or contemplated
transactions.
Aggregate tax fees billed in fiscal December 2012 by KPMG were $19,112 (December 31, 2011- $16,875) of which $8,362 relates to tax
compliance and $10,750 relates to services in connetion with income tax advice. These services were approved by the Audit Committee.
All Other Fees
In the fiscal year ending December 31, 2012, aggregate fees billed by KPMG were $nil for advice (December 31, 2011 - $nil).
RESPONSE TO SHAREHOLDERS
The Corporation communicates regularly with its shareholders and maintains a website at www.mountainprovince.com. Management
is available to shareholders to respond to questions and concerns. The Board believes that management’s communications with
shareholders, and the avenues available to shareholders and others interested in the Corporation to have their inquiries about the
Corporation answered, are responsive and effective.
If you have issues, questions or comments which you would like to have considered by your directors at the Annual Meeting of
Shareholders, please advise us at: Corporate Secretary, Mountain Province Diamonds Inc., 161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, PO Box 216,
Toronto, Ontario M5J 2S1; through info@mountainprovince.com; or by fax to 416-603-8565.
EXPECTATIONS AND ACCOUNTABILITY OF MANAGEMENT
The Board’s access to information relating to the operations of the Corporation, through direct communication with the CEO and/or
CFO and Corporate Secretary, through the membership on the Board of a key member of management, and the attendance of the CFO
and Corporate Secretary at Board meetings, are considered key elements to the effective and informed functioning of the Board of the
Corporation.
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The Board is directly involved in setting and approving goals and plans and monitoring performance. This process establishes clear
expectations of management and accountability for results. The Board expects the Corporation’s management to take the initiative in
identifying opportunities and risks affecting the Corporation’s business and finding ways to deal with these opportunities and risks for the
benefit of the Corporation. The Board is confident that the Corporation’s management responds ably to this expectation.
SECURITIES AUTHORIZED FOR ISSUANCE UNDER
EQUITY COMPENSATION PLANS
The following table sets out information for the Corporation’s most recently completed financial year ended December 31, 2012 with
respect to compensation plans under which equity securities of the Corporation are authorized for issuance.
Number of securities
Weighted-average
Number of securities remaining
to be issued upon
exercise price of
available for future issuances under
exercise of
outstanding options,
equity compensation (excluding
outstanding options,
warrants and rights
securities reflected in column (a))
warrants and rights
(b)
(c)
(a)

Plan Category

Equity compensation plans approved by
securityholders
Equity compensation plans not approved by
securityholders
Total

6,309,774 $
N/A
6,309,774 $

2.12

5,515,774

N/A

N/A

2.12

5,515,774

PARTICULARS OF OTHER MATTERS TO BE ACTED UPON
Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report Thereon
At the Meeting, shareholders will have placed before them the financial statements for the most recently completed financial year and
the auditor’s report thereon.
Re-Approval of Shareholder Rights Plan
The Corporation’s Shareholder Rights Plan became effective September 7, 2010 and was approved by a majority of the shareholders
at the Corporation’s Annual and Special General Meeting held on November 18, 2010. The purpose of the Shareholder Rights Plan is
to ensure equal treatment of all shareholders in the event of a bid for the Corporation and to provide the board of directors with an
adequate amount of time to evaluate a bid for the Corporation. To remain in full force and effect, the Shareholder Rights Plan must be
re-approved by Independent Shareholders (as defined below) at the Meeting, being the third annual general meeting of shareholders since
the Shareholder Rights Plan was first approved by shareholders.
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Summary of the Plan
A summary of the principle terms of the Shareholder Rights Plan is set forth below.
(a)

Effective Date. The Shareholder Rights Plan became effective on September 7, 2010 (the “Effective Date”).

(b)

Term. The Shareholder Rights Plan will terminate at the 2013 annual general meeting of the Corporation, subject to
re-approval by Independent Shareholders at the Meeting.

(c)

Shareholder Approval. For the Shareholder Rights Plan to continue in effect following the Meeting, the Shareholder
Rights Plan re-approval resolution must be approved by a majority of the votes cast at the Meeting by Independent
Shareholders voting in person and by proxy.

(d)

Issue of Rights. As of the Effective Date, one right (a “Right”) is issued and attached to each Common Share
outstanding and subsequently issued.

(e)

Rights Exercise Privilege. The Rights will separate from the Common shares and will be exercisable ten trading days
(the “Separation Time”) after a person has acquired, or commences or publicly announces or discloses its intention
to commence a take-over bid to acquire, 20% or more of the Common shares, other than by an acquisition pursuant
to a take-over bid permitted by the Shareholder Rights Plan (a “Permitted Bid”). The acquisition by any person (an
“Acquiring Person”) of 20% or more of the Common shares, other than by way of a Permitted Bid, is referred to as
a “Flip-in Event”. Any Rights held by an Acquiring Person will become void upon the occurrence of a Flip-in Event.
From and after a Flip-In Event, each Right (other than those held by the Acquiring Person), will permit the purchase
of CDN$100 worth of Common shares (at the market price on the date of the Flip-in Event) for CDN$50 (i.e., at a
50% discount). The issue of the Rights is not initially dilutive; however, upon a Flip-in Event occurring and the Rights
separating from the Common Shares, reported earnings per Common Share on a fully diluted or non-diluted basis may
be affected. Holders of Rights not exercising their Rights upon the occurrence of a Flip-in Event may suffer substantial
dilution.

(f)

Certificates and Transferability. Prior to the Separation Time, the Rights are evidenced by a legend imprinted on
certificates for Common Shares issued from and after the Effective Date and will not be transferable separately from
the Common Shares. From and after the Separation Time, the Rights will be evidenced by Rights certificates which
will be transferable and traded separately from the Common Shares.

(g)

Permitted Bid Requirements. The requirements for a Permitted Bid include the following:
(i) the take-over bid must be made by way of a take-over bid circular;
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(ii) the take-over bid must be made to all holders of Common shares;
the take-over bid must be outstanding for a minimum period of 60 days and Common shares tendered pursuant to
the take-over bid may not be taken up and paid for prior to the expiry of such 60-day period and only if at such
(iii) time more than 50% of the Common shares held by shareholders other than the bidder, its affiliates and persons
acting jointly or in concert with the bidder (collectively, the “Independent Shareholders”) have been tendered to
the take-over bid and not withdrawn;
(iv) the Common shares deposited pursuant to the take-over bid may be withdrawn until taken up and paid for; and
if more than 50% of the Common shares held by Independent Shareholders are tendered to the take-over bid
within such 60-day period, then the bidder must make a public announcement of that fact and the take-over bid
(v)
must remain open for deposits of Common shares for an additional 10 business days from the date of such public
announcement.
The Shareholder Rights Plan allows for a competing Permitted Bid (a “Competing Permitted Bid”) to be made while a
Permitted Bid is in existence. A Competing Permitted Bid must satisfy all of the requirements of a Permitted Bid except
that it may expire on the same date as the Permitted Bid.

(h)

Waiver and Redemption. The board of directors may, prior to the Flip-in Event, waive the dilutive effects of the
Shareholder Rights Plan in respect of a particular Flip-in Event resulting from a take-over bid made by way of a takeover bid circular to all holders of Common shares, or to waive one or more of the requirements of a Permitted Bid,
or a Competing Permitted Bid, in which event such waiver would be deemed also to be a waiver in respect of any
other Flip-in Event, and any such requirement, occurring under a take-over bid made by way of a take-over bid circular
to all holders of Common shares. The board of directors may also waive the Shareholder Rights Plan in respect of a
particular Flip-in Event that has occurred through inadvertence, provided that the Acquiring Person that inadvertently
triggered such Flip-in Event reduces its beneficial holdings to less than 20% of the outstanding voting shares of the
Corporation within 14 days or such later date as may be specified by the board of directors. With the majority consent
of shareholders or Rights holders at any time prior to a Flip-in Event, the board of directors may at its option redeem
all, but not less than all, of the outstanding Rights at a price of CDN$0.001 each.

(i)

Exemptions for Investment Advisors. Investment advisors (for client accounts), trust companies (acting in their
capacities as trustees and administrators), statutory bodies managing investment funds (for employee benefit plans,
pension plans, insurance plans or various public bodies) and administrators or trustees of registered pension funds or
plans acquiring greater than 20% of the Common shares are exempted from triggering a Flip-in Event, provided that
they are not making, or are not part of a group making, or proposing to make or participate in, or has not announced a
current intention to make, a take-over bid.
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(j)

Exemptions for Lock-up Agreements. A person is deemed not to be the beneficial owner of Common Shares if the
holder of such Common Shares has agreed to deposit or tender its Common Shares pursuant to a “Permitted Lock-up
Agreement” to a take-over bid (the “Lock-up Bid”) made by such person. In order for an agreement to constitute a
Permitted Lock-up Agreement, certain conditions must be met including, among other things, (i) any “break-up” fees
payable by the tendering shareholder, cannot exceed in the aggregate the greater of the cash equivalent of 2.5% of the
price or value of the consideration payable under the Lock-up Bid and 50% of the amount by which the price or value
of the consideration payable under another take-over bid or transaction exceeds the price or value of the consideration
that would have been received under the Lock-up Bid and (ii) the terms of such agreement are publicly disclosed and
a copy of which is made available to the public (including to the Corporation) and the Permitted Lock-up Agreement
permits the tendering shareholder to withdraw its Common Shares in order to deposit or tender the Common Shares to
another take-over bid or support another transaction where the price or value offered under such other bid exceeds the
price or value offered under the Lock-up Bid by a specified amount not greater than 7% of the price or value of the
consideration per Common Share at which the Locked-Up person has agreed to deposit or tender Common Shares to
the Lock-Up Bid, or the number of Common shares to be purchased under another take-over bid or transaction exceeds
the number proposed to be purchased under the Lock-up Bid provided that the number is not greater than 7% of the
number of Common Shares that the offeror has offered to purchase under the Lock-Up Bid, .

(k)

Supplements and Amendments. The Corporation is authorized to make amendments to the Shareholder Rights Plan
to correct any clerical or typographical error or to maintain the validity of the Shareholder Rights Plan as a result of
changes in law, regulation or rules. Prior to the Meeting, the Corporation is authorized to amend or supplement the
Shareholder Rights Plan as the board of directors may in good faith deem necessary or desirable. No such amendments
have been made to date. Other amendments or supplements to the Shareholder Rights Plan may be made with the prior
approval of shareholders or Rights holders.

This statement is of a general nature only and is not intended to constitute nor should it be construed as legal or tax advice to any
particular holder of Common Shares. Such holders are advised to consult their own tax advisors regarding the consequences of acquiring,
holding, exercising or otherwise disposing of their Rights, taking into account their own particular circumstances and applicable federal,
provincial, territorial, state or foreign legislation.
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BE IT RESOLVED, as an ordinary resolution passed by Independent Shareholders, THAT:
(a)

the Shareholder Rights Plan dated as of November 7, 2010 between the Corporation and Computershare Investor
Services Inc., be and the same is hereby approved, ratified and reconfirmed; and

(b)

any one director or officer of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed, for and on behalf of the
Corporation, to execute, under the corporate seal of the Corporation or otherwise, deliver and file all documents and
instruments and take such other actions as such director or officer may determine to be necessary or desirable to
implement this resolution and the matters authorized hereby, such determination to be conclusively evidenced by the
execution and delivery of any such documents or instruments and the taking of any such actions.

“Independent Shareholders” means holders of Common Shares, other than:
(i)

an Acquiring Person;

(ii)

any Affiliate or Associate of such person;

(iii)

any Person acting jointly or in concert with such person; or

(iv)

any employee benefit plan, deferred profit sharing plan, stock participation plan and any other similar plan or trust for the benefit
of employees of the Corporation or a subsidiary of the Corporation, unless the beneficiaries of the plan or trust direct the manner
in which the Common Shares are to be voted or direct whether the Common Shares are to be tendered to a take-over bid

SHAREHOLDERS WHO ARE NOT INDEPENDENT SHAREHOLDERS WILL ABSTAIN FROM VOTING ON THE
FOREGOING RESOLUTION. THE APPROVAL OF A MAJORITY OF INDEPENDENT SHAREHOLDERS OF THE
CORPORATION IS THEREFORE SOUGHT.
A total of nil shares of the Corporation will be excluded from the shareholder vote with respect to the Amended Plan.
Directors’ Recommendation
The Board recommends that all shareholders vote FOR the Shareholder Rights Plan Resolution. Unless otherwise directed, the
management designees named in the accompanying Proxy intend to vote in favour of the resolution ratifying the continued
existence of the Shareholder Rights Plan.
Advance Notice By-Law Amendment
Shareholders will also be asked at the Meeting to consider and, if thought advisable, pass a resolution confirming an amendment to the
Corporation’s current by-law. The Corporation’s current bylaw, By-Law No. 1 (the “By-Law”), was originally passed by the Board on
May 8, 2006.
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On April 15, 2013, the Board approved certain amendments to the Corporation’s By-Law (the “By-Law Amendment”). The By-Law
Amendment sets a deadline by which Shareholders must submit a notice of director nominations to the Corporation prior to any annual
or special meeting of Shareholders where directors are to be elected. The By-Law Amendment also sets out the information that a
Shareholder must include about a nominee in order for the notice to be valid. The By-Law Amendment does not impact a shareholder’s
ability to requisition a meeting or to make a shareholder proposal under the OBCA.
The By-Law Amendment will provide the Corporation with adequate prior notice of director nominations. It will ensure the Corporation
has sufficient information about nominees, to better evaluate a proposed nominee’s qualifications and suitability to serve as a director of
the Corporation.
At the Meeting, shareholders will be asked to consider and, if deemed appropriate, to pass an ordinary resolution confirming the By-Law
Amendment (the “By-Law Resolution”). The text of the By-Law Resolution to be submitted to shareholders at the Meeting is set forth
below:
BE IT RESOLVED, as an ordinary resolution, THAT:
(a)

the amendment to By-Law No. 1 of the Corporation, as approved by the Board on April 15, 2013, be and is hereby
confirmed without amendment;

(b)

any director or officer of the Corporation be and is hereby authorized and directed to execute and deliver for and in
name of and on behalf of the Corporation, whether under its corporate seal or not, all such certificates, instruments,
agreements, documents and notices and to do all such other acts and things as in such person’s opinion as may be
necessary or desirable for the purpose of giving effect to this resolution.”

According to the OBCA, the By-Law Amendment will cease to be effective unless confirmed by a resolution passed by a simple majority
of the votes cast by shareholders at the Meeting. The full text of the By-Law Amendment can be found in Schedule B.
Directors’ Recommendation
The Board recommends that all shareholders vote FOR the By-Law Resolution. Unless otherwise directed, the management
designees named in the accompanying Proxy intend to vote in favour of the resolution approving the By-Law Amendment.
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OTHER MATTERS
Management is not aware of any matters to come before the Meeting other than those set forth in the Notice of Meeting. If any other
matter properly comes before the Meeting, it is the intention of the persons named in the Proxy to vote the shares represented thereby in
accordance with their best judgment on such matter.
ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
Additional information relating to the Corporation is available on the SEDAR website at www.sedar.com. Financial information is
provided in the Corporation’s comparative financial statements and management discussion and analysis for its most recently completed
financial year which is filed on SEDAR. The Corporation also files with the United States Securities and Exchange Commission and the
NYSE MKT and its Annual Report on Form 20-F is available at www.sec.gov/edgar.shtml.
Shareholders may request copies of the Corporation’s financial statements and management discussion and analysis by contacting the
Corporation at 161 Bay Street, Suite 2315, P.O. Box 216, Toronto, Ontario, Canada M5J 2S1, by mail, by fax to 416-603-8565, or by
telephone at 416-361-3562.
APPROVALS AND SIGNATURE
The contents and distribution of this Information Circular to each shareholder entitled to receive notice of the Meeting, to each director
of the Corporation, to the auditor of the Corporation, and to the appropriate governmental agencies, has been approved by the Board.
DIRECTOR’S APPROVAL
The contents and distribution of this Information Circular to the shareholders of the Corporation has been approved by the Board. Unless
otherwise specified, information contained in this Information Circular is given as of May 7, 2013.
ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
“Patrick Evans”
PATRICK EVANS
President and Chief Executive Officer
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SCHEDULE “A”
Mountain Province Diamonds Inc.
Charter of the
Audit Committee of the Board of Directors
May 29, 2006
Revised September 7, 2010
Mandate
A.

Role and Objectives
The Audit Committee (the “Committee”) is a committee of the Board of Directors (the “Board”) of Mountain Province
Diamonds Inc (“MPV” or the “Company”) established for the purpose of overseeing the accounting and financial reporting
process of MPV and external audits of the consolidated financial statements of MPV. In connection therewith, the Committee
assists the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities in relation to MPV’s internal accounting standards and practices,
financial information, accounting systems and procedures, financial reporting and statements and the nature and scope of
the annual external audit. The Committee also recommends for Board approval MPV’s audited annual consolidated financial
statements and other mandatory financial disclosure.
MPV’s external auditor is accountable to the Board and the Committee as representatives of shareholders of MPV. The
Committee shall be directly responsible for overseeing the relationship of the external auditor. The Committee shall have such
access to the external auditor as it considers necessary or desirable in order to perform its duties and responsibilities. The external
auditor shall report directly to the Committee.
The objectives of the Committee are as follows:

B.

1.

to be satisfied with the credibility and integrity of financial reports;

2.

to support the Board in meeting its oversight responsibilities in respect of the preparation and disclosure of financial
reporting, including the consolidated financial statements of MPV;

3.

to facilitate communication between the Board and the external auditor and to receive all reports of the external auditor
directly from the external auditor;

4.

to be satisfied with the external auditor’s independence and objectivity; and

5.

to strengthen the role of independent directors by facilitating in-depth discussions between members of the Committee,
management and MPV’s external auditor.

Composition

1.

The Committee shall comprise at least three directors, none of whom shall be an officer or employee of MPV or
any of its subsidiaries or any affiliate thereof. Each Committee member shall satisfy the independence, financial
literacy and experience requirements of applicable securities laws, rules or guidelines, any applicable stock exchange
requirements or guidelines and any other applicable regulatory rules. In particular, each member of the Committee shall
have no direct or indirect material relationship with MPV or any affiliate thereof which could reasonably interfere with
the exercise of the member’s independent judgment. Determinations as to whether a particular director satisfies the
requirements for membership on the Committee shall be made by the full Board.
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C.

D.

2.

Members of the Committee shall be appointed by the Board. Each member shall serve until his successor is appointed,
unless he shall resign or be removed by the Board or he shall otherwise cease to be a director of MPV.

3.

The Chair of the Committee may be designated by the Board or, if it does not do so, the members of the Committee
may elect a Chair by vote of a majority of the full Committee membership. The Committee Chair shall satisfy the
independence, financial literacy and experience requirements as described above.

4.

The Committee shall have access to such officers and employees of MPV and to such information respecting MPV as
it considers necessary or advisable in order to perform its duties and responsibilities.

Meetings
1.

At all meetings of the Committee, every question shall be decided by a majority of the votes cast. In case of an equality
of votes, the matter will be referred to the Board for decision.

2.

A quorum for meetings of the Committee shall be a majority of its members.

3.

Meetings of the Committee shall be scheduled at least quarterly and at such other times during each year as it deems
appropriate. Minutes of all meetings of the Committee shall be taken. The CFO shall attend meetings of the Committee,
unless otherwise excused from all or part of any such meeting by the Committee Chair. The Chair of the Committee
shall hold in camera sessions of the Committee, without management present, at each meeting, as determined necessary.

4.

The Committee shall report the results of meetings and reviews undertaken and any associated recommendations to the
Board.

5.

The Committee shall meet periodically with MPV’s external auditor in connection with the preparation of the annual
consolidated financial statements and otherwise as the Committee may determine, part or all of each such meeting to
be in the absence of management.

Responsibilities
As discussed above, the Committee is established to assist the Board in fulfilling its oversight responsibilities with respect to
the accounting and financial reporting processes of MPV and external audits of MPV’s consolidated financial statements. In that
regard, the Committee shall:

1.

satisfy itself on behalf of the Board with respect to MPV’s internal control systems including identifying, monitoring
and mitigating business risks as well as compliance with legal, ethical and regulatory requirements. The Committee
shall also review with management, the external auditor and, if necessary, legal counsel, any litigation, claim or other
contingency (including tax assessments) that could have a material effect on the financial position or operating results
of MPV (on a consolidated basis), and the manner in which these matters may be, or have been, disclosed in the
financial statements;

2.

review with management and the external auditor the annual consolidated financial statements of MPV, the reports
of the external auditor thereon and related financial reporting, including Management’s Discussion and Analysis and
any earnings press releases, (collectively, “Annual Financial Disclosures”) prior to their submission to the Board for
approval. This process should include, but not be limited to:
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(a)

reviewing changes in accounting principles, or in their application, which may have a material impact on the
current or future year’s financial statements;

(b)

reviewing significant accruals, reserves or other estimates;

(c)

reviewing accounting treatment of unusual or non-recurring transactions;

(d)

reviewing the adequacy of any reclamation fund;

(e)

reviewing disclosure requirements for commitments and contingencies;

(f)

reviewing financial statements and all items raised by the external auditor, whether or not included in the
financial statements; and

(g)

reviewing unresolved differences between MPV and the external auditor.

Following such review, the Committee shall recommend to the Board for approval all Annual Financial Disclosures;
·

review with management all interim consolidated financial statements of MPV and related financial reporting,
including Management’s Discussion and Analysis and any earnings press releases, (collectively “Quarterly Financial
Disclosures”) and, if thought fit, approve all Quarterly Financial Disclosures;

·

be satisfied that adequate procedures are in place for the review of MPV’s public disclosure of financial information
extracted or derived from MPV’s financial statements, other than Annual Financial Disclosures or Quarterly Financial
Disclosures, and shall periodically assess the adequacy of those procedures;

·

review with management and recommend to the Board for approval, any financial statements of MPV which have not
previously been approved by the Board and which are to be included in a prospectus of MPV;

·

review with management and recommend to the Board for approval, MPV’s Annual Information Form;

·

with respect to the external auditor:
(a)

receive all reports of the external auditor directly from the external auditor;

(b)

discuss with the external auditor:
(i)

critical accounting policies;

(ii)

alternative treatments of financial information within GAAP discussed with management (including
the ramifications thereof and the treatment preferred by the external auditor); and

(iii)

other material, written communication between management and the external auditor;

(c)

consider and make a recommendation to the Board as to the appointment or re-appointment of the external
auditor, being satisfied that such auditor is a participant in good standing pursuant to applicable securities
laws;

(d)

review the terms of engagement of the external auditor, including the appropriateness and reasonableness of
the auditor’s fees, and make a recommendation to the Board as to the compensation of the external auditor;

(e)

when there is to be a replacement of the external auditor, review with management the reasons for such
replacement and the information to be included in any required notice to securities regulators and recommend
to the Board for approval the replacement of the external auditor along with the content of any such notice;
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(f)

oversee the work of the external auditor in performing its audit or review services and oversee the resolution
of any disagreements between management and the external auditor;

(g)

review and discuss with the external auditor all significant relationships that the external auditor and its
affiliates have with MPV and its affiliates in order to determine the external auditor’s independence, including,
without limitation:

(h)

(i)
3.

(a)

(b)

(i)

requesting, receiving and reviewing, on a periodic basis, written or oral information from the external
auditor delineating all relationships that may reasonably be thought to bear on the independence of
the external auditor with respect to MPV;

(ii)

discussing with the external auditor any disclosed relationships or services that the external auditor
believes may affect the objectivity and independence of the external auditor; and

(iii)

recommending that the Board take appropriate action in response to the external auditor’s information
to satisfy itself of the external auditor’s independence;

as may be required by applicable securities laws, rules and guidelines, either:
(i)

pre-approve all non-audit services to be provided by the external auditor to MPV (and its subsidiaries,
if any), or, in the case of de minimus non-audit services, approve such non-audit services prior to the
completion of the audit; or

(ii)

adopt specific policies and procedures for the engagement of the external auditor for the purposes of
the provision of non-audit services;

review and approve the hiring policies of MPV regarding partners, employees and former partners and
employees of the present and former external auditor of MPV;
establish procedures for:
(i)

the receipt, retention and treatment of complaints received by MPV regarding accounting, internal
accounting controls or auditing matters; and

(ii)

the confidential, anonymous submission by employees of MPV of concerns regarding questionable
accounting or auditing matters; and

review with the external auditor its assessment of the internal controls of MPV, its written reports containing
recommendations for improvement, and MPV’s response and follow-up to any identified weaknesses;

4.

with respect to risk management, be satisfied that MPV has implemented appropriate systems of internal control over
financial reporting (and review management’s assessment thereof) to ensure compliance with any applicable legal and
regulatory requirements;

5.

review annually with management and the external auditor and report to the Board on insurable risks and insurance
coverage; and

6.

engage independent counsel and other advisors as it determines necessary to carry out its duties and set and pay the
compensation for any such advisors.
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SCHEDULE “B”
MOUNTAIN PROVINCE DIAMONDS INC.
ADVANCE NOTICE OF
NOMINATIONS OF DIRECTORS
1. By-law No. 1 of the Corporation is hereby amended by adding the following thereto as section 3.03A, following section 3.03 and
preceding section 3.04:
3.03A

Nomination of Directors

Subject only to the Act and the articles, only persons who are nominated in accordance with the following procedures shall be eligible
for election as directors. Nominations of persons for election to the board may be made at any annual meeting of shareholders, or at
any special meeting of shareholders if one of the purposes for which the special meeting was called was the election of directors, (a) by
or at the direction of the board or an authorized officer of the Corporation, including pursuant to a notice of meeting, (b) by or at the
direction or request of one or more shareholders pursuant to a proposal made in accordance with the provisions of the Act or a requisition
of the shareholders made in accordance with the provisions of the Act or (c) by any person (a “Nominating Shareholder”) (i) who, at
the close of business on the date of the giving of the notice provided for below in this section 3.03A and on the record date for notice
of such meeting, is entered in the securities register as a holder of one or more shares carrying the right to vote at such meeting or who
beneficially owns shares that are entitled to be voted at such meeting and (ii) who complies with the notice procedures set forth below in
this section 3.03A:
(a)

In addition to any other applicable requirements, for a nomination to be made by a Nominating Shareholder, the
Nominating Shareholder must have given timely notice thereof in proper written form to the Secretary of the
Corporation at the principal executive offices of the Corporation in accordance with this section 3.03A.

(b)

To be timely, a Nominating Shareholder’s notice to the Secretary of the Corporation must be made (i) in the case of
an annual meeting of shareholders, not less than 30 nor more than 65 days prior to the date of the annual meeting of
shareholders; provided, however, that in the event that the annual meeting of shareholders is called for a date that is
less than 50 days after the date (the “Notice Date”) on which the first public announcement of the date of the annual
meeting was made, notice by the Nominating Shareholder may be made not later than the close of business on the tenth
(10th) day following the Notice Date; and (ii) in the case of a special meeting of shareholders (which is not also an
annual meeting of shareholders) of shareholders called for the purpose of electing directors (whether or not called for
other purposes), not later than the close of business on the fifteenth (15th) day following the day on which the first
public announcement of the date of the special meeting of shareholders was made. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the
board may, in its sole discretion, waive any requirement in this paragraph (b). In no event shall any adjournment or
postponement of a meeting of shareholders or the announcement thereof commence a new time period for the giving of
a Nominating Shareholder’s notice as described above.
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(c)

To be in proper written form, a Nominating Shareholder’s notice to the Secretary of the Corporation must set forth
(i) as to each person whom the Nominating Shareholder proposes to nominate for election as a director (A) the name,
age, business address and residential address of the person, (B) the principal occupation(s) or employment(s) of the
person, (C) the class or series and number of shares in the capital of the Corporation which are controlled or which are
owned beneficially or of record by the person as of the record date for the meeting of shareholders (if such date shall
then have been made publicly available and shall have occurred) and as of the date of such notice, and (D) any other
information relating to the person that would be required to be disclosed in a dissident’s proxy circular in connection
with solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to the Act and Applicable Securities Laws; and (ii)
as to the Nominating Shareholder giving the notice, any proxy, contract, arrangement, understanding or relationship
pursuant to which such Nominating Shareholder has a right to vote any shares of the Corporation and any other
information relating to such Nominating Shareholder that would be required to be made in a dissident’s proxy circular
in connection with solicitations of proxies for election of directors pursuant to the Act and Applicable Securities Laws.
The Corporation may require any proposed nominee to furnish such other information as may reasonably be required
by the Corporation to determine the eligibility of such proposed nominee to serve as an independent director of the
Corporation or that could be material to a reasonable shareholder’s understanding of the independence, or lack thereof,
of such proposed nominee.

(d)

No person shall be eligible for election as a director unless nominated in accordance with the provisions of this section
3.03A; provided, however, that nothing in this section 3.03A shall be deemed to preclude discussion by a shareholder
(as distinct from the nomination of directors) at a meeting of shareholders of any matter in respect of which it would
have been entitled to submit a proposal pursuant to the provisions of the Act. The chairman of the meeting shall have
the power and duty to determine whether a nomination was made in accordance with the procedures set forth in the
foregoing provisions and, if any proposed nomination is not in compliance with such foregoing provisions, to declare
that such defective nomination shall be disregarded.

(e)

For purposes of this section 3.03A, (i) “public announcement” shall mean disclosure in a press release reported by a
national news service in Canada, or in a document publicly filed by the Corporation under its profile on the System
of Electronic Document Analysis and Retrieval at www.sedar.com; and (ii) “Applicable Securities Laws” means the
applicable securities legislation of each relevant province and territory of Canada, as amended from time to time,
the rules, regulations and forms made or promulgated under any such statute and the published national instruments,
multilateral instruments, policies, bulletins and notices of the securities commission and similar regulatory authority of
each province and territory of Canada.
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(f)

Notwithstanding any other provision of By-law No. 1, notice given to the Secretary of the Corporation pursuant to
this section 3.03A may only be given by personal delivery, facsimile transmission or by email (at such email address
as stipulated from time to time by the Secretary of the Corporation for purposes of this notice), and shall be deemed
to have been given and made only at the time it is served by personal delivery, email (at the address as aforesaid) or
sent by facsimile transmission (provided that receipt of confirmation of such transmission has been received) to the
Secretary at the address of the principal executive offices of the Corporation; provided that if such delivery or electronic
communication is made on a day which is a not a business day or later than 5:00 p.m. (Toronto time) on a day which is
a business day, then such delivery or electronic communication shall be deemed to have been made on the subsequent
day that is a business day.

(g)

Notwithstanding the foregoing, the board may, in its sole discretion, waive any requirement in this section 3.03A.

2. By-law No. 1, as amended from time to time, and this amendment shall be read together and shall have effect, so far as practicable, as
though all the provisions thereof were contained in one by-law of the Corporation. All terms contained in this by-law amendment which
are defined in the By-law No. 1, as amended from time to time, shall for all purposes hereof have the meanings given to such terms in the
said By-law No. 1 unless expressly stated otherwise or the context otherwise requires.
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